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136A.001 MS 2006 [Renumbered 15.001]​

OFFICE OF HIGHER EDUCATION​

136A.002 DEFINITIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Scope. For purposes of this chapter, the terms defined in this section have the meanings​
given them.​

Subd. 2. Office. "Office" means the Office of Higher Education.​

Subd. 3. Commissioner. "Commissioner" means the commissioner of the office.​

Subd. 4. Province and provincial. "Province" and "provincial" mean the Canadian province of Manitoba.​
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Subd. 5. Term. "Term" means a quarter or semester, or the equivalent.​

History: 2007 c 144 art 2 s 14; 2014 c 149 s 3,74​

136A.01 OFFICE OF HIGHER EDUCATION.​

Subdivision 1. Creation. The Office of Higher Education, which may also be known as the Minnesota​
Office of Higher Education, is created with a commissioner appointed by the governor with the advice and​
consent of the senate and serving at the pleasure of the governor.​

Subd. 2. Responsibilities. (a) The office is responsible for:​

(1) necessary state level administration of financial aid programs, including accounting, auditing, and​
disbursing state and federal financial aid funds, and reporting on financial aid programs to the governor and​
the legislature;​

(2) approval, registration, licensing, and financial aid eligibility of private collegiate and career schools,​
under sections 136A.61 to 136A.71 and 136A.82 to 136A.834;​

(3) determining whether to enter into an interstate reciprocity agreement regarding postsecondary distance​
education;​

(4) negotiating and administering reciprocity agreements;​

(5) publishing and distributing financial aid information and materials, and other information and​
materials under section 136A.87, to students and parents;​

(6) collecting and maintaining student enrollment and financial aid data and reporting data on students​
and postsecondary institutions to develop and implement a process to measure and report on the effectiveness​
of postsecondary institutions;​

(7) administering the federal programs that affect students and institutions on a statewide basis; and​

(8) prescribing policies, procedures, and rules under chapter 14 necessary to administer the programs​
under its supervision.​

(b) The office may match individual student data from the student record enrollment database with​
individual student financial aid data collected and maintained by the office in order to audit or evaluate​
federal or state supported education programs as permitted by United States Code, title 20, section 1232g(b)(3),​
and Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section 99.35. The office shall not release data that personally​
identifies parents or students other than to employees and contractors of the office.​

Subd. 3. Incentive programs. The commissioner is authorized to utilize incentive gifts including, but​
not limited to, gift cards in order to promote to the public the various programs administered by the office.​
The annual total expenditures for such incentive programs shall not exceed $10,000.​

Subd. 4. Treatment of appropriations. Notwithstanding section 16B.98, subdivision 14, unless amounts​
are otherwise appropriated for administrative costs, the office may retain up to five percent of the amount​
appropriated to the agency for grants enacted by the legislature and formula grants, and up to ten percent​
for competitively awarded grants.​

History: 1965 c 809 s 32 subd 1; 1967 c 615 s 1; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 9; 2003 c 133 art​
2 s 3; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 10,60; 2009 c 95 art 2 s 6; 2010 c 364 s 4; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 4,74;​
2014 c 312 art 1 s 7; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 4,46; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 3; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 6​
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136A.011 [Repealed, 2005 c 107 art 2 s 61]​

136A.02 [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 3 s 60]​

136A.03 EXECUTIVE OFFICERS; EMPLOYEES.​

The office shall be under the administrative control of the commissioner. The commissioner shall serve​
in the unclassified service of the state civil service. The commissioner, or the commissioner's designated​
representative, on behalf of the office is authorized to sign contracts and execute all instruments necessary​
or appropriate to carry out the purposes of sections 136A.01 to 136A.178 for the office. The salary of the​
commissioner shall be established according to section 15A.0815. The commissioner may appoint other​
professional employees who shall serve in the unclassified service of the state civil service. All other​
employees shall be in the classified civil service.​

An employee appointed by the commissioner to serve in the unclassified service as provided in this​
section must be a person who has studied higher education or a related field at the graduate level or has​
similar experience and who is qualified for a career in financial aid and other aspects of higher education​
and for activities in keeping with the planning and administrative responsibilities of the office and who is​
appointed to assume responsibility for administration of educational programs or research in matters of​
higher education.​

History: 1965 c 809 s 32 subd 6; 1967 c 615 s 1; 1967 c 895 s 3; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1983 c 299 s 21; 1986​
c 444; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 11; 1997 c 183 art 3 s 11; 2Sp1997 c 3 s 18; 2003 c 133 art 2 s 5; 2005 c 107 art​
2 s 60; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 5​

136A.031 STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL.​

Subdivision 1. [Repealed, 2005 c 107 art 2 s 61]​

Subd. 2. [Repealed, 2013 c 99 art 2 s 30]​

Subd. 3. Student Advisory Council. (a) A Student Advisory Council (SAC) to the office is established.​
The members of SAC shall include: the chair of the University of Minnesota student senate; the state chair​
of the Minnesota State University Student Association; the president of the Minnesota State College Student​
Association and an officer of the Minnesota State College Student Association, one in a community college​
course of study and one in a technical college course of study; a student who is enrolled in a private nonprofit​
postsecondary institution, to be elected by students enrolled in Minnesota Private College Council institutions;​
a student who is enrolled in a private career school, to be elected by students enrolled in Minnesota private​
career schools; and a student who is enrolled in a Minnesota tribal college to be elected by students enrolled​
in Minnesota tribal colleges. If students from the private career schools or tribal colleges do not elect a​
representative, the commissioner must appoint a student representative. If students from the Minnesota​
Private College Council institutions do not elect a representative, the Minnesota Private College Council​
must appoint the private nonprofit representative. A member may be represented by a student designee who​
attends an institution from the same system that the absent member represents. The SAC shall select one of​
its members to serve as chair.​

(b) The office shall inform the SAC of all matters related to student issues under consideration. The​
SAC shall report to the office quarterly and at other times that the SAC considers desirable. The SAC shall​
determine its meeting times, but it shall also meet with the office within 30 days after the commissioner's​
request for a meeting.​

(c) The SAC shall:​
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(1) bring to the attention of the office any matter that the SAC believes needs the attention of the office;​

(2) fulfill the requirements under section 135A.137, subdivision 2;​

(3) make recommendations to the office as it finds appropriate; and​

(4) approve student appointments by the office for each advisory group as provided in subdivision 4.​

Subd. 4. Student representation. The commissioner shall invite the council to nominate a student or​
students to serve on task forces created by the office, when appropriate.​

Subd. 5. [Repealed, 2014 c 286 art 8 s 40]​

History: 1995 c 212 art 3 s 12; 1Sp1995 c 3 art 16 s 13; 1999 c 214 art 2 s 4; 1Sp2001 c 1 art 2 s 7;​
2003 c 130 s 12; 2003 c 133 art 2 s 6,7; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 11-14,60; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 15; 2013 c 99 art​
2 s 29; 2014 c 286 art 3 s 2; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 5; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 4; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 7​

136A.032 COMMUNITY AND COMMISSIONER PARTICIPATION IN POSTSECONDARY​
EDUCATION OF AMERICAN INDIANS.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) The term used in this section has the meaning given in this subdivision.​

(b) "Tribal Nations Education Committee" means the committee established through tribal directive,​
for which the commissioner consults on matters related to American Indian postsecondary education programs,​
policy, and all matters related to educating Minnesota's American Indian postsecondary students. The​
membership of the Tribal Nations Education Committee is determined by and at the sole discretion of the​
committee members, and nothing in this section authorizes the commissioner to dictate committee​
membership.​

Subd. 2. American Indian community involvement. The commissioner must provide for the involvement​
of the Tribal Nations Education Committee, American Indian postsecondary students, and representatives​
of community groups in the establishment of programs, formation of policies, and all other matters related​
to the postsecondary education of Minnesota's American Indian students.​

Subd. 3. Consultation with the Tribal Nations Education Committee. (a) The commissioner shall​
seek consultation with the Tribal Nations Education Committee regarding programs, policies, and all other​
matters related to the postsecondary education of Minnesota's American Indian students.​

(b) Nothing in this subdivision prevents the commissioner from seeking consultation with individual​
tribal nations.​

History: 2020 c 109 art 1 s 5​

136A.035 [Repealed, 1983 c 299 s 36]​

136A.04 [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 3 s 60]​

136A.041 [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 3 s 60]​
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136A.0411 COLLECTING FEES.​

The office may charge fees for seminars, conferences, workshops, services, and materials. The office​
may collect fees for registration and licensure of private institutions under sections 136A.61 to 136A.71 and​
136A.82 to 136A.834. The money is appropriated to the office.​

History: 1990 c 591 art 6 s 2; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 4; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 6,46​

136A.0412 ACCEPTANCE OF PRIVATE FUNDS; APPROPRIATION.​

The commissioner may accept donations, grants, bequests, and other gifts of money to carry out the​
purposes of section 136A.01. Donations, nonfederal grants, bequests, or other gifts of money accepted by​
the commissioner must be deposited in an account in the special revenue fund and are appropriated to the​
commissioner for the purpose for which it was given.​

History: 2016 c 189 art 1 s 7​

136A.042 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.043 [Repealed, 1996 c 310 s 1]​

136A.044 [Repealed, 1991 c 265 art 11 s 26]​

136A.05 COOPERATION OF INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION.​

Subdivision 1. Cooperation. All public institutions of higher education and all state departments and​
agencies shall cooperate with and supply information requested by the office in order to enable it to carry​
out and perform its duties. Private postsecondary institutions are requested to cooperate and provide​
information.​

Subd. 2. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

History: 1965 c 809 s 32 subd 8; 1967 c 615 s 1; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1975 c 390 s 2; 1987 c 401 s 14; 1989​
c 293 s 22; 1990 c 591 art 6 s 3; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 14,59; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2014 c 149 s 6​

136A.051 STUDENT RECORDS AND DATA.​

When a nonpublic institution of higher education provides the office student data or records pursuant​
to section 136A.05, subdivision 1; 136A.121, subdivision 18; or 136A.1701, subdivision 11, the institution​
of higher education is not liable for a breach of confidentiality, disclosure, use, retention, or destruction of​
the student data or records, if the breach, disclosure, use, retention, or destruction results from actions or​
omissions of:​

(1) the office; or​

(2) persons provided access to the data or records by the office.​

History: 2011 c 93 s 1; 2014 c 149 s 74​

136A.053 CONSOLIDATED STUDENT AID REPORTING.​

(a) The commissioner of the Office of Higher Education shall report annually beginning February 15,​
2026, to the chairs and ranking minority members of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over higher​
education, on the details of programs administered under sections 136A.091 to 136A.1276, 136A.1465, and​
136A.231 to 136A.246, including the:​
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(1) total funds appropriated and expended;​

(2) total number of students applying for funds;​

(3) total number of students receiving funds;​

(4) average and total award amounts;​

(5) summary demographic data on award recipients;​

(6) retention rates of award recipients;​

(7) completion rates of award recipients;​

(8) average cumulative debt at exit or graduation; and​

(9) average time to completion.​

(b) Data must be disaggregated by program, institution, aid year, race and ethnicity, gender, income,​
family type, dependency status, and any other factors determined to be relevant by the commissioner. The​
commissioner must report any additional data and outcomes relevant to the evaluation of programs​
administered under sections 136A.091 to 136A.1276, 136A.1465, and 136A.231 to 136A.246 as evidenced​
by activities funded under each program.​

History: 2024 c 124 art 2 s 11; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 11​

136A.054 CONSOLIDATED COMPETITIVE GRANT AND STUDENT LOAN REPAYMENT​
PROGRAM REPORTING.​

(a) The commissioner of the Office of Higher Education shall report annually by February 15 to the​
chairs and ranking minority members of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over higher education​
on the details of programs administered under sections 136A.1789, 136A.1791, 136A.1794, 136A.1795,​
136A.861, and 136A.915 including the following, where applicable:​

(1) organizations receiving grant awards;​

(2) grant award amounts and utilization rates;​

(3) grant program activities, goals, and outcomes;​

(4) grant matching sources and funding levels;​

(5) number and amount of loan repayment awards disbursed; and​

(6) demographic data of loan repayment program participants.​

(b) The commissioner must report any additional data and outcomes relevant to the evaluation of programs​
administered under sections 136A.1789, 136A.1791, 136A.1794, 136A.1795, 136A.861, and 136A.915 as​
evidenced by activities funded under each program.​

History: 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 7; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 62​
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136A.055 DEVELOPMENTAL EDUCATION REPORTING.​

(a) The commissioner must report on the department's website the following summary data on students​
who graduated from a Minnesota high school and are attending a public postsecondary institution in​
Minnesota, limited to the most recent academic school year:​

(1) the number of students placed in supplemental or developmental education;​

(2) the number of students who complete supplemental or developmental education within one academic​
year;​

(3) the number of students that complete gateway courses in one academic year; and​

(4) time to complete a degree or certificate at a postsecondary institution.​

(b) Summary data must be aggregated by school district, high school, and postsecondary institution.​
Summary data must be disaggregated by race, ethnicity, free or reduced-price meals eligibility, and age.​

(c) The commissioner must post the initial data on the department's website on or before February 15,​
2018, and must update the data at least annually thereafter.​

History: 2017 c 89 art 2 s 5; 2023 c 55 art 9 s 19​

136A.057 MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

136A.06 FEDERAL FUNDS.​

The office is designated the state agency to apply for, receive, accept, and disburse to both public and​
private institutions of higher education all federal funds that are allocated to the state of Minnesota to support​
higher education programs, construction, or other activities and that require administration by a state higher​
education agency under any law enacted by the Congress of the United States that provides funds for higher​
education and requires administration by a state higher education agency; provided that no commitment​
shall be made that binds the legislature to make appropriations beyond current allocations of funds. The​
office may apply for, receive, accept, and disburse all administrative funds available to the office for​
administering federal funds to support higher education programs, construction, or other activities. The​
office also may apply for, receive, accept, and disburse any research, planning, or program funds that are​
available for purposes consistent with the provisions of this chapter. In making application for and​
administering federal funds the office may comply with any and all requirements of federal law and federal​
rules and regulations to enable it to receive and accept the funds. The expenditure of the funds shall be​
governed by the laws of the state, except insofar as federal regulations may otherwise provide. The office​
may contract with both public and private institutions in administering federal funds, and the contracts are​
not subject to chapter 16C. The federal money received by the office shall be deposited in the state treasury​
and, subject to section 3.3005, is appropriated to it for the purpose for which the money was received. The​
appropriation does not cancel and is available until expended.​

History: 1965 c 809 s 32 subd 9; 1967 c 615 s 1; 1967 c 895 s 4; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1987 c 384 art 1 s​
16; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 1998 c 386 art 2 s 42; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2009 c 95 art 2 s 7; 2014 c 149 s 7​

136A.07 [Repealed, 2007 c 144 art 2 s 52]​
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136A.08 RECIPROCAL AGREEMENTS RELATING TO NONRESIDENT TUITION WITH OTHER​
STATES OR PROVINCES.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For the purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings​
given them.​

(b) "Province" and "provincial" mean the Canadian province of Manitoba.​

(c) "Resident of this state" means a resident student as defined in section 136A.101, subdivision 8.​

Subd. 2. Authorization. The office, in consultation with the commissioner of management and budget​
and each affected public postsecondary board, may enter into agreements, on subjects that include remission​
of nonresident tuition for designated categories of students at public postsecondary institutions, with​
appropriate state or provincial agencies and public postsecondary institutions in other states or provinces.​
The agreements shall be for the purpose of the mutual improvement of educational advantages for residents​
of this state and other states or provinces with whom agreements are made.​

Subd. 3. Wisconsin. A higher education reciprocity agreement with the state of Wisconsin may include​
provision for the transfer of funds between Minnesota and Wisconsin. If this provision is included, the​
amount of funds to be transferred shall be determined according to a formula which is mutually acceptable​
to the office and a duly designated agency representing Wisconsin. The formula shall recognize differences​
in tuition rates between the two states and the number of students attending institutions in each state under​
the agreement. Any payments to Minnesota by Wisconsin shall be deposited by the office in the general​
fund of the state treasury. The amount required for the payments shall be certified by the commissioner of​
the office to the commissioner of management and budget annually.​

Subd. 4. North Dakota; South Dakota. A reciprocity agreement with North Dakota may include​
provision for the transfer of funds between Minnesota and North Dakota. If provision for transfer of funds​
between the two states is included, the amount of funds to be transferred shall be determined according to​
a formula which is mutually acceptable to the office and a duly designated agency representing North Dakota.​
In adopting a formula, the office shall consider tuition rates in the two states and the number of students​
attending institutions in each state under the agreement. Any payment to Minnesota by North Dakota shall​
be deposited by the office in the general fund. The amount required for the payments shall be certified by​
the commissioner of the office to the commissioner of management and budget annually. All provisions in​
this subdivision pertaining to North Dakota shall also be applied to South Dakota, and all authority and​
conditions granted for higher education reciprocity with North Dakota are also granted for higher education​
reciprocity with South Dakota.​

Subd. 5. Financial aid. The office may enter into an agreement, with a state or province with which it​
has negotiated a reciprocity agreement for tuition, to permit students to receive student aid awards from the​
student's state or province of residence for attending an eligible institution in the other state or province.​

Subd. 6. Approval. An agreement made by the office under this section is not valid as to a particular​
institution without the approval of that institution's state or provincial governing board. A valid agreement​
under this subdivision that incurs additional financial liability to the state or to any of the Minnesota public​
postsecondary boards, beyond enrollment funding adjustments, must be submitted to the commissioner of​
management and budget and to the chairs of the higher education finance divisions of the senate and house​
of representatives for review. The agreement remains valid unless it is disapproved in law.​
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Subd. 7. Reporting. The office must annually, before the last day in January, submit a report to the​
committees in the house of representatives and the senate with responsibility for higher education finance​
on:​

(1) participation in the tuition reciprocity program by Minnesota students and students from other states​
attending Minnesota postsecondary institutions under a reciprocity agreement;​

(2) reciprocity and resident tuition rates at each institution;​

(3) interstate payments and obligations for each state participating in the tuition reciprocity program in​
the prior year; and​

(4) summary statistics on number of graduates by institution, degree granted, and year of graduation for​
reciprocity students who attended Minnesota postsecondary institutions.​

Subd. 8. [Repealed, 2007 c 144 art 2 s 52]​

Subd. 9. Appeal; resident status. A student who does not meet the definition of resident after residing​
in Minnesota for 12 months may appeal to the commissioner by providing documentation on the student's​
reasons for residing in Minnesota. The commissioner may grant resident status for the purpose of this section​
to the student upon determining the documentation establishes that postsecondary education was not the​
student's principal reason for residing in Minnesota.​

History: 1967 c 615 s 1; 1967 c 866 s 1; 1971 c 161 s 1; 1974 c 532 s 1; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1975 c 321 s​
2; 1975 c 390 s 3; 1977 c 403 s 4,5; 1987 c 258 s 12; 1989 c 293 s 23; 1990 c 591 art 6 s 4; 1Sp1993 c 2​
art 2 s 5,6; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 16; 2003 c 133 art 3 s 2; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 15,16,60; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 16;​
2009 c 95 art 2 s 8,9; 2009 c 101 art 2 s 109; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 8,9​

136A.09 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.0901 STANDARD FINANCIAL AID OFFER FORM FOR HIGHER EDUCATION​
INSTITUTIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Citation. Sections 136A.0901 to 136A.0905 may be cited as the "College Financing​
Literacy Act."​

Subd. 2. Standard format and terminology. The commissioner must develop standard terminology​
and financial aid offer forms. The commissioner may develop separate financial aid offer forms for:​

(1) undergraduate students;​

(2) graduate students;​

(3) first-time students; and​

(4) returning students.​

Subd. 3. Consultation with stakeholders. In developing the financial aid offer form, the commissioner​
must consult with and consider the recommendations of stakeholders, including the student loan advocate​
in the Department of Commerce, representatives of students, institutions of higher education, financial aid​
administrators and counselors, school counselors, and any other relevant stakeholders as determined by the​
commissioner. The commissioner must begin consulting with and soliciting recommendations from​
stakeholders by September 1, 2025. By September 1, 2026, the commissioner must publish on the department's​
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website a draft of the form created under subdivision 2 and solicit feedback from stakeholders regarding the​
form.​

Subd. 4. Final form. The commissioner must publish on the department's website the final financial​
aid offer form with sufficient time for institutions to implement use of the form for the 2028-2029 academic​
year.​

Subd. 5. Authority to modify. The commissioner may update and modify the definitions, terms,​
formatting, and design of the financial aid offer form based on changes in laws, in process, or for purposes​
of clarity.​

Subd. 6. Use of standard financial aid offer forms and terms. Beginning with the 2028-2029 academic​
year, institutions of higher education that receive state grant aid must:​

(1) use the financial aid offer form developed under this section in providing official and unofficial​
offers, including paper, mobile-optimized, or other electronic offers to all students who are accepted at the​
institution and apply for aid; and​

(2) use the standard terminology and definitions developed by the commissioner for all communications​
from the institution related to financial aid offers.​

History: 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 8​

136A.0902 REQUIRED CONTENTS FOR FINANCIAL AID OFFER FORM.​

Subdivision 1. General. The financial aid offer form developed under section 136A.0901 must be a​
form titled "Financial Aid Offer" which includes the required information under this section with costs listed​
first, followed by grants and scholarships clearly separated with separate headings, and the additional​
information under section 136A.0903 included last. The form must be in a consumer-friendly format that​
is simple to understand and must allow for each institution to customize the form with the institution's own​
logo, branding, or other identifiers.​

Subd. 2. Cost information. The financial aid offer form must contain information on the student's​
estimated cost of attendance including:​

(1) total direct costs, including the totals for estimated tuition and fees charged by an institution, including​
differential tuition if applicable, college or university-sponsored housing, and food costs;​

(2) total estimated other expenses, including estimated housing and food costs for students who reside​
off-campus, and for all students, costs for books, materials, supplies, transportation, and miscellaneous​
personal expenses;​

(3) the academic period covered by the financial aid offer and an explanation that the financial aid​
offered may change for academic periods not covered by the aid offer or by program;​

(4) whether cost and aid estimates are based on full-time or part-time enrollment;​

(5) whether tuition and fees cover a set range of credits or are per credit hour; and​

(6) whether the tuition and fees are estimated based on the previous year or are set for the academic​
period indicated in accordance with clause (3).​
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Subd. 3. Grants and scholarships. The financial aid offer form must include the aggregate amount of​
grants and scholarships itemized by source and type that the student does not have to repay, including grant​
aid:​

(1) offered under title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, United States Code, title 20, section​
1070, et seq.;​

(2) offered through other federal programs;​

(3) offered by the institution;​

(4) offered by the state; and​

(5) from an outside source to the student for the academic period, if known, including a disclosure that​
the grants and scholarships do not have to be repaid. If institutional aid is included, the form must also note:​

(i) the conditions under which the student can expect to receive similar amounts of financial aid for each​
academic period the student is enrolled at the institution; and​

(ii) whether the institutional aid offer may change if grants or scholarships from outside sources are​
applied after the student receives the financial aid offer form and how the institutional aid will change, if​
applicable.​

Subd. 4. Net price. The financial aid offer form must include:​

(1) the estimated net price that the student, or the student's family on behalf of the student, is estimated​
to have to pay for the student to attend the institution for the academic period, equal to the cost of attendance​
as described in subdivision 2, clauses (1) and (2), for the student for the period indicated in subdivision 2,​
clause (3), minus the amount of grant and scholarship aid described in subdivision 3 that is included in the​
financial aid offer form; and​

(2) a disclosure that the estimated net price is an estimate of the total expenses for the year and not​
equivalent to the amount the student will owe directly to the institution.​

Subd. 5. Loans. (a) The financial aid offer form must include:​

(1) information on loans that are available to the student under part D or E of title IV of the Higher​
Education Act of 1965, United States Code, title 20, sections 1087a, et seq., and 1087aa, et seq., except a​
Federal Direct PLUS Loan under part D of that act;​

(2) information on other loans under this chapter for the academic period covered by the offer;​

(3) a disclosure that the loans have to be repaid and a disclosure that the student can borrow a lesser or,​
if applicable, greater amount than the recommended loan amount;​

(4) a disclosure that the interest rates and fees on the loans are set annually and affect total cost over​
time and a link to the Department of Education's and the Office of Higher Education's websites that includes​
current information on interest rates and fees; and​

(5) a link to the Department of Education's repayment calculator website for students with instruction​
that the website contains customizable estimates of expected repayment costs under different loan repayment​
plans.​
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(b) The offer must clearly use the word "loan" to describe the recommended loan amounts and must​
clearly label subsidized and unsubsidized loans with a plain language explanation of the difference between​
the two.​

Subd. 6. Supplemental information on cost of attendance. The financial aid offer form must contain​
information on how a student may request an adjustment to increase the cost of attendance to accommodate​
the student's special circumstances or higher costs of housing, food, or other eligible expenses.​

Subd. 7. Supplemental information for students with dependents. The financial aid offer form must​
contain information on resources available to students with dependents including:​

(1) the dependent care allowance, including a disclosure that a student with a dependent child in paid​
child care may request a dependent care allowance as part of the student's financial aid calculation, which​
may result in a higher grant or loan amount; and​

(2) information on the Minnesota child care grant program provided in section 136A.125 and instructions​
on how to apply.​

Subd. 8. Process for accepting or declining aid. The financial aid offer form must include:​

(1) deadlines and a summary of the process for accepting the financial aid offered in the financial aid​
offer form, requesting higher loan amounts if recommended loan amounts were included, and declining aid​
offered in the form;​

(2) information on when and how direct costs to the institution must be paid, including information on​
payment plans if available;​

(3) a disclosure that verification of financial circumstances may require the student to submit further​
documentation; and​

(4) information about where a student or the student's family can seek additional information regarding​
the financial aid offered, including contact information for the institution's financial aid office, the Department​
of Education's website on financial aid, and the Office of Higher Education's website.​

History: 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 9​

136A.0903 ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE FINANCIAL AID OFFER FORM.​

Subdivision 1. Repayment resources; private student loans; work study. In addition to the information​
described in section 136A.0902, the financial aid offer form must, in a concise format determined by the​
commissioner, include:​

(1) at the institution's discretion, additional options and potential resources for paying the amount listed​
in section 136A.0902, subdivision 4, such as tuition payment plans;​

(2) the following information relating to private student loans:​

(i) a statement that students considering borrowing to cover the cost of attendance should consider​
available federal and state student loans prior to applying for private student loans, including an explanation​
that federal and state student loans offer generally more favorable terms and beneficial repayment options​
than private student loans;​
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(ii) the impact of a proposed private student loan on the student's potential eligibility for other financial​
assistance, including federal financial assistance under title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, United​
States Code, title 20, section 1070, et seq.; and​

(iii) a statement explaining the student's ability to select a private educational lender of the student's​
choice; and​

(3) information on work-study employment opportunities under section 136A.233, and work-study​
offered in accordance with part C of title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, United States Code, title​
20, section 1087-51, et seq., including a disclosure that the work-study aid offered is subject to the availability​
of qualified employment opportunities and is disbursed over time as earned by the student. Work-study​
employment opportunities must not be included in the category of financial aid described under section​
136A.0902, subdivision 3.​

Subd. 2. Additional requirements. The financial aid offer form must meet the requirements of this​
section and section 136A.0902 by:​

(1) including, in addition to the requirements described in subdivision 1 and section 136A.0902, a concise​
summary in plain language of:​

(i) the terms and conditions of financial aid under subdivision 1, clause (3), and section 136A.0902,​
subdivisions 3 and 5, and a method to provide students with additional information about the terms and​
conditions, such as links to the supplementary information; and​

(ii) federal, state, or institutional conditions required to receive and renew financial aid and a method​
to provide students with additional information about these conditions, such as links to the supplementary​
information;​

(2) clearly distinguishing between aid offered under subdivision 1, clause (3), and section 136A.0902,​
subdivisions 3 and 5, by including a subtotal for the aid offered and by refraining from commingling the​
different types of aid described;​

(3) using standard terminology and definitions, as determined by the commissioner, and using plain​
language where possible;​

(4) providing additional information on federal student loans, including the types and amounts for which​
the student is eligible in an attached document or web page, if an institution's recommended federal student​
loan aid offered under section 136A.0902, subdivision 5, is less than the federal maximum available to the​
student;​

(5) including a delivery confirmation for electronic financial aid offer forms, except that receipt of the​
financial aid offer form shall not be considered an acceptance or rejection of aid by the student; and​

(6) accompanying any reference to private education loans, with respect to dependent students, with:​

(i) information about the availability of and terms and conditions associated with Federal Direct PLUS​
Loans under section 455 of the Higher Education Act of 1965, United States Code, title 20, section 1087e,​
for the student's parents regardless of family income; and​
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(ii) a notification of the student's increased eligibility for unsubsidized federal student loans under title​
IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, United States Code, title 20, section 1070, et seq., if the student's​
parents are rejected under the Federal Direct PLUS Loan program.​

History: 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 10​

136A.0904 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION; REMOVAL OF INFORMATION.​

(a) Nothing in sections 136A.0901 to 136A.0903 precludes an institution from supplementing the​
financial aid offer form with additional information if the additional information supplements the financial​
aid offer form and is not located on the financial aid offer form and if the information utilizes the same​
standard terminology developed by the commissioner under sections 136A.0901 to 136A.0905.​

(b) Nothing in sections 136A.0901 to 136A.0903 precludes an institution from omitting a required item​
in an individual offer form if that item is inapplicable to the student receiving the offer.​

History: 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 11​

136A.0905 SUPERSEDING FEDERAL LAW.​

Sections 136A.0901 to 136A.0904 are null and void upon the effective date of a federal law or regulation​
establishing a uniform financial aid offer form and requiring institutions of higher education to adopt it.​

History: 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 12​

STUDENT GRANTS, AID, AND SCHOLARSHIPS​

136A.091 SUMMER ACADEMIC ENRICHMENT PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment. The summer academic enrichment program is established to enable​
elementary and secondary students to attend academic summer programs sponsored by postsecondary​
institutions and nonprofit organizations.​

Subd. 2. Eligibility. To be eligible for a program stipend, a student shall:​

(1) be a resident of Minnesota;​

(2) attend an eligible office-approved program;​

(3) be in grades 3 through 12, but not have completed high school;​

(4) meet income requirements for free or reduced-price school meals; and​

(5) be 19 years of age or younger.​

Subd. 3. Financial need. Need for financial assistance is based on student eligibility for free or​
reduced-price school meals under the national school lunch program. Student eligibility shall be verified by​
sponsors of approved academic programs. The office shall award stipends for students within the limits of​
available appropriations for this section. If the amount appropriated is insufficient, the office shall allocate​
the available appropriation in the manner it determines. A stipend must not exceed $1,000 per student.​

Subd. 4. Eligible program sponsors. (a) A program stipend may be used only at an eligible sponsor​
that is a postsecondary institution or nonprofit educational organization. A Minnesota public postsecondary​
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institution is an eligible program sponsor. A private postsecondary institution is an eligible program sponsor​
if it:​

(1) is accredited by an agency recognized by the United States Department of Education for purposes​
of eligibility to participate in title IV federal financial aid programs;​

(2) offers an associate or baccalaureate degree program approved under sections 136A.61 to 136A.71;​
and​

(3) is located in Minnesota.​

(b) A nonprofit educational organization is an eligible program sponsor if it:​

(1) is incorporated;​

(2) has had favorable financial performance with federal or state funds; and​

(3) has not had significant audit findings.​

Subd. 5. Eligible programs. A program stipend may be used only for an eligible program. To be eligible,​
a program must:​

(1) provide, as its primary purpose, academic instruction for student enrichment in core curricular areas​
of English and language arts, humanities, social studies, science, mathematics, fine arts, performing arts,​
and world languages and culture;​

(2) not be offered for credit to postsecondary students;​

(3) not provide remedial instruction;​

(4) meet any other program requirements established by the office; and​

(5) be approved by the commissioner.​

Subd. 6. Information. The office shall assemble and distribute information about eligible student​
participants, program stipends, and eligible programs.​

Subd. 7. Administration. The office shall determine the time and manner of program applications,​
program approval, stipend applications, and final awards.​

Subd. 8. Program evaluation. Each program sponsor must annually submit a report to the office stating​
its program goals, activities, and stipend recipient eligibility and demographic information.​

Subd. 9. Report. Annually, the office shall submit a report to the legislative committees with jurisdiction​
over higher education finance regarding the program providers, stipend recipients, and program activities.​
The report shall include information about the students served, the organizations providing services, program​
goals and outcomes, and student outcomes.​

History: 2015 c 69 art 3 s 7; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 12; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 12​

136A.095 MS 1969 [Repealed, 1971 c 862 s 6]​
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136A.095 GRANTS-IN-AID; PURPOSE.​

The legislature finds and declares that the identification of men and women of the state who are​
economically disadvantaged and the encouragement of their educational development in eligible institutions​
of their choosing are in the best interests of the state and of the students.​

History: 1971 c 226 s 1; 1971 c 862 s 1; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 28​

136A.096 FINANCIAL AID GOALS.​

The legislature directs the commissioner of the Office of Higher Education, in coordination with the​
Minnesota Department of Education and the Minnesota Association of Secondary School Principals, to set​
an annual goal for the percentage of Minnesota's high school seniors completing the Free Application for​
Federal Student Aid (FAFSA).​

History: 2020 c 109 art 1 s 6​

136A.097 ORDER OF AID CALCULATIONS.​

The commissioner must calculate aid for programs in the order of their original enactment from oldest​
to most recent. The commissioner may determine the order of calculating state financial aid if:​

(1) a student is eligible for multiple state financial aid programs; and​

(2) two or more of those programs calculate funding after accounting for other state aid.​

If the commissioner determines that a greater amount of financial aid would be available to students by​
calculating aid in a particular order, the commissioner may calculate aid in that order.​

History: 2024 c 124 art 2 s 13; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 13​

136A.10 [Repealed, 1971 c 862 s 6]​

136A.101 DEFINITIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Scope. For purposes of sections 136A.095 to 136A.1311, the terms defined in this section​
have the meanings ascribed to them.​

Subd. 2. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 3. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 4. Eligible institution. "Eligible institution" means an institution that meets the eligibility​
requirements under section 136A.103.​

Subd. 5. Financial need. "Financial need" means the demonstrated need of the applicant for financial​
assistance to meet the recognized costs of attending the eligible institution of choice as determined from​
financial information on the applicant and, if required, on the applicant's parents, by the federal need analysis.​

Subd. 5a. Assigned family responsibility. "Assigned family responsibility" means the amount of a​
family's contribution to a student's cost of attendance, as determined by a federal need analysis. For dependent​
students, the assigned family responsibility is 95 percent of the parental contribution. If the parental​
contribution is between $0 and negative $1,500, the assigned family responsibility is 50 percent of the​
parental contribution. If the parental contribution is less than negative $1,500, the recognized parental​
contribution is negative $1,500. For independent students with dependents other than a spouse, the assigned​
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family responsibility is 71 percent of the student contribution. For independent students without dependents​
other than a spouse, the assigned family responsibility is 35 percent of the student contribution. If the student​
contribution is between $0 and negative $1,500, the assigned family responsibility is 50 percent of the student​
contribution. If the student contribution is less than negative $1,500, the recognized student contribution is​
negative $1,500. For a student registering for less than full time, the office shall prorate the assigned family​
responsibility using the ratio of the number of credits the student is enrolled in to the number of credits for​
full-time enrollment.​

Subd. 6. [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

Subd. 7. Student. "Student" means a person who is enrolled for at least one credit per term, in a program​
or course of study that applies to a degree, diploma, or certificate. Credit equivalencies assigned by an​
institution that are applicable to federal Pell grant calculations shall be counted as part of a student's credit​
load.​

Subd. 7a. Full time. "Full time" means enrollment in a minimum of 15 credits per term.​

Subd. 7b. Half time. "Half time" means enrollment in a minimum of six credits per term.​

Subd. 8. Resident student. "Resident student" means a student who meets one of the following conditions:​

(1) a student who has resided in Minnesota for purposes other than postsecondary education for at least​
12 months without being enrolled at a postsecondary educational institution for more than five credits in​
any term;​

(2) a dependent student whose parent or legal guardian resides in Minnesota at the time the student​
applies;​

(3) a student who graduated from a Minnesota high school, if the student was a resident of Minnesota​
during the student's period of attendance at the Minnesota high school and the student is physically attending​
a Minnesota postsecondary educational institution;​

(4) a student who, after residing in the state for a minimum of one year, earned a high school equivalency​
certificate in Minnesota;​

(5) a member, spouse, or dependent of a member of the armed forces of the United States stationed in​
Minnesota on active federal military service as defined in section 190.05, subdivision 5c;​

(6) a spouse or dependent of a veteran, as defined in section 197.447, if the veteran is a Minnesota​
resident;​

(7) a person or spouse of a person who relocated to Minnesota from an area that is declared a presidential​
disaster area within the preceding 12 months if the disaster interrupted the person's postsecondary education;​

(8) a person defined as a refugee under United States Code, title 8, section 1101(a)(42), who, upon​
arrival in the United States, moved to Minnesota and has continued to reside in Minnesota;​

(9) a student eligible for resident tuition under section 135A.043; or​

(10) an active member, or a spouse or dependent of that member, of the state's National Guard who​
resides in Minnesota or an active member, or a spouse or dependent of that member, of the reserve component​
of the United States armed forces whose duty station is located in Minnesota and who resides in Minnesota.​
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Subd. 9. Independent student. "Independent student" has the meaning given under title IV of the Higher​
Education Act of 1965, as amended, and applicable regulations.​

Subd. 10. Satisfactory academic progress. "Satisfactory academic progress" means satisfactory academic​
progress as defined under Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, sections 668.16(e), 668.32(f), and 668.34,​
except that a student with an intellectual disability as defined in Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section​
668.231, enrolled in an approved comprehensive transition and postsecondary program under that section​
is subject to the institution's published satisfactory academic process standards for that program as approved​
by the Office of Higher Education.​

Subd. 11. Award year. "Award year" has the meaning given in the Higher Education Act of 1965, title​
4, section 481.20, as amended.​

History: 1971 c 862 s 2; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1975 c 390 s 4; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 29; 1987 c 401 s 15; 1989 c​
293 s 24-26; 1991 c 356 art 8 s 1-5; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 12; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 7,8; 1995 c 186 s 119; 1995​
c 212 art 3 s 17-21,59; 1996 c 398 s 30; 1997 c 183 art 2 s 3; 1998 c 384 s 7; 1Sp2001 c 1 art 2 s 8,9; 2003​
c 133 art 2 s 8; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2006 c 282 art 8 s 3; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 17,18; 2008 c 298 s 3; 2008​
c 363 art 4 s 6; 2009 c 95 art 2 s 10; 2010 c 364 s 5,6; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 5,6; art 3 s 1; art 4 s 3; 2014 c 149​
s 10-13; 2015 c 69 art 3 s 8; 2016 c 189 art 1 s 8,9; 2017 c 89 art 2 s 6; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 4; 1Sp2021 c 2​
art 2 s 2; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 8,9; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 13​

136A.103 INSTITUTION ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS.​

Subdivision 1. Eligibility. (a) A postsecondary institution is eligible for state student aid and to receive​
state student aid on behalf of students under this chapter and sections 197.791 and 299A.45, if the institution​
is located in this state and:​

(1) is operated by this state or the Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota; or​

(2) is operated privately and meets the requirements of paragraph (b).​

(b) A private institution must:​

(1) be licensed or registered as a postsecondary institution by the office; and​

(2) meet one of the following criteria:​

(i) the institution participates in the federal Pell Grant program under Title IV of the Higher Education​
Act of 1965, Public Law 89-329, as amended;​

(ii) the institution:​

(A) was participating in state student aid programs as of June 30, 2010, but does not participate in the​
federal Pell Grant program under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, Public Law 89-329, as​
amended;​

(B) requires every student who enrolls to sign a disclosure form, provided by the office, stating that the​
institution is not participating in the federal Pell Grant program; and​

(C) has not had a change in ownership as defined in section 136A.63, subdivision 2; or​

(iii) the institution offers only graduate-level degrees or graduate-level nondegree programs and​
participates in federal financial aid under Title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, Public Law 89-329,​
as amended.​
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(c) An institution under paragraph (b), clause (2), that changes ownership as defined in section 136A.63,​
subdivision 2, remains eligible for state student aid for six months following the change in ownership.​

Subd. 2. Ineligibility. A postsecondary institution otherwise eligible for state student aid under this​
chapter and sections 197.791 and 299A.45 may be determined by the office to be ineligible if the institution:​

(1) fails to maintain adequate compliance with administrative and financial standards and compliance​
with all state statutes, rules, and administrative policies related to state financial aid programs; or​

(2) has been terminated from participating in federal financial aid programs by the United States​
Department of Education for a violation of laws, regulations, or participation agreements governing federal​
financial aid programs.​

History: 2010 c 364 s 7; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 2; 2020 c 109 art 3 s 1; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 14​

136A.11 [Repealed, 1971 c 862 s 6]​

136A.111 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.12 [Repealed, 1971 c 862 s 6]​

136A.1201 MINNESOTA PROMISE.​

Subdivision 1. Financial aid policy. It is the policy of the legislature to provide sufficient financial aid​
funding so that tuition and required fees to attend a public two-year college for a student from a low-income​
family are covered by state financial aid when combined with federal and other sources of aid.​

Subd. 2. Informational materials. The office must prepare and distribute materials under section​
136A.87 to promote the Minnesota Promise, the availability of financial aid, and the benefits of higher​
education.​

History: 2009 c 95 art 2 s 11; 2014 c 149 s 74​

136A.121 STATE GRANT PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

Subd. 2. Eligibility for grants. (a) An applicant is eligible to be considered for a grant, regardless of​
the applicant's sex, creed, race, color, national origin, or ancestry, under sections 136A.095 to 136A.131 if​
the office finds that the applicant:​

(1) is a resident of the state of Minnesota;​

(2) is a graduate of a secondary school or its equivalent, or is 17 years of age or over, and has met all​
requirements for admission as a student to an eligible college or technical college of choice as defined in​
sections 136A.095 to 136A.131;​

(3) has met the financial need criteria established in Minnesota Rules;​

(4) is not in default, as defined by the office, of any federal or state student educational loan;​

(5) is not more than 30 days in arrears in court-ordered child support that is collected or enforced by the​
public authority responsible for child support enforcement or, if the applicant is more than 30 days in arrears​
in court-ordered child support that is collected or enforced by the public authority responsible for child​
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support enforcement, but is complying with a written payment agreement under section 518A.69 or order​
for arrearages; and​

(6) has not been convicted of or pled nolo contendere or guilty to a crime involving fraud in obtaining​
federal Title IV funds within the meaning of Code of Federal Regulations, subtitle B, chapter VI, part 668,​
subpart C.​

(b) A student is entitled to an additional semester or the equivalent of grant eligibility if the student​
withdraws from enrollment:​

(1) for active military service after December 31, 2002, because the student was ordered to active military​
service as defined in section 190.05, subdivision 5b or 5c;​

(2) for a serious health condition, while under the care of a medical professional, that substantially limits​
the student's ability to complete the term; or​

(3) while providing care that substantially limits the student's ability to complete the term to the student's​
spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition.​

Subd. 3. Allocation. Grants must be awarded on a funds available basis to those applicants who meet​
the office's requirements.​

Subd. 4. [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

Subd. 5. Grant stipends. The grant stipend shall be based on a sharing of responsibility for covering​
the recognized cost of attendance by the applicant, the applicant's family, and the government. The amount​
of a financial stipend must not exceed a grant applicant's recognized cost of attendance, as defined in​
subdivision 6, after deducting the following:​

(1) the assigned student responsibility of at least 50 percent of the cost of attending the institution of the​
applicant's choosing;​

(2) the assigned family responsibility as defined in section 136A.101; and​

(3) the amount of a federal Pell grant award for which the grant applicant is eligible.​

The minimum financial stipend is $100 per academic year.​

Subd. 6. Cost of attendance. (a) The recognized cost of attendance consists of: (1) an allowance specified​
in law for living and miscellaneous expenses, and (2) an allowance for tuition and fees equal to the lesser​
of the average tuition and fees charged by the institution, or a tuition and fee maximum if one is established​
in law. If no living and miscellaneous expense allowance is established in law, the allowance is equal to 106​
percent of the federal poverty guidelines for a one person household in Minnesota for nine months. If no​
tuition and fee maximum is established in law, the allowance for tuition and fees is equal to the lesser of:​
(1) the average tuition and fees charged by the institution, and (2) for two-year programs, an amount equal​
to the highest tuition and fees charged at a public two-year institution, or for four-year programs, an amount​
equal to the highest tuition and fees charged at a public university.​

(b) For a student registering for less than full time, the office shall prorate the cost of attendance using​
the ratio of the number of credits the student is enrolled in to the number of credits for full-time enrollment.​
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(c) The recognized cost of attendance for a student who is confined to a Minnesota correctional institution​
shall consist of the tuition and fee component in paragraph (a), with no allowance for living and miscellaneous​
expenses.​

(d) For the purpose of this subdivision, "fees" include only those fees that are mandatory and charged​
to full-time resident students attending the institution. Fees do not include charges for tools, equipment,​
computers, or other similar materials where the student retains ownership. Fees include charges for these​
materials if the institution retains ownership. Fees do not include optional or punitive fees.​

Subd. 7. Insufficient appropriation. (a) If the amount appropriated is determined by the office to be​
insufficient to make full awards to applicants under subdivision 5, awards must be reduced by:​

(1) adding a surcharge to the applicant's assigned family responsibility, as defined in section 136A.101,​
subdivision 5a; and​

(2) a percentage increase in the applicant's assigned student responsibility, as defined in subdivision 5.​

(b) The reduction under paragraph (a), clauses (1) and (2), must be equal dollar amounts. The total​
assigned family responsibility after the addition of the surcharge may exceed 100 percent of the parental or​
student contribution, as applicable, assigned by the federal needs analysis. The commissioner must not adjust​
the surcharge under paragraph (a), clause (1), according to the student's status as a dependent student, an​
independent student with dependents other than a spouse, or an independent student without dependents​
other than a spouse.​

Subd. 7a. Surplus appropriation. (a) If the amount appropriated is determined by the office to be more​
than sufficient to fund projected grant demand in the second year of the biennium, the office may:​

(1) increase the living and miscellaneous expense allowance in the second year of the biennium by up​
to an amount that retains sufficient appropriations to fund the projected grant demand; or​

(2) when calculating assigned family responsibility, recognize a negative parental contribution or student​
contribution that is less than negative $1,500 to a value that is equal to the lowest student contribution​
provided under the federal needs analysis.​

(b) The adjustments in paragraph (a) may be made one or more times. In making the determination that​
there are more than sufficient funds, the office shall balance the need for sufficient resources to meet the​
projected demand for grants with the goal of fully allocating the appropriation for state grants. An increase​
in the living and miscellaneous expense allowance or a modified assigned family responsibility under this​
subdivision does not carry forward into a subsequent biennium.​

Subd. 8. [Repealed, 1Sp1985 c 11 s 81]​

Subd. 9. Awards. An undergraduate student who meets the office's requirements is eligible to apply for​
and receive a grant in any year of undergraduate study unless the student has obtained a baccalaureate degree​
or previously has received a state grant award for 120 credits or the equivalent, excluding (1) courses taken​
from a Minnesota school or postsecondary institution which is not participating in the state grant program​
and from which a student transferred no credit, and (2) courses taken that qualify as developmental education​
or below college-level. A student enrolled in a two-year program at a four-year institution is only eligible​
for the tuition and fee maximums established by law for two-year institutions.​

Subd. 9a. Full-year grants. Students may receive state grants for four consecutive quarters or three​
consecutive semesters during the course of a single fiscal year. In calculating a state grant for the fourth​
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quarter or third semester, the office must use the same calculation as it would for any other term, except that​
the calculation must subtract any federal Pell grant for which a student would be eligible even if the student​
has exhausted the Pell grant for that fiscal year.​

Subd. 9b. [Repealed, 2013 c 99 art 2 s 30]​

Subd. 10. [Repealed, 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 26]​

Subd. 11. Renewal conditions. Each grant is renewable, contingent on continued residency in Minnesota,​
satisfactory academic progress, recommendation of the eligible institution currently attended, and evidence​
of continued need.​

Subd. 12. Annual application. To continue to receive a grant, the student must apply for renewal each​
year.​

Subd. 12a. Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) compliance. All eligible institutions​
must implement policies and procedures that ensure that applicants are aware that they must annually​
complete the FAFSA to be eligible for financial aid.​

Subd. 13. Deadline. The deadline for the office to accept applications for state grants for a term is 30​
days after the start of that term.​

Subd. 14. [Repealed, 1Sp1985 c 11 s 81]​

Subd. 15. [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

Subd. 16. How applied; order. Grants awarded under this section must be applied to educational costs​
in the following order: tuition, fees, books, supplies, and other expenses. Unpaid portions of the awards​
revert to the grant account.​

Subd. 17. Independent student information. The office shall inform students in its financial aid​
publications about the definition of independent student status and appeals to the financial aid administrator​
relating to the declaration of the status.​

Subd. 18. Data. (a) An eligible institution whose students are eligible to receive funding under sections​
136A.095 to 136A.246 must provide to the office data on student enrollment and federal and state financial​
aid.​

(b) An institution or its agent must provide to the office aggregate and distributional financial or other​
data as determined by the commissioner that is directly related to the responsibilities of the office under this​
chapter. The commissioner may only request aggregate and distributional data after establishing and consulting​
with a data advisory task force to determine the need, content, and detail of the information. Data provided​
by nonpublic institutions under this paragraph is considered nonpublic data under chapter 13.​

Subd. 19. Reporting. By November 1 and February 15, the office must provide, to the committees of​
the legislature with jurisdiction over higher education finance and policy, updated spending projections for​
the state grant and the North Star Promise, taking into account the most current and projected enrollment​
and tuition and fee information, economic conditions, and other relevant factors. Before submitting state​
grant spending projections, the office must meet and consult with representatives of public and private​
postsecondary institutions, the Department of Management and Budget, the Governor's Office, legislative​
staff, and financial aid administrators.​
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Subd. 20. Institution reporting. (a) Each institution receiving financial aid under this section must​
annually report to the office the following for each award level:​

(1) enrollment and graduation data for all students, including subgroup information on state and federal​
Pell grant recipients; and​

(2) the aggregate awarded financial aid information for all students, and cumulative debt of all graduates​
by race and ethnicity, gender, and income.​

(b) Using the data submitted to the office by institutions pursuant to paragraph (a), as well as other data​
available to the office, the office shall provide the following on its Internet website by placing a prominent​
link on its website home page:​

(1) information including, but not limited to, persistence and completion, debt of graduates, employment​
and wage information, and other relevant data for each institution subject to paragraph (a), which shall be​
made available in a searchable database; and​

(2) other information and links that are useful to students and parents who are in the process of selecting​
a college or university. This information may include, but is not limited to, local occupational profiles.​

(c) The office shall provide a standard format and instructions for institutions supplying the information​
required under paragraph (a).​

(d) The office shall provide an electronic copy of the information provided on its Internet website under​
paragraph (b) to each public and private high school in the state and each workforce center operated by the​
Department of Employment and Economic Development. The copy must contain information formatted by​
institution so that comparison can be easily made between institutions. High schools are encouraged to make​
the information available to students, including through individual counseling sessions with students.​
Workforce centers shall make the information available to job seekers, those seeking career counseling, and​
others as determined by the centers.​

Subd. 21. Institutional prohibition. An institution receiving financial aid under this section must not​
suspend or withdraw a student from class attendance and resources during a period of instruction due to an​
unpaid student account balance unless the student is eligible for a full tuition and fee refund. A period of​
instruction for the purposes of this subdivision means a new academic term that may be measured in semesters,​
trimesters, quarters, interim terms, mini terms, or one or more modules so that a student who begins attendance​
in that new academic term incurs additional tuition and fee charges beyond any outstanding student account​
balance due to the institution for prior completed terms of enrollment. An institution that measures a program​
in clock hours and that includes language in the enrollment contract between it and the student to only charge​
tuition by payment period, is also covered by this subdivision.​

History: 1971 c 862 s 4; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1975 c 390 s 5; 1977 c 384 s 2; 1977 c 449 s 16; 1979 c 238​
s 1-4; 1981 c 359 s 15,16; 1983 c 258 s 42; 1984 c 654 art 4 s 21; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 30-42; 1987 c 258 s 12;​
1987 c 401 s 17,18; 1989 c 246 s 2; 1989 c 293 s 27; 1991 c 292 art 5 s 2; 1991 c 356 art 8 s 6-8; 1992 c​
513 art 1 s 13; 1993 c 340 s 1; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 9,10; 1994 c 532 art 2 s 5; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 22-26,59;​
1997 c 183 art 2 s 4,5; 1998 c 384 s 8; 1999 c 214 art 2 s 5; 1Sp2001 c 1 art 2 s 10,11; 2002 c 220 art 5 s​
5; 2002 c 374 art 5 s 1; 2003 c 133 art 2 s 9-13; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 17-22; 2005 c 164 s 29; 1Sp2005 c 7 s​
28; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 19,20; 2008 c 298 s 4; 2008 c 363 art 4 s 7; 2009 c 95 art 2 s 12-14; 2009 c 101 art​
2 s 109; 2010 c 215 art 2 s 6; 1Sp2011 c 5 art 2 s 2; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 7,29; art 3 s 2; 2014 c 149 s 14,15,74;​
2015 c 69 art 2 s 46; art 3 s 9; art 5 s 1,2; 2016 c 189 art 1 s 10; 2017 c 89 art 2 s 7; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 5;​
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2020 c 109 art 1 s 7; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 3-5; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 10-13; 2023 c 44 s 2,3; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2​
s 15-19​

136A.1211 [Repealed, 2003 c 133 art 2 s 21]​

136A.1215 GRANTS FOR STUDENTS WITH INTELLECTUAL AND DEVELOPMENTAL​
DISABILITIES.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment. A program is established to provide financial assistance to students with​
intellectual and developmental disabilities that attend a Minnesota postsecondary institution.​

Subd. 2. Eligible students. A postsecondary student is eligible for a grant under this section if the​
student:​

(1) meets the eligibility requirements in section 136A.121, subdivision 2;​

(2) is a student with an intellectual disability, as defined in Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section​
668.231, and is enrolled in a comprehensive transition and postsecondary program under that section; and​

(3) attends an eligible institution, as defined in section 136A.101, subdivision 4.​

Subd. 3. Application. To receive a grant under this section, a student must apply in the form and manner​
specified by the commissioner.​

Subd. 4. Maximum grant amounts. (a) The amount of a grant under this section equals the tuition and​
fees at the student's postsecondary institution, minus:​

(1) any Pell or state grants the student receives; and​

(2) any institutional aid the student receives.​

(b) If appropriations are insufficient to provide the full amount calculated under paragraph (a) to all​
eligible applicants, the commissioner must reduce the maximum grant amount available to recipients.​

Subd. 5. Reporting. By February 15 of each year, the commissioner of higher education must submit​
a report on the details of the program under this section to the legislative committees with jurisdiction over​
higher education finance and policy. The report must include the following information, broken out by​
postsecondary institution:​

(1) the number of students receiving an award;​

(2) the average and total award amounts; and​

(3) summary demographic data on award recipients.​

History: 2017 c 89 art 2 s 8; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 6​

136A.122 [Repealed, 2003 c 133 art 2 s 21]​

136A.123 MN RECONNECT PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. Program administration. The commissioner of the Office of Higher Education must,​
to the extent funds are available, administer a credential completion program for adult learners consistent​
with this section.​
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Subd. 2. Definitions. (a) For the purpose of this section, the terms defined in this subdivision have the​
meanings given them.​

(b) "Cost of attendance" means tuition and required fees charged by the institution and the campus-based​
budget used for federal financial aid for food, housing, books, supplies, transportation, and miscellaneous​
expenses.​

(c) "Eligible student" means an individual who:​

(1) meets the eligibility requirements in section 136A.121, subdivision 2, paragraphs (a), clauses (1),​
(2), (4), and (5); and (b);​

(2) is 25 years old or older and under 62;​

(3) has previously completed a minimum of 15 credits in a certificate or degree-seeking program that​
have been accepted by a participating institution;​

(4) has not enrolled in any Minnesota institution in the two academic years prior to enrollment at a​
participating institution;​

(5) has not completed a certificate, diploma, or degree of 16 credits or longer in length prior to enrollment​
at a participating institution in this program;​

(6) has enrolled in three or more credits each term;​

(7) reports a family adjusted gross income of $85,000 or less; and​

(8) has applied for the grant on the form required by the commissioner.​

(d) "Grant" means funds awarded under this section.​

(e) "Participating institution" means a two-year institution within the Minnesota State Colleges and​
Universities system selected under subdivision 5.​

(f) "Program" means a certificate, diploma, or degree program offered by a participating institution.​

(g) To the extent not inconsistent with this section, the definitions in section 136A.101 apply to this​
section.​

Subd. 3. Student application. Application for a grant must be made by a FAFSA or state aid application​
and any additional form required by the commissioner. Applications are due on a schedule set by the​
commissioner.​

Subd. 4. Student grants. (a) The commissioner must, to the extent funds are available, make grants to​
eligible students to attend a program at a participating institution. The amount of a grant per spring or fall​
academic term is the lesser of $1,000 or the difference between the cost of attendance and other scholarships​
or grants received by the student. If the appropriation is greater than the projected grants for the spring and​
fall terms, the commissioner may award grants up to $1,000 per student for summer or interim terms.​

(b) An eligible student may renew a student grant by applying for renewal on a form provided by the​
commissioner and on a schedule set by the commissioner. An eligible student may receive a student grant​
under this section for up to six semesters or the equivalent.​

Subd. 5. Participating institutions. (a) A two-year institution within the Minnesota State Colleges and​
Universities system may apply to become a participating institution. The commissioner, in conjunction with​
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a selection committee, shall select institutions through a competitive application process. Priority must be​
given to institutions participating in the most recently completed fiscal year.​

(b) Participating institutions must:​

(1) demonstrate a commitment to adult learners through adoption of best practice policies, programs,​
and services; and​

(2) complete an adult learner assessment prior to participation.​

Subd. 6. Institutional grants. Participating institutions may receive funds for student advising, resolving​
student financial holds, and improving services to eligible students.​

History: 2019 c 64 art 2 s 7; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 6​

136A.124 [Repealed, 2003 c 133 art 2 s 21]​

136A.1241 FOSTERING INDEPENDENCE HIGHER EDUCATION GRANTS.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment. The office must establish a grant program for individuals who satisfy​
the eligibility requirements under subdivision 3. Using available FAFSA or other state aid data, the office​
shall identify and inform eligible individuals, and the institutions for which the individuals have been accepted​
or are attending, of their eligibility for the foster grant. This program is established to provide an individual​
who is currently or was formerly in foster care with foster grants for up to five years for higher education​
costs.​

Subd. 2. Definitions. (a) For purposes of this section, the terms in this subdivision have the meanings​
given.​

(b) "Adoption" means adoption of an individual who has been in the care and custody of a responsible​
social services agency or Tribal social services agency and in foster care.​

(c) "Eligible institution" means an eligible public institution or an eligible private institution.​

(d) "Eligible private institution" or "private institution" means an institution eligible for state student​
aid under section 136A.103, paragraph (a), clause (2).​

(e) "Eligible public institution" or "public institution" means an institution operated by the Board of​
Trustees of the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities or the Board of Regents of the University of​
Minnesota.​

(f) "Foster care" has the meaning given in section 260C.007, subdivision 18.​

(g) "Foster grant" means a grant under this section.​

(h) "Office" means the Office of Higher Education.​

(i) "Recognized cost of attendance" means the amount calculated under subdivision 4.​

(j) "Responsible social services agency" has the meaning given in section 260C.007, subdivision 27a.​

(k) "Tribal social services agency" has the meaning given in section 260.755, subdivision 21.​

Subd. 3. Eligibility. (a) An individual who is eligible for the Education and Training Voucher Program​
is eligible for a foster grant.​
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(b) If the individual is not eligible for the Education and Training Voucher Program, in order to receive​
a foster grant, an individual must:​

(1) meet the definition of a resident student under section 136A.101, subdivision 8;​

(2) be at least 13 years of age but fewer than 27 years of age;​

(3) after the individual's 13th birthday, be in or have been in foster care in Minnesota before, on, or after​
June 27, 2021, including any of the following:​

(i) placement in foster care at any time while 13 years of age or older;​

(ii) adoption from foster care at any time after reaching 13 years of age; or​

(iii) placement from foster care with a permanent legal custodian at any time after reaching 13 years of​
age;​

(4) have graduated from high school or completed the equivalent as approved by the Department of​
Education;​

(5) have been accepted for admission to, or be currently attending, an eligible institution;​

(6) have submitted a FAFSA;​

(7) be meeting satisfactory academic progress as defined under section 136A.101, subdivision 10;​

(8) not be in default, as defined by the office, of any federal or state student educational loan;​

(9) not be more than 30 days in arrears in court-ordered child support that is collected or enforced by​
the public authority responsible for child support enforcement or, if the applicant is more than 30 days in​
arrears in court-ordered child support that is collected or enforced by the public authority responsible for​
child support enforcement, be complying with a written payment agreement under section 518A.69 or order​
for arrearages; and​

(10) not have been convicted of or pled nolo contendere or guilty to a crime involving fraud in obtaining​
federal Title IV funds within the meaning of Code of Federal Regulations, subtitle B, chapter VI, part 668,​
subpart C.​

Subd. 4. Cost of attendance. (a) The recognized cost of attendance for a public institution has the​
meaning given in Code of Federal Regulations, title 20, chapter 28, subchapter IV, part F, section 1087ll.​

(b) The recognized cost of attendance for a private institution equals the lesser of:​

(1) the cost of attendance for the institution as calculated under Code of Federal Regulations, title 20,​
chapter 28, subchapter IV, part F, section 1087ll; or​

(2) for two-year programs, an amount equal to the highest recognized cost of attendance charged at a​
public two-year institution, or for four-year programs, an amount equal to the highest recognized cost of​
attendance at a public university.​

Subd. 5. Foster grant amount; payment; opt-out. (a) Each student shall be awarded a foster grant​
based on the federal need analysis. Applicants are encouraged to apply for all other sources of financial aid.​
The amount of the foster grant must be equal to the applicant's recognized cost of attendance after accounting​
for:​
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(1) the results of the federal need analysis;​

(2) the amount of a federal Pell Grant award for which the applicant is eligible;​

(3) the amount of the state grant;​

(4) the Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant;​

(5) the sum of all Tribal scholarships;​

(6) the amount of any other state and federal gift aid;​

(7) the Education and Training Voucher Program;​

(8) extended foster care benefits under section 260C.451;​

(9) the amount of any private grants or scholarships, excluding grants and scholarships provided by the​
private institution of higher education in which the eligible student is enrolled; and​

(10) for public institutions, the sum of all institutional grants, scholarships, tuition waivers, and tuition​
remission amounts.​

(b) The foster grant shall be paid directly to the eligible institution where the student is enrolled.​

(c) An eligible private institution may opt out of participating in the foster grant program established​
under this section. To opt out, the institution shall provide notice to the office by March 1 for the next​
academic year. An institution that opts out of participating, but participated in the program a previous year,​
must hold harmless currently enrolled recipients by continuing to provide the benefit under paragraph (d)​
as long as the student remains eligible.​

(d) An eligible private institution that does not opt out under paragraph (c) and accepts the student's​
application to attend the institution must provide institutional grants, scholarships, tuition waivers, or tuition​
remission in an amount equal to the difference between:​

(1) the institution's cost of attendance as calculated under subdivision 4, paragraph (b), clause (1); and​

(2) the sum of the foster grant under this subdivision and the sum of the amounts in paragraph (a), clauses​
(1) to (9).​

(e) An undergraduate student who is eligible may apply for and receive a foster grant in any year of​
undergraduate study unless the student has obtained a baccalaureate degree or received foster grant funds​
for a period of ten full-time semesters or the equivalent for a four-year undergraduate degree. A foster grant​
student enrolled in a two-year degree, certificate, or diploma program may apply for and receive a foster​
grant in any year of undergraduate study unless the student has obtained a baccalaureate degree or received​
foster grant funds for a period of six full-time semesters or the equivalent.​

(f) Foster grants may be awarded to an eligible student for four quarters, three semesters, or the equivalent​
during the course of a single fiscal year. In calculating the award amount, the office must use the same​
calculation it would for any other term.​

(g) The commissioner shall establish a priority application deadline.​

(h) If there is a projected shortfall in available resources, the commissioner must proportionately reduce​
awards to keep spending within available resources.​
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(i) Applicants applying after the priority deadline for whom the office has received a completed application​
must be placed on a waiting list in order of application completion date. Awards must be made on a first-come,​
first-served basis in the order complete applications are received. Students who received the Fostering​
Independence Grant in the previous year shall be given priority. If there are multiple applications with​
identical completion dates, those applications must be further sorted by application receipt date. Awards​
must be made to eligible students until the appropriation is expended.​

Subd. 6. Dissemination of information. (a) The office shall, by September 1, 2022, and September 1​
each year thereafter, prepare and provide the information to be disseminated by responsible social services​
agencies, Tribal social services agencies, the office, the Department of Human Services, and eligible state​
and private institutions that:​

(1) describes the availability of the program established under this section;​

(2) explains how to participate in the program; and​

(3) includes information on all available federal and state grants identified under subdivision 5.​

(b) The office shall maintain and annually update the list of eligible private institutions that opt out under​
subdivision 5, paragraph (c), and post the list of the institutions on the office's website.​

Subd. 7. Assistance from the Office of Higher Education. The office shall assist foster grant applicants​
eligible under subdivision 3 by providing assistance in:​

(1) completing the foster grant application; and​

(2) accessing and applying for available federal and state financial aid resources under subdivision 5.​

Subd. 8. Report. (a) The office shall prepare an anonymized report to be submitted annually to the​
chairperson and minority chairperson of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over higher education​
that contains:​

(1) the number of students receiving foster grants and the institutions attended; and​

(2) annual retention and graduation data on students receiving foster grants.​

(b) The report required under this subdivision may be combined with other legislatively required reporting.​
If submitted as a separate report, the report must be submitted by January 15.​

History: 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 7; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 14; 2023 c 44 s 4; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 14,15; 2024 c​
127 art 35 s 14,15​

136A.125 CHILD CARE GRANTS.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment. A child care grant program is established under the supervision of the​
office. The program makes money available to eligible students to reduce the costs of child care while​
attending an eligible postsecondary institution. The office shall develop policies and adopt rules as necessary​
to implement and administer the program.​

Subd. 2. Eligible students. (a) An applicant is eligible for a child care grant if the applicant:​

(1) is a resident of the state of Minnesota or the applicant's spouse is a resident of the state of Minnesota;​
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(2) has a child 12 years of age or younger, or 14 years of age or younger who is disabled as defined in​
section 125A.02, and who is receiving or will receive care on a regular basis from a licensed or legal,​
nonlicensed caregiver;​

(3) is income eligible as determined by the office's policies and rules, but is not a recipient of assistance​
from the Minnesota family investment program;​

(4) has not received child care grant funds for a period of ten semesters or the equivalent;​

(5) is pursuing a nonsectarian program or course of study that applies to an undergraduate, graduate, or​
professional degree, diploma, or certificate;​

(6) is enrolled in at least one credit in an undergraduate program or one credit in a graduate or professional​
program in an eligible institution; and​

(7) is in good academic standing and making satisfactory academic progress.​

(b) A student is entitled to an additional semester or equivalent of grant eligibility and will be considered​
to be in continuing enrollment status upon return if the student withdraws from enrollment:​

(1) for active military service after December 31, 2002, because the student was ordered to active military​
service as defined in section 190.05, subdivision 5b or 5c;​

(2) for a serious health condition, while under the care of a medical professional, that substantially limits​
the student's ability to complete the term; or​

(3) while providing care that substantially limits the student's ability to complete the term to the student's​
spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition.​

Subd. 3. Eligible institution. A Minnesota public postsecondary institution, a Minnesota private,​
baccalaureate degree-granting college or university, a Minnesota nonprofit two-year vocational technical​
school granting associate degrees, or a Minnesota postsecondary institution offering only graduate or​
professional degrees is eligible to receive child care funds from the office and disburse them to eligible​
students.​

Subd. 4. Amount and length of grants. (a) The maximum award to the applicant shall be $6,500 for​
each eligible child per academic year, except that the campus financial aid officer may apply to the office​
for approval to increase grants by up to ten percent to compensate for higher market charges for infant care​
in a community.​

(b) Applicants with contributions at or below the qualifying contribution as determined by the federal​
need analysis for the federal Pell Grant, as determined by the commissioner, qualify for the maximum award.​
Applicants with contributions as determined by the federal need analysis exceeding that threshold but less​
than 200 percent of the qualifying contribution receive an amount proportional to their contribution as​
determined by the commissioner.​

(c) The academic year award amount must be disbursed by academic term using the following formula:​

(1) the academic year amount described in paragraph (a);​

(2) divided by the number of terms in the academic year; and​

(3) multiplied by the applicable enrollment factor:​
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(i) 1.00 for undergraduate students enrolled in 12 or more semester credits or the equivalent or for​
graduate students enrolled in six or more semester credits or the equivalent;​

(ii) 0.75 for undergraduate students enrolled in nine, ten, or 11 semester credits or the equivalent or for​
graduate students enrolled in five semester credits or the equivalent;​

(iii) 0.50 for undergraduate students enrolled in six, seven, or eight semester credits or the equivalent​
or for graduate students enrolled in three or four semester credits or the equivalent; and​

(iv) 0.25 for undergraduate students enrolled in at least one but less than six semester credits or the​
equivalent or for graduate students enrolled in one or two semester credits or the equivalent.​

(d) Payments shall be made each academic term to the student or to the child care provider, as determined​
by the institution. Institutions may make payments more than once within the academic term.​

Subd. 4a. Rates charged. Child care providers may not charge students receiving grants under this​
section a rate that is higher than the rate charged to private paying clients.​

Subd. 4b. Additional grants. An additional term of child care grant may be awarded to an applicant​
attending classes outside of the regular academic year who meets the requirements in subdivisions 2 and 4.​
The annual maximum grant per eligible child must not exceed the calculated annual amount in subdivision​
4, plus the additional amount in this subdivision, or the student's estimated annual child care cost for not​
more than 40 hours per week per eligible child, whichever is less.​

Subd. 4c. Unexpended balance. Any unexpended appropriation in the child care grant program in the​
first year of a biennium shall be used to augment the maximum award in subdivision 4 in the second year​
of the biennium.​

Subd. 5. [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 3 s 60]​

Subd. 6. Yearly allocations to institutions. The office shall base yearly allocations on the need for​
funds using relevant factors as determined by the office in consultation with the institutions. Up to five​
percent of the money spent on students' child care awards, as determined by the office, may be used for an​
institution's administrative expenses related to the child care grant program. Any money designated, but not​
used, for this purpose must be reallocated to child care grants. An institution may carry forward or backward​
ten percent of its annual allocation to be used for awards in the previous or subsequent academic year.​

Subd. 7. Monitoring and reallocation. The office shall establish procedures to (1) continually monitor​
the use of funds throughout the year; (2) identify areas of unmet need for grants; and (3) redistribute available​
funds in a timely manner to meet the needs of eligible recipients.​

Subd. 8. Information. The office shall develop and provide information about the program to eligible​
postsecondary institutions, human service agencies, and potential applicants.​

Subd. 9. Report. Institutions must submit reports, when requested by the office, on program activity​
including the number of students served, the child care costs, and the number of students on a waiting list​
for available funds. The reports must also include the institution's method of prioritizing applicants if​
insufficient funds are available.​

History: 1989 c 293 s 28; 1991 c 356 art 8 s 9-13; 1994 c 532 art 2 s 6-9; 1994 c 647 art 8 s 26; 1995​
c 212 art 3 s 27,28,59; 1997 c 85 art 4 s 4; 1997 c 183 art 2 s 6; 1998 c 397 art 11 s 3; 1999 c 159 s 25;​
1999 c 214 art 2 s 7; 2000 c 489 art 11 s 4; 1Sp2001 c 1 art 2 s 13,14; 2003 c 133 art 2 s 14,15; 2005 c 56​
s 1; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 23,24,60; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 21,22; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 8,9; 2014 c 149 s 16,17; 2015​
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c 69 art 2 s 7-9; 2016 c 189 art 1 s 11,12; 2017 c 89 art 2 s 9,10; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 8; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s​
8,9; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 15​

136A.1251 Subdivision 1. [Renumbered 136A.915, subdivision 1]​

Subd. 2. [Renumbered 136A.915, subd 2]​

Subd. 3. [Renumbered 136A.915, subd 3]​

Subd. 4. [Renumbered 136A.915, subd 4]​

Subd. 5. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

136A.126 INDIAN SCHOLARSHIPS.​

Subdivision 1. Student eligibility. The commissioner shall establish procedures for the distribution of​
scholarships to a Minnesota resident student as defined under section 136A.101, subdivision 8, who:​

(1) is of one-fourth or more Indian ancestry or is an enrolled member or citizen of a federally recognized​
American Indian or Canadian First Nations tribe;​

(2) has applied for other existing state and federal scholarship and grant programs;​

(3) is meeting satisfactory academic progress as defined under section 136A.101, subdivision 10;​

(4) is not in default, as defined by the office, of a federal or state student educational loan;​

(5) if enrolled in an undergraduate program, is eligible or would be eligible to receive a federal Pell​
Grant or a state grant based on the federal needs analysis and is enrolled for nine semester credits per term​
or more, or the equivalent; and​

(6) if enrolled in a graduate program, demonstrates a remaining financial need in the award amount​
calculation and is enrolled, per term, on a half-time basis or more as defined by the postsecondary institution.​

Subd. 2. Eligible programs. Scholarships must be for enrollment at an eligible institution that is​
accredited. Scholarships may also be given to students attending eligible institutions that are in candidacy​
status for obtaining full accreditation, and are eligible for and receiving federal financial aid programs.​
Students are also eligible for scholarships when enrolled in eligible institutions that have joint programs​
with other accredited higher education institutions.​

Subd. 3. Cost of attendance. The total cost of attendance shall include tuition and required fees charged​
by the institution and the campus-based budget used for federal financial aid for food, housing, books,​
supplies, transportation, and miscellaneous expenses.​

Subd. 4. Award amount. (a) Each student shall be awarded a scholarship based on the federal need​
analysis. Applicants are encouraged to apply for all other sources of financial aid. The amount of the award​
must not exceed the applicant's cost of attendance, as defined in subdivision 3, after accounting for:​

(1) the results of the federal need analysis;​

(2) the amount of a federal Pell Grant award for which the applicant is eligible;​

(3) the amount of the state grant;​

(4) the federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant;​
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(5) the sum of all institutional grants, scholarships, tuition waivers, and tuition remission amounts;​

(6) the sum of all Tribal scholarships;​

(7) the amount of any other state and federal gift aid; and​

(8) the amount of any private grants or scholarships.​

(b) The award shall be paid directly to the postsecondary institution where the student receives federal​
financial aid.​

(c) Awards are limited as follows:​

(1) the maximum award for an undergraduate is $4,000 per academic year;​

(2) the maximum award for a graduate student is $6,000 per academic year; and​

(3) the minimum award for all students is $100 per academic year.​

(d) Scholarships may not be given to any Indian student for more than three years of study for a two-year​
degree, certificate, or diploma program or five years of study for a four-year degree program at the​
undergraduate level and for more than five years at the graduate level. Students may acquire only one degree​
per level and one terminal graduate degree. Scholarships may not be given to any student for more than ten​
years including five years of undergraduate study and five years of graduate study.​

(e) Scholarships may be given to an eligible student for four quarters, three semesters, or the equivalent​
during the course of a single fiscal year. In calculating the award amount, the office must use the same​
calculation it would for any other term.​

Subd. 5. Awarding procedure. (a) Awards must be made on a first-come, first-served basis in the order​
complete applications are received. If there are multiple applications with identical completion dates, those​
applications are further sorted by application receipt date.​

(b) Awards are made to eligible students until the appropriation is expended.​

(c) Applicants not receiving a grant and for whom the office has received a completed application are​
placed on a waiting list in order of application completion date.​

History: Ex1959 c 71 art 5 s 36; 1971 c 176 s 1; 1977 c 384 s 1; 1983 c 258 s 28; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 12;​
1988 c 629 s 28; 1988 c 718 art 3 s 3; 1993 c 224 art 9 s 32; art 13 s 40; 1993 c 374 s 23; 1997 c 192 s 20;​
1998 c 397 art 2 s 107,164; 1998 c 398 art 5 s 55; 2000 c 489 art 3 s 4; 1Sp2001 c 6 art 2 s 49; 1Sp2005​
c 5 art 2 s 70; 2007 c 146 art 2 s 28, 47; 2008 c 298 s 5; 2010 c 364 s 8,9; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149​
s 18-20; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 10,11; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 17​

136A.127 Subdivision 1. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 2. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 3. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 4. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 5. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 6. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​
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Subd. 7. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 8. [Repealed, 2009 c 95 art 2 s 46]​

Subd. 9. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 9b. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 10. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 10a. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 11. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 12. [Repealed, 2009 c 95 art 2 s 46]​

Subd. 13. [Repealed, 2009 c 95 art 2 s 46]​

Subd. 14. [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

136A.1274 UNDERREPRESENTED STUDENT TEACHER GRANTS.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment. The commissioner of the Office of Higher Education must establish a​
grant program for student teaching stipends for low-income students who belong to an underrepresented​
racial or ethnic group.​

Subd. 2. Eligibility. To be eligible for a grant under this section, a student teacher must:​

(1) be enrolled in a Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board-approved teacher preparation​
program that requires at least 12 weeks of student teaching in order to be recommended for any Tier 3​
teaching license;​

(2) demonstrate financial need based on criteria established by the commissioner under subdivision 3;​

(3) be meeting satisfactory academic progress as defined under section 136A.101, subdivision 10; and​

(4) belong to a racial or ethnic group underrepresented in the Minnesota teacher workforce.​

Subd. 3. Administration. (a) The commissioner must establish an application process and other guidelines​
for implementing this program. The commissioner must notify grant recipients of their award amounts by​
the following dates:​

(1) for fall student teaching placements, recipients must be notified by August 15;​

(2) for spring student teaching placements, recipients must be notified by December 1; and​

(3) for summer student teaching placements, recipients must be notified by May 1.​

These notification deadlines do not apply in cases where grants are awarded to student teachers who applied​
after application deadlines and funds remained after the initial round of grants were awarded.​

(b) The commissioner must determine each academic year the stipend amount up to $7,500 based on​
the amount of available funding, the number of eligible applicants, and the financial need of the applicants.​

(c) The commissioner must give equal consideration to all eligible applicants regardless of the order the​
application was received before the application deadline.​
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(d) If there are insufficient funds to provide an award to all eligible applicants, the commissioner shall​
prioritize the awards to eligible applicants based on:​

(1) the financial need of an applicant; and​

(2) the statewide distribution of funds.​

Subd. 4. Reporting. By February 15 of each year, the commissioner must submit a report on the details​
of the program under this section to the legislative committees with jurisdiction over E-12 and higher​
education finance and policy. The report must include the following information:​

(1) the number of eligible applicants and the number of teacher candidates receiving an award, each​
broken down by postsecondary institution;​

(2) the total number of awards, the total dollar amount of all awards, and the average award amount;​
and​

(3) other summary data identified by the commissioner as outcome indicators.​

History: 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 12​

136A.1275 STUDENT TEACHER GRANTS IN SHORTAGE AREAS.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment. (a) The commissioner of the Office of Higher Education must establish​
a grant program for student teaching stipends for low-income students who intend to teach in a license​
shortage area or rural school district after graduating and receiving their teaching license.​

(b) "License shortage area" means a licensure area that is identified as a shortage area by the Professional​
Educator Licensing and Standards Board in coordination with the commissioner using data collected for the​
teacher supply and demand report under section 122A.091, subdivision 5, provided that only licensure areas​
within the following fields may be identified as a license shortage area for purposes of this section:​

(1) English as a second language;​

(2) early childhood;​

(3) special education;​

(4) career and technical education;​

(5) science, technology, engineering, arts, and math; and​

(6) world languages.​

(c) "Rural school district" means a school district with fewer than 30 resident pupil units under section​
126C.05, subdivision 6, per square mile.​

Subd. 2. Eligibility. To be eligible for a grant under this section, a student teacher must:​

(1) be enrolled in a Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board-approved teacher preparation​
program that requires at least 12 weeks of student teaching;​

(2) demonstrate financial need based on criteria established by the commissioner under subdivision 3;​

(3) be meeting satisfactory academic progress as defined under section 136A.101, subdivision 10; and​
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(4) intend to teach in a rural school district or intend to teach in a license shortage area. Intent to teach​
in a license shortage area must be verified based on the teacher license field the student is pursuing. To​
verify intent to teach in a rural school district, the student must submit to the commissioner a completed​
affidavit, prescribed by the commissioner, affirming the student's intent to teach in a rural district following​
graduation. Upon obtaining employment after graduating, the teacher shall report to the office the name of​
the school district in which the teacher is teaching.​

Subd. 3. Administration. (a) The commissioner must establish an application process and other guidelines​
for implementing this program. The commissioner must notify grant recipients of their award amounts by​
the following dates:​

(1) for fall student teaching placements, recipients must be notified by August 15;​

(2) for spring student teaching placements, recipients must be notified by December 1; and​

(3) for summer student teaching placements, recipients must be notified by May 1.​

These notification deadlines do not apply in cases where grants are awarded to student teachers who applied​
after application deadlines and funds remained after the initial round of grants were awarded.​

(b) The commissioner must determine each academic year the stipend amount up to $7,500 based on​
the amount of available funding, the number of eligible applicants, and the financial need of the applicants.​

(c) The commissioner must give equal consideration to all eligible applicants regardless of the order the​
application was received before the application deadline.​

(d) If there are insufficient funds to provide an award to all eligible applicants, the commissioner shall​
prioritize the awards to eligible participants based on:​

(1) the financial need of an applicant; and​

(2) whether the applicant intends to teach in both a rural school district and a license shortage area.​

Subd. 4. Reporting. (a) By February 1 of each year, the commissioner must submit a report to the chairs​
and ranking minority members of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over E-12 and higher education​
finance and policy. The report must include the following information:​

(1) the total number of awards, the total dollar amount of all awards, and the average award amount;​

(2) the number of eligible applicants and the number of student teachers receiving an award, each broken​
down by postsecondary institution;​

(3) the licensure areas and school districts in which the student teachers taught; and​

(4) other summary data identified by the commissioner as outcome indicators, including how many​
student teachers awarded a rural teacher grant were employed in a rural school district after graduation.​

(b) By July 1 of each odd numbered year, the commissioner must update and post on the office's website​
a list of licensure shortage areas eligible for a grant under this section.​

History: 2016 c 189 art 25 s 59; 2017 c 89 art 2 s 11; 1Sp2017 c 5 art 12 s 22; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 8,9;​
2020 c 109 art 1 s 9; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 13​
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136A.1276 ALTERNATIVE TEACHER PREPARATION GRANT PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings​
given them.​

(b) "Alternative teacher preparation program" means an alternative teacher preparation program under​
section 122A.2451, subdivision 5, or an experimental teacher preparation program under section 122A.09,​
subdivision 10.​

(c) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of the Office of Higher Education.​

(d) "Program" means a teacher preparation curriculum leading to specific licensure areas.​

(e) "Shortage area" means:​

(1) licensure fields and economic development regions reported by the commissioner of education as​
experiencing a teacher shortage; and​

(2) economic development regions where there is a shortage of licensed teachers who reflect the racial​
or ethnic diversity of students in the region.​

(f) "Unit" means an institution or defined subdivision of the institution that has primary responsibility​
for overseeing and delivering teacher preparation programs.​

Subd. 2. Establishment; eligibility. (a) The commissioner, in consultation with the Professional Educator​
Licensing and Standards Board, must establish and administer a program annually awarding grants to eligible​
alternative teacher preparation programs consistent with this section.​

(b) To be eligible to receive a grant, an alternative teacher preparation program must certify that it:​

(1) is working to fill Minnesota's teacher shortage areas; and​

(2) is a school district, charter school, or nonprofit corporation organized under chapter 317A or under​
section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 for an education-related purpose that has been​
operating continuously for at least three years in Minnesota or any other state.​

(c) The commissioner must give priority to applicants based in Minnesota when awarding grants under​
this section.​

Subd. 3. Use of grants. (a) An alternative teacher preparation program receiving a grant under this​
section must use the grant to:​

(1) establish initial unit approval to become an alternative teacher preparation program;​

(2) expand alternative teacher preparation programs by expanding program approval to other licensure​
areas identified as shortage areas by the commissioner of education;​

(3) recruit, select, and train teachers who reflect the racial or ethnic diversity of students in Minnesota;​
or​

(4) establish professional development programs for teachers who have obtained teaching licenses​
through alternative teacher preparation programs.​
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An alternative teacher preparation program may expend grant funds on regional management and operations,​
development, and central support services, including financial support and support for technology and human​
services.​

(b) An alternative teacher preparation program may use grant funds awarded under this section as a​
match for nonstate funds, subject to paragraph (a).​

(c) Appropriations made to this program do not cancel and are available until expended.​

Subd. 4. Report. An alternative teacher preparation program receiving a grant under this section must​
submit a report to the commissioner and the Professional Educator Licensing and Standards Board on the​
grantee's ability to fill teacher shortage areas and positively impact student achievement where data are​
available and do not identify individual teachers. A grant recipient must submit the report required under​
this subdivision by January 31, 2018, and each subsequent year this particular grant receives allocated​
funding. The report must include disaggregated data regarding:​

(1) the racial and ethnic diversity of teachers and teacher candidates licensed through the program; and​

(2) program participant placement.​

History: 1Sp2017 c 5 art 2 s 44; art 12 s 22; 2019 c 50 art 1 s 36; 1Sp2025 c 10 art 12 s 5​

136A.128 MS 2020 [Renumbered 119B.251]​

136A.129 [Repealed, 1Sp2017 c 1 art 1 s 44]​

136A.13 [Repealed, 1971 c 862 s 6]​

136A.131 ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS.​

Subdivision 1. Accounts. The office shall establish and maintain appropriate accounts and related records​
of each recipient of a grant.​

Subd. 2. Rules, payment and accounting. The office shall provide by rule the method of payment of​
the grant awarded and prescribe a system of accounting to be kept by the institution selected by a recipient.​

Subd. 3. Certification to commissioner of management and budget. Upon proper verification for​
payment of a grant, the office shall certify to the commissioner of management and budget the amount of​
the current payment to be made to the grant recipient in conformance with the rule of the office governing​
the method of payment.​

Subd. 4. Recovery of overpayments. (a) A recipient of a grant must reimburse the office for overpayment.​
The amount of reimbursement is the difference between the amount received and the amount of actual​
entitlement as calculated by the office after it makes its final findings under section 136A.121 and rules​
implemented under that section. The amount of reimbursement may include any costs or expenses, including​
reasonable attorney fees, incurred by the agency in collecting the debt. The reimbursement is recoverable​
from the recipient or the recipient's estate. The agency may institute a civil action, if necessary for recovery.​

(b) The recipient must not receive additional awards until the overpayment is recovered or the recipient​
is making payments under an approved plan. Additional awards for which the recipient is eligible may be​
used to recover an unreimbursed overpayment.​

History: 1971 c 862 s 5; 1973 c 492 s 14; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1989 c 293 s 30; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2009​
c 101 art 2 s 109​
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136A.1311 CASH FLOW.​

The office may ask the commissioner of management and budget to lend general fund money to the​
grant account to ease cash flow difficulties. The office must first certify to the commissioner that there will​
be adequate refunds to the account to repay the loan. The commissioner shall use the refunds to make​
repayment to the general fund of the full amount loaned. Money necessary to meet cash flow difficulties in​
the state grant program is appropriated to the commissioner of management and budget for loans to the​
office.​

History: 1991 c 356 art 8 s 14; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2009 c 101 art 2 s 109;​
2014 c 149 s 22​

136A.1312 FINANCIAL AID ADMINISTRATOR, PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENT.​

Nothing in this chapter or in the office's rules shall be interpreted as limiting the ability of student​
financial aid administrators, on the basis of adequate documentation, to adjust a student's dependency status​
or elements of a student's cost of attendance for federal needs analysis calculation to allow for treatment of​
individual students with special circumstances, with the exception of the cost of attendance defined under​
section 136A.121, subdivision 6. In addition, nothing in this chapter or in the office's rules shall be interpreted​
as limiting the ability of the student financial aid administrator to use supplementary information about the​
financial status of eligible applicants with special circumstances in selecting recipients of state financial aid​
and determining the amount of awards. Nothing in this section precludes a financial aid administrator from​
establishing an appeals process for other extenuating circumstances.​

History: 1996 c 398 s 31; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 18​

136A.1313 FINANCIAL AID AUDITS.​

Beginning with audits for fiscal year 1996, in place of the audits provided by the office, public institutions​
that administer state grants under decentralized delivery may arrange for audits of state financial aid awards​
and tuition reciprocity recipients in conjunction with their audits for federal financial aid. Audits must be​
conducted in compliance with guidelines and materials prepared by the office. The office shall develop a​
review process including procedures for responding to audit exceptions. All other institutions under​
decentralized delivery may arrange for audits under this section beginning with audits for fiscal year 1997.​

History: 1996 c 398 s 32​

136A.132 [Repealed, 1991 c 356 art 8 s 24]​

136A.133 [Repealed, 1984 c 654 art 4 s 30]​

136A.134 [Repealed, 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 26]​

136A.1351 [Repealed, 1990 c 591 art 4 s 9; 1991 c 356 art 8 s 24; 1995 c 234 art 8 s 48]​

136A.1352 [Repealed, 1990 c 591 art 4 s 9; 1995 c 234 art 8 s 48]​

136A.1353 [Repealed, 1990 c 591 art 4 s 9; 1995 c 234 art 8 s 48]​

136A.1354 [Repealed, 1990 c 591 art 4 s 9; 1995 c 234 art 8 s 48]​

136A.1355 [Renumbered 144.1494]​

136A.1356 [Renumbered 144.1495]​
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136A.1357 [Renumbered 144.1496]​

136A.1358 [Renumbered 144.1497]​

136A.1359 [Repealed, 1999 c 214 art 2 s 24]​

136A.136 [Repealed, 1999 c 214 art 2 s 24]​

136A.14 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.141 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.142 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.143 [Repealed, 1992 c 513 art 1 s 28]​

136A.144 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.145 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.146 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.1465 NORTH STAR PROMISE.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. The following terms have the meanings given:​

(1) "eligible student" means a resident student under section 136A.101, subdivision 8, who is enrolled​
in any public postsecondary educational institution or Tribal college and who meets the eligibility requirements​
in subdivision 2;​

(2) "gift aid" includes:​

(i) all federal financial aid that is not a loan or pursuant to a work-study program;​

(ii) state financial aid, unless designated for other expenses, that is not a loan or pursuant to a work-study​
program;​

(iii) institutional financial aid, including a grant, scholarship, tuition waiver, fellowship stipend, or other​
payment, unless designated for other expenses, that is not a loan or pursuant to a work-study program; and​

(iv) all private financial aid that is not a loan or pursuant to a work-study program.​

Financial aid from the state, public postsecondary educational institutions, and Tribal colleges that is​
specifically designated for other expenses is not gift aid for purposes of the North Star Promise scholarship.​

(3) "other expenses" includes books, required supplies, child care, emergency assistance, food, and​
housing;​

(4) "public postsecondary educational institution" means an institution operated by this state, or the​
Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota;​

(5) "recognized cost of attendance" has the meaning given in United States Code, title 20, chapter 28,​
subchapter IV, part F, section 1087ll;​

(6) "Tribal college" means a college defined in section 136A.1796, subdivision 1, paragraph (d); and​

(7) "tuition and fees" means the eligible resident tuition and mandatory fees charged by an institution.​
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Subd. 1a. Resident tuition. (a) The Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota is requested to​
adopt a policy to charge resident tuition rates for all students eligible for North Star Promise.​

(b) The Board of Trustees of the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities must adopt a policy to charge​
resident tuition rates for all students eligible for North Star Promise.​

Subd. 2. Conditions for eligibility. A scholarship may be awarded to an eligible student who:​

(1) has completed the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) or the state aid application by​
30 days after the start of the term for which a scholarship is being awarded;​

(2) has a family adjusted gross income below $80,000;​

(3) is a graduate of a secondary school or its equivalent, or is 17 years of age or over and has met all​
requirements for admission as a student to an eligible college or university;​

(4) has not completed the degree requirements for the first baccalaureate degree at the time the scholarship​
is awarded;​

(5) is enrolled in at least one credit per fall, spring, or summer semester;​

(6) is enrolled in a program or course of study that applies to a degree, diploma, or certificate;​

(7) is not in default, as defined by the office, of any federal or state student educational loan;​

(8) is not more than 30 days in arrears in court-ordered child support that is collected or enforced by the​
public authority responsible for child support enforcement or, if the applicant is more than 30 days in arrears​
in court-ordered child support that is collected or enforced by the public authority responsible for child​
support enforcement, but is complying with a written payment agreement under section 518A.69 or order​
for arrearages;​

(9) has not been convicted of or pled nolo contendere or guilty to a crime involving fraud in obtaining​
federal Title IV funds within the meaning of Code of Federal Regulations, subtitle B, chapter VI, part 668,​
subpart C; and​

(10) is meeting satisfactory academic progress as defined in section 136A.101, subdivision 10.​

Subd. 3. Scholarship. (a) Beginning in the fall term of the 2024-2025 academic year, scholarships shall​
be awarded to eligible students in an amount not to exceed 100 percent of tuition and fees after gift aid is​
deducted.​

(b) For the 2024-2025, 2025-2026, and 2026-2027 academic years, if funds remain after scholarships​
are awarded under paragraph (a), supplemental grants shall be awarded to eligible students in an amount up​
to 50 percent of the amount of a Pell grant the student would receive based on household size, family adjusted​
gross income, and results of the federal needs analysis, not to exceed the student's recognized cost of​
attendance. The commissioner may adjust the supplemental grant amount based on the availability of funds.​

Subd. 4. Maintain current levels of institutional assistance. (a) Commencing with the 2024-2025​
academic year, a public postsecondary educational institution or Tribal college shall not reduce the institutional​
gift aid offered or awarded to a student who is eligible to receive funds under this program unless the student's​
gift aid exceeds the student's annual recognized cost of attendance.​
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(b) The public postsecondary educational institution or Tribal college may reduce the institutional gift​
aid offer of a student who is eligible to receive funds under this program by no more than the amount of the​
student's gift aid that is in excess of the student's annual recognized cost of attendance.​

(c) The public postsecondary educational institution or Tribal college shall not consider receipt or​
anticipated receipt of funds under this program when considering a student for qualification for institutional​
gift aid.​

(d) To ensure financial aid is maximized, a public postsecondary educational institution or Tribal college​
is encouraged to implement efforts to avoid scholarship displacement through consultation with the Office​
of Higher Education.​

Subd. 5. Duration of scholarship authorized; scholarship paid to institution. (a) Each scholarship​
is for a period of one semester. A scholarship may be renewed provided that the eligible student continues​
to meet the conditions of eligibility.​

(b) Scholarships may be provided to an eligible student pursuing the completion of a certificate or an​
associate degree who has not previously received the scholarship for four full-time semesters or the equivalent.​
Scholarships may be provided to an eligible student pursuing the completion of a bachelor's degree who has​
not previously received the scholarship for eight full-time semesters or the equivalent. The maximum for​
which a student is eligible is a total of eight full-time semesters or the equivalent. Courses taken that qualify​
as developmental education or below college-level shall be excluded from the limit.​

(c) A student is entitled to an additional semester or the equivalent of grant eligibility if the student​
withdraws from enrollment:​

(1) for active military service because the student was ordered to active military service as defined in​
section 190.05, subdivision 5b or 5c;​

(2) for a serious health condition, while under the care of a medical professional, that substantially limits​
the student's ability to complete the term; or​

(3) while providing care that substantially limits the student's ability to complete the term to the student's​
spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition.​

(d) The scholarship must be paid directly to the eligible institution where the student is enrolled.​

Subd. 6. Termination of scholarship authorized. A scholarship is terminated upon occurrence of:​

(1) failure to meet satisfactory academic progress as defined in section 136A.101, subdivision 10; or​

(2) substantial noncompliance by the eligible student with the requirements of the program.​

Subd. 7. Institutions administering certain financial aid programs. Public postsecondary institutions​
and Tribal colleges administering institutional financial aid programs for students with a family adjusted​
gross income below $80,000 that provide student awards for up to or more than 100 percent of tuition, 100​
percent of tuition and fees, or 100 percent of the cost of attendance, shall provide the Office of Higher​
Education with student level data on the recipients of those awards and the program funds awarded per term.​
The information under this subdivision is necessary for the office to accurately complete reporting​
requirements under section 136A.121, subdivision 19.​

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota​
Revisor of Statutes​

136A.1465​MINNESOTA STATUTES 2025​43​



Subd. 8. Account established; appropriation. An account is created in the special revenue fund for​
receiving money to provide scholarship awards. Money deposited in the account is appropriated to the​
commissioner of the Office of Higher Education for scholarship awards.​

Subd. 9. Office administration. The office is authorized to administer the program. If funds are​
insufficient, the office shall determine the scholarship amount or number of scholarships awarded. If a​
student withdraws or is no longer enrolled during a semester in which a scholarship was awarded, the office​
may determine how this will affect the scholarship.​

Subd. 10. Report. The commissioner of higher education shall submit a preliminary report by September​
1, 2025, and an annual report beginning February 15, 2026, to the chairs and ranking minority members of​
the legislative committees with jurisdiction over higher education, on the details of the program, including​
the:​

(1) status of the scholarship fund; and​

(2) North Star Promise participation data aggregated for each eligible institution to show the:​

(i) number of eligible students who received scholarships in the prior academic year;​

(ii) average and total award amounts;​

(iii) summary demographic data on award recipients;​

(iv) total number of students enrolled in eligible institutions in the prior academic year;​

(v) retention rates of participating students; and​

(vi) number of eligible students who graduated with a degree and, for each eligible student, the number​
of consecutive semesters and nonconsecutive semesters attended prior to graduation.​

History: 2023 c 41 art 2 s 19; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 16-20; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 16-20; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2​
s 20-22​

STUDENT LOAN PROGRAMS​

136A.15 DEFINITIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Scope. For purposes of sections 136A.15 to 136A.1702, the terms defined in this section​
have the meanings given them.​

Subd. 2. MS 2018 [Repealed, 2019 c 64 art 2 s 45]​

Subd. 3. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 4. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 5. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 6. Eligible institution. "Eligible institution" means an institution that meets the eligibility​
requirements under section 136A.155.​

Subd. 7. MS 2018 [Repealed, 2019 c 64 art 2 s 45]​
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Subd. 8. Eligible student. "Eligible student" means a student who is officially registered or accepted​
for enrollment at an eligible institution in Minnesota or a Minnesota resident who is officially registered as​
a student or accepted for enrollment at an eligible institution in another state. Non-Minnesota residents are​
eligible students if they are enrolled or accepted for enrollment in a minimum of one course of at least 30​
days in length during the academic year that requires physical attendance at an eligible institution located​
in Minnesota. Non-Minnesota resident students enrolled exclusively during the academic year in​
correspondence courses or courses offered over the Internet are not eligible students. Non-Minnesota resident​
students not physically attending classes in Minnesota due to enrollment in a study abroad program for 12​
months or less are eligible students. Non-Minnesota residents enrolled in study abroad programs exceeding​
12 months are not eligible students. An eligible student, for section 136A.1701, means a student who gives​
informed consent authorizing the disclosure of data specified in section 136A.162, paragraph (c), to a​
consumer credit reporting agency.​

Subd. 9. Minnesota resident. "Minnesota resident" means a student who meets one of the following​
conditions:​

(1) a student who has resided in Minnesota for purposes other than postsecondary education for at least​
12 months without being enrolled at a postsecondary educational institution for more than five credits in​
any term;​

(2) a dependent student whose parent or legal guardian resides in Minnesota at the time the student​
applies;​

(3) a student who graduated from a Minnesota high school, if the student was a resident of Minnesota​
during the student's period of attendance at the Minnesota high school and the student is physically attending​
a Minnesota postsecondary educational institution; or​

(4) a student who, after residing in the state for a minimum of one year, earned a high school equivalency​
certificate in Minnesota.​

History: 1967 c 615 s 1; 1967 c 894 s 2; 1973 c 605 s 3,4; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1981 c 300 s 2; 1983 c 258​
s 46; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 47; 1989 c 293 s 33-35; 1990 c 591 art 6 s 5; 1994 c 532 art 2 s 10; 1995 c 212 art 3​
s 32,33,59; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2006 c 282 art 8 s 4; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 25,26; 2010 c 364 s 12; 2013 c​
99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 23; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 10​

136A.155 ADDITIONAL INSTITUTION ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS.​

A postsecondary institution is an eligible institution for purposes of sections 136A.15 to 136A.1702, if​
the institution:​

(1) meets the eligibility requirements under section 136A.103; or​

(2) is operated publicly or privately in another state and is approved by the United States Secretary of​
Education.​

History: 2010 c 364 s 13; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 23​

136A.16 POWERS AND DUTIES OF OFFICE.​

Subdivision 1. Designation. Notwithstanding chapter 16C, the office is designated as the administrative​
agency for carrying out the purposes and terms of sections 136A.15 to 136A.1704. The office may establish​
one or more loan programs.​
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Subd. 2. Rules, policies, and conditions. The office shall adopt policies and may prescribe appropriate​
rules and conditions to carry out the purposes of sections 136A.15 to 136A.1704.​

Subd. 3. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 4. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 5. Agencies. The office may contract with loan servicers, collection agencies, credit bureaus, or​
any other person, to carry out the purposes of sections 136A.15 to 136A.1704.​

Subd. 6. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 7. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 8. Investment. Money made available to the office that is not immediately needed for the purposes​
of sections 136A.15 to 136A.1704 may be invested by the office. The money must be invested in bonds,​
certificates of indebtedness, and other fixed income securities, except preferred stocks, which are legal​
investments for the permanent school fund. The money may also be invested in prime quality commercial​
paper that is eligible for investment in the state employees retirement fund. All interest and profits from​
such investments inure to the benefit of the office or may be pledged for security of bonds issued by the​
office or its predecessors.​

Subd. 9. Staff. The office may employ the professional and clerical staff the commissioner deems​
necessary for the proper administration of the loan programs established and defined by sections 136A.15​
to 136A.1704.​

Subd. 10. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 11. [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 2 s 22]​

Subd. 12. Records. The office shall establish and maintain appropriate accounting and related records.​

Subd. 13. Subject to suit. The office may sue and be sued.​

Subd. 14. Notes. The office may sell at public or private sale, at the price or prices determined by the​
office, any note or other instrument or obligation evidencing or securing a loan made by the office or its​
predecessor, including the Minnesota Higher Education Coordinating Board and the Minnesota Higher​
Education Services Office.​

Subd. 15. Letters of credit; surety. The office may obtain municipal bond insurance, letters of credit,​
surety obligations, or similar agreements from financial institutions.​

Subd. 16. Interest rate swaps and other agreements. (a) The office may enter into interest rate exchange​
or swap agreements, hedges, forward purchase or sale agreements, or other comparable interest rate protection​
agreements with a third party in connection with the issuance or proposed issuance of bonds, outstanding​
bonds or notes, or existing comparable interest rate protection agreements.​

(b) The agreements authorized by this subdivision include without limitation master agreements, options,​
or contracts to enter into those agreements in the future and related agreements, including, without limitation,​
agreements to provide credit enhancement, liquidity, or remarketing.​

(c) The agreements authorized by this subdivision may be entered into on the basis of negotiation with​
a qualified third party or through a competitive proposal process on terms and conditions as and with​
covenants and provisions approved by the office and may include, without limitation:​
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(1) provisions establishing reserves;​

(2) pledging assets or revenues of the office for current or other payments or termination payments;​

(3) contracting with the other parties to the agreements to provide for the custody, collection, securement,​
investment, and payment of money of the office or money held in trust; or​

(4) requiring the issuance of bonds or other agreements authorized by this section in the future.​

(d) With respect to bonds or notes outstanding or proposed to be issued bearing interest at a variable​
rate, the office may agree to pay sums equal to interest at a fixed rate or at a different variable rate determined​
in accordance with a formula set out in the agreement on an amount not exceeding the outstanding principal​
amount of the bonds or notes at the time of payment in exchange for an agreement by the third party to pay​
sums equal to interest on a like amount at a variable rate determined according to a formula set out in the​
agreement.​

(e) With respect to bonds or notes outstanding or proposed to be issued bearing interest at a fixed rate​
or rates, the office may agree to pay sums equal to interest at a variable rate determined in accordance with​
a formula set out in the agreement on an amount not exceeding the outstanding principal amount of the​
bonds or notes at the time of payment in exchange for an agreement by the third party to pay sums equal to​
interest on a like amount at a fixed rate or rates determined according to a formula set in the agreement.​

(f) Subject to any applicable covenants of the office, payments required to be made by the office under​
the agreement, including termination payments, may be made from amounts pledged or available to pay​
debt service on the bonds or notes with respect to which the agreement was made or from assets of the loan​
capital fund of the office. The office may issue bonds or notes to provide for any payments, including,​
without limitation, a termination payment due or to become due under an agreement authorized under this​
section.​

(g) The authority of the office to enter into interest rate protection agreements under this section is​
limited to agreements related to bonds and notes with an aggregate value of no more than $20,000,000.​

History: 1967 c 615 s 1; 1967 c 894 s 3; 1969 c 6 s 23; 1973 c 605 s 5,6; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1977 c 384​
s 4-7; 1981 c 300 s 3-5; 1983 c 258 s 47; 1985 c 248 s 70; 1989 c 293 s 36-41; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 34,59;​
1997 c 183 art 3 s 12-15; 1998 c 386 art 2 s 43; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 27,28; 2010 c​
364 s 14; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 24,25; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 11-15​

136A.161 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.162 CLASSIFICATION OF DATA.​

(a) Except as provided in paragraphs (b) and (c), data on applicants for financial assistance collected​
and used by the office for student financial aid programs administered by that office are private data on​
individuals as defined in section 13.02, subdivision 12.​

(b) Data on applicants may be disclosed to the commissioner of children, youth, and families to the​
extent necessary to determine eligibility under section 136A.121, subdivision 2, clause (5).​

(c) The following data collected in the Minnesota supplemental loan program under sections 136A.1701​
and 136A.1704 may be disclosed to a consumer credit reporting agency only if the borrower and the cosigner​
give informed consent, according to section 13.05, subdivision 4, at the time of application for a loan:​

(1) the lender-assigned borrower identification number;​
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(2) the name and address of borrower;​

(3) the name and address of cosigner;​

(4) the date the account is opened;​

(5) the outstanding account balance;​

(6) the dollar amount past due;​

(7) the number of payments past due;​

(8) the type of account;​

(9) the responsibility for the account; and​

(10) the status or remarks code.​

History: 1977 c 384 s 8; 1979 c 238 s 5; 1981 c 311 s 39; 1982 c 545 s 24; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 48; 1989 c​
293 s 42; 1991 c 292 art 5 s 3; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2006 c 253 s 6; 2014 c 149 s​
26; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 16; 2024 c 80 art 8 s 70; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 24​

136A.17 [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

136A.1701 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL LOANS.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment of program. The office may provide for programs of loans which may​
be made in lieu of or in addition to loans authorized under sections 136A.15 to 136A.1702 and applicable​
provisions of federal law as provided in this section.​

Subd. 2. Purpose of program. The purpose of the loan programs under this section is to provide financial​
assistance for the postsecondary education of students who are eligible students whether or not such students​
qualify for a loan or loans under other provisions of sections 136A.15 to 136A.1702.​

Loans granted to students may be used solely for educational purposes.​

Subd. 3. Compliance with Civil Rights Act. The student loan programs shall be administered in​
compliance with title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.​

Subd. 4. Terms and conditions of loans. The office may loan money upon such terms and conditions​
as the office may prescribe. Annually, the office must determine the minimum loan amount, the maximum​
loan amount based on program type, the maximum cumulative amount for each program type, and the​
maximum lifetime limit for an individual. The annual amount of the loan must not exceed the cost of​
attendance as determined by the eligible institution less all other financial aid.​

Subd. 5. [Repealed, 2010 c 215 art 2 s 21]​

Subd. 6. Rate of interest. The office shall determine the rate of interest to be charged on loans. The rate​
of interest on student loans however computed, shall not be subject to any provision of state law limiting​
the rate of interest to be charged for a loan of money.​

Subd. 7. Repayment of loans. The office shall establish repayment procedures for loans made under​
this section in accordance with the policies, rules, and conditions authorized under section 136A.16,​
subdivision 2. The office will take into consideration the loan limits and current financial market conditions​
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when establishing repayment terms. The office shall not require a minimum annual payment, though the​
office may require minimum monthly payments.​

Subd. 8. Office powers. The office may take, hold, and administer for any of its purposes, real or personal​
property and money, or any interest therein, and the income therefrom, either absolutely or in trust, for any​
purposes of the office. The office may acquire real or personal property or money for its purposes by purchase​
or lease and by gift, grant, bequest, devise, or loan, and may enter into contracts with profit or nonprofit​
corporations or institutions with the same or similar purposes as will benefit and improve the operation of​
the office and its loan programs.​

Subd. 9. Variable repayment schedules. The office may establish variable loan repayment schedules​
consistent with the need and anticipated income streams of borrowers.​

Subd. 9a. Appeals. The office shall develop an appeals process for recipients of loans made under this​
section who believe there is an unresolved error in the servicing of the loan. The office shall provide recipients​
with a description of the appeals process.​

Subd. 10. Prohibition on use of state money. Except as provided in section 136A.1787, paragraph (a),​
no money originating from state sources in the state treasury shall be made available for student loans under​
this section and all student loans shall be made from money originating from nonstate sources.​

Subd. 11. Data. (a) An eligible institution whose students are eligible to receive funding under sections​
136A.15 to 136A.1795 and licensed or registered under sections 136A.61 to 136A.834 must provide to the​
office data on student enrollment and federal and state financial aid.​

(b) An institution or its agent must provide to the office aggregate and distributional financial or other​
data as determined by the commissioner that is directly related to the responsibilities of the office under this​
chapter. The commissioner may only request aggregate and distributional data after establishing and consulting​
with a data advisory task force to determine the need, content, and detail of the information. Data provided​
by nonpublic institutions under this paragraph is considered nonpublic data under chapter 13.​

Subd. 12. MS 2018 [Repealed, 2019 c 64 art 2 s 45]​

History: 1983 c 258 s 49; 1986 c 444; 1989 c 293 s 44-46; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 15,16; 1995 c 212 art​
3 s 59; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 25,26,60; 2006 c 282 art 8 s 5,6; 2009 c 95 art 2 s 21; 2010 c 215 art 2 s 7,8;​
2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 27; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 10,46; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 17; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 10;​
2023 c 44 s 5; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 21,22; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 21,22; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 25​

136A.1702 LEGISLATIVE OVERSIGHT.​

The office shall notify the chairs of the legislative committees with primary jurisdiction over higher​
education finance of any proposed material change to any of its student loan programs, including loan​
refinancing under section 136A.1704, prior to making the change.​

History: 1983 c 258 s 50; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 312 art 1 s 8​

136A.1703 MS 2020 [Repealed, 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 47]​

136A.1704 STUDENT LOAN REFINANCING.​

The office may refinance student and parent loans as provided by this section and on other terms and​
conditions the office prescribes. The office may establish credit requirements for borrowers and determine​
what types of student and parent loans will be eligible for refinancing. The refinanced loan need not have​
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been made through a loan program administered by the office. Loans shall be made with available funds in​
the loan capital fund under section 136A.1785. The maximum amount of outstanding loans refinanced under​
this section may not exceed $300,000,000. The maximum loan under this section may not exceed $200,000.​

History: 2014 c 312 art 1 s 9; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 14​

136A.171 REVENUE BONDS; ISSUANCE; PROCEEDS.​

The office may issue revenue bonds to obtain funds for loans made in accordance with the provisions​
of this chapter. The aggregate amount of revenue bonds, issued directly by the office, outstanding at any​
one time, not including refunded bonds or otherwise defeased or discharged bonds, shall not exceed​
$850,000,000. Proceeds from the issuance of bonds may be held and invested by the office pending​
disbursement in the form of loans. All interest and profits from the investments shall inure to the benefit of​
the office and shall be available to the office for the same purposes as the proceeds from the sale of revenue​
bonds including, but not limited to, costs incurred in administering loans under this chapter and loan reserve​
funds.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 12; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1975 c 390 s 6; 1977 c 384 s 15; 1979 c 238 s 6; 1980 c 537​
s 1; 1981 c 300 s 9; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 1997 c 183 art 3 s 16; 2003 c 133 art 3 s 3; 2005 c 107 art 2 s​
60; 2014 c 149 s 28​

136A.172 NEGOTIABLE NOTES; ISSUANCE; CONDITIONS.​

The office may from time to time issue negotiable notes for the purpose of sections 136A.15 to 136A.178​
and may from time to time renew any notes by the issuance of new notes, whether the notes to be renewed​
have or have not matured. The office may issue notes partly to renew notes or to discharge other obligations​
then outstanding and partly for any other purpose. The notes may be authorized, sold, executed, and delivered​
in the same manner as bonds. Any resolution or resolutions authorizing notes of the office or any issue​
thereof may contain any provisions which the office is authorized to include in any resolution or resolutions​
authorizing revenue bonds of the office or any issue thereof, and the office may include in any notes any​
terms, covenants, or conditions which it is authorized to include in any bonds. All such notes shall be payable​
solely from the revenue of the office, subject only to any contractual rights of the holders of any of its notes​
or other obligations then outstanding.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 13; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 706 s 53; 1989 c 293 s 47; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59;​
1997 c 7 art 1 s 73​

136A.173 NEGOTIABILITY; BOND ANTICIPATION NOTES; PAYMENT; CONDITIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Revenue bonds and notes. The office may from time to time issue revenue bonds for​
purposes of sections 136A.15 to 136A.178 and all such revenue bonds, notes, bond anticipation notes, or​
other obligations of the office issued pursuant to sections 136A.15 to 136A.178 shall be and are hereby​
declared to be negotiable for all purposes notwithstanding their payment from a limited source and without​
regard to any other law or laws. In anticipation of the sale of such revenue bonds, the office may issue​
negotiable bond anticipation notes and may renew the same from time to time, but the maximum maturity​
of any such note, including renewals thereof, shall not exceed five years from the date of issue of the original​
note. Such notes shall be paid from any revenues of the office available therefor and not otherwise pledged,​
or from the proceeds of sale of the revenue bonds of the office in anticipation of which they were issued.​
The notes shall be issued in the same manner as the revenue bonds. Such notes and the resolution or resolutions​
authorizing the same may contain any provisions, conditions, or limitations which a bond resolution or the​
office may contain.​
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Subd. 2. Payment of bonds and notes. The revenue bonds and notes of every issue shall be payable​
solely out of revenues of the office, subject only to any agreements with the holders of particular revenue​
bonds or notes pledging any particular revenues. Notwithstanding that revenue bonds and notes may be​
payable from a special fund, they shall be and be deemed to be, for all purposes, negotiable instruments,​
subject only to the provisions of the revenue bonds.​

Subd. 3. Issuance, terms, redemption. The revenue bonds may be issued as serial bonds or as term​
bonds, or the office, in its discretion, may issue bonds of both types. The revenue bonds shall be authorized​
by resolution of the commissioner of the office and shall bear such date or dates, mature at such time or​
times, not exceeding 50 years from their respective dates, bear interest at such rate or rates, payable at such​
time or times, be in denominations, be in such form, either coupon or registered, carry such registration​
privileges, be executed in such manner, be payable in lawful money of the United States of America at such​
place or places, and be subject to such terms of redemption, as such resolution or resolutions may provide.​
The revenue bonds or notes may be sold at public or private sale for such price or prices as the office shall​
determine. Pending preparation of the definitive bonds, the office may issue interim receipts or certificates​
which shall be exchanged for such definite bonds.​

Subd. 4. Provisions of resolution authorizing bonds. Any resolution or resolutions authorizing any​
revenue bonds or any issue of revenue bonds may contain provisions which shall be part of the contract with​
the holders of the revenue bonds to be authorized as to:​

(a) The setting aside of reserves or sinking funds, and the regulation and disposition thereof;​

(b) Limitations on the purpose to which the proceeds of sale of any issue of revenue bonds then or​
thereafter to be issued may be applied and pledging such proceeds to secure the payment of the revenue​
bonds or any issue of the revenue bonds;​

(c) Limitations on the issuance of additional bonds, the terms upon which additional bonds may be​
issued and secured and the refunding of outstanding bonds;​

(d) The procedure, if any, by which the terms of any contract with bondholders may be amended or​
abrogated, the amount of bonds the holders of which must consent thereto, and the manner in which such​
consent may be given;​

(e) Defining the acts or omissions to act which shall constitute a default in the duties of the office to​
holders of its obligations and providing the rights and remedies of such holders in the event of a default.​

Subd. 5. Liability. Neither the members of the office nor any person executing the revenue bonds or​
notes shall be liable personally on the revenue bonds or notes or be subject to any personal liability or​
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof.​

Subd. 6. Other powers. The office shall have power out of any funds available therefor to purchase its​
bonds or notes. The office may hold, pledge, cancel or resell such bonds, subject to and in accordance with​
agreements with bondholders.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 14; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 706 s 54; 1989 c 293 s 48; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59;​
1997 c 7 art 1 s 73; 1997 c 183 art 3 s 17; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29​

136A.174 SECURITY FOR BONDS.​

In the discretion of the office any revenue bonds issued under the provisions of sections 136A.15 to​
136A.178 may be secured by a trust agreement by and between the office and a corporate trustee or trustees,​
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which may be any trust company or bank having the powers of a trust company within the state. Such trust​
agreement or the resolution providing for the issuance of such revenue bonds may pledge or assign the​
revenues to be received or proceeds of any contract or contracts pledged or any portion thereof. Such trust​
agreement or resolution providing for the issuance of such revenue bonds may contain such provisions for​
protecting and enforcing the rights and remedies of the bondholders as may be reasonable and proper and​
not in violation of laws, including particularly such provisions as have hereinabove been specifically​
authorized to be included in any resolution or resolutions of the office authorizing revenue bonds thereof.​
Any bank or trust company incorporated under the laws of the state which may act as depository of the​
proceeds of bonds or of revenues or other moneys may furnish such indemnifying bonds or pledges such​
securities as may be required by the office. Any such trust agreement may set forth the rights and remedies​
of the bondholders and of the trustee or trustees and may restrict the individual right of action by bondholders.​
In addition to the foregoing, any such trust agreement or resolution may contain such other provisions as​
the office may deem reasonable and proper for the security of the bondholders.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 15; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 706 s 55; 1989 c 293 s 49; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59;​
1997 c 7 art 1 s 73​

136A.175 REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS; PROCEEDS; INVESTMENTS.​

Subdivision 1. Authorization. The office is hereby authorized to provide for the issuance of revenue​
bonds of the office for the purpose of refunding any revenue bonds of the office then outstanding, including​
the payment of any redemption premium thereon and any interest accrued or to accrue to the earliest or any​
subsequent date of redemption, purchase or maturity of such revenue bonds.​

Subd. 2. Proceeds. The proceeds of any such revenue bonds issued for the purpose of refunding​
outstanding revenue bonds may, in the discretion of the office, be applied to the purchase or retirement at​
maturity or redemption of such outstanding revenue bonds either on their earliest or any subsequent redemption​
date or upon the purchase or at the maturity thereof and may, pending such application be placed in escrow​
to such purchase or retirement at maturity or redemption on such date as may be determined by the office.​

Subd. 3. Investment. Any such escrowed proceeds, pending such use, may be invested and reinvested​
in direct obligations of the United States of America, or in certificates of deposit or time deposits secured​
by direct obligations of the United States of America, maturing at such time or times as shall be appropriate​
to assure the prompt payment, as to principal, interest and redemption premium, if any, of the outstanding​
revenue bonds to be so refunded. The interest, income and profits, if any, earned or realized on any such​
investment may also be applied to the payment of the outstanding revenue bonds to be so refunded. After​
the terms of the escrow have been fully satisfied and carried out, any balance of such proceeds and interest,​
income and profits, if any, earned or realized on the investments thereof may be returned to the office for​
use by it in any lawful manner.​

Subd. 4. Relation to other laws. All such revenue bonds shall be subject to the provisions of sections​
136A.15 to 136A.178 in the same manner and to the same extent as other revenue bonds issued pursuant to​
sections 136A.15 to 136A.178.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 16; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 706 s 56; 1989 c 293 s 50; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59;​
1997 c 7 art 1 s 73​

136A.176 BONDS NOT STATE OBLIGATIONS.​

Bonds issued under authority of sections 136A.15 to 136A.178 do not, and shall state that they do not,​
represent or constitute a debt or pledge of the faith and credit of the state, grant to the owners or holders​
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thereof any right to have the state levy any taxes or appropriate any funds for the payment of the principal​
thereof or interest thereon. Such bonds are payable and shall state that they are payable solely from the​
rentals, revenues, and other income, charges, and moneys as are pledged for their payment in accordance​
with the bond proceedings. The legislature intends not to appropriate money from the general fund to pay​
for these bonds.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 17; 1978 c 706 s 57; 1989 c 293 s 51; 1990 c 610 art 2 s 4; 1997 c 7 art 1 s 73​

136A.177 RIGHTS OF BONDHOLDERS.​

Any holder of revenue bonds issued under the provisions of sections 136A.15 to 136A.178 or any of​
the coupons appertaining thereto, and the trustee or trustees under any trust agreement, except to the extent​
the rights herein given may be restricted by any resolution authorizing the issuance of, or any such trust​
agreement securing, such bonds, may, either at law or in equity, by suit, action, mandamus, or other​
proceedings, protect and enforce any and all rights under the laws of the state or granted hereunder or under​
such resolution or trust agreement, and may enforce and compel the performance of all duties required by​
sections 136A.15 to 136A.178 or by such resolution or trust agreement to be performed by the office or by​
any officer, employee or agent thereof, including the fixing, charging and collecting of the rates, rents, fees​
and charges herein authorized and required by the provisions of such resolution or trust agreement to be​
fixed, established and collected.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 18; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 706 s 58; 1989 c 293 s 52; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59;​
1997 c 7 art 1 s 73​

136A.178 LEGAL INVESTMENTS; AUTHORIZED SECURITIES.​

Bonds issued by authority under the provisions of sections 136A.15 to 136A.178 are hereby made​
securities in which all public officers and public bodies of the state and its political subdivisions, all insurance​
companies, trust companies, banking associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, trustees​
and other fiduciaries may properly and legally invest funds, including capital in their control or belonging​
to them; it being the purpose of this section to authorize the investment in such bonds of all sinking, insurance,​
retirement, compensation, pension and trust funds, whether owned or controlled by private or public persons​
or officers; provided, however, that nothing contained in this section may be construed as relieving any​
person, firm, or corporation from any duty of exercising due care in selecting securities for purchase or​
investment; and provided further, that in no event shall assets of pension funds of public employees of the​
state of Minnesota or any of its agencies, board or subdivisions, whether publicly or privately administered,​
be invested in bonds issued under the provisions of sections 136A.15 to 136A.178. Such bonds are hereby​
constituted "authorized securities" within the meaning and for the purposes of section 50.14. Such bonds​
are hereby made securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any state or​
municipal officer or any agency or political subdivision of the state for any purpose for which the deposit​
of bonds or obligations of the state now or may hereafter be authorized by law.​

History: 1973 c 605 s 19; 1978 c 706 s 59; 1989 c 293 s 53; 1997 c 7 art 1 s 73​

136A.1785 LOAN CAPITAL FUND.​

The office may deposit and hold assets derived from the operation of its student loan programs and​
refinanced education loans authorized by this chapter in a fund known as the loan capital fund. Assets in​
the loan capital fund are available to the office solely for carrying out the purposes and terms of sections​
136A.15 to 136A.1704, including, but not limited to, making student loans authorized by this chapter,​
refinancing education loans authorized by this chapter, paying administrative expenses associated with the​
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operation of its student loan programs, repurchasing defaulted student loans, and paying expenses in​
connection with the issuance of revenue bonds authorized under this chapter. Assets in the loan capital fund​
may be invested as provided in sections 11A.24 and 136A.16, subdivision 8. All interest and earnings from​
the investment of the loan capital fund inure to the benefit of the fund and are deposited into the fund.​

History: 2005 c 107 art 2 s 28; 2014 c 312 art 1 s 10​

136A.1787 SELF LOAN REVENUE BONDS ANNUAL CERTIFICATE OF NEED.​

(a) In order to ensure the payment of the principal of and interest on bonds and notes of the office and​
the continued maintenance of the loan capital fund under section 136A.1785, the office shall annually​
determine and certify to the governor, on or before December 1, the amount, if any:​

(1) needed to restore the loan capital fund to the minimum amount required by a resolution or indenture​
relating to any bonds or notes of the office, not exceeding the maximum amount of principal and interest to​
become due and payable in any subsequent year on all bonds or notes which are then outstanding;​

(2) determined by the office to be needed in the current or immediately following fiscal year, with other​
funds pledged and estimated to be received during that year, for the payment of the principal and interest​
due and payable in that year on all outstanding bonds and notes; and​

(3) needed to restore any debt service reserve fund securing any outstanding bonds or notes of the office​
to the amount required in a resolution or indenture relating to such outstanding bonds or notes.​

(b) If the office determines the need under paragraph (a), clause (2), to be for the immediately following​
fiscal year, the governor shall include and submit the amounts certified by the office in accordance with this​
section to the legislature in the governor's budget for the immediately following fiscal year. If the office​
determines the need under paragraph (a), clause (1), (2), or (3), to be for the current fiscal year, the governor​
shall include and submit the amounts certified in a governor's supplemental budget if the regular budget for​
that year has previously been enacted.​

History: 2009 c 95 art 2 s 22; 1Sp2011 c 5 art 2 s 3​

136A.1788 MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

136A.1789 MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

136A.179 [Repealed, 1996 c 310 s 1]​

136A.1791 Subdivision 1. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 2. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 3. [Repealed by amendment, 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 15]​

Subd. 3a. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 4. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 5. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 6. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 7. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota​
Revisor of Statutes​

54​MINNESOTA STATUTES 2025​136A.1785​



Subd. 8. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 9. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 10. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

136A.1792 PROMOTION OF FEDERAL PUBLIC SERVICE LOAN FORGIVENESS PROGRAMS.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For the purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings​
given.​

(b) "Employer" means an organization, agency, or entity that is a public service organization under Code​
of Federal Regulations, title 34, part 685, section 219, provided that the following are not employers:​

(1) a federal or tribal government organization, agency, or entity; and​

(2) a tribal college or university.​

(c) "Employment certification form" means the form used by the United States Department of Education​
to certify an individual's employment at a public service organization for the purposes of the federal public​
service loan forgiveness program.​

(d) "Federal loan forgiveness program" means a loan forgiveness program offered under Code of Federal​
Regulations, title 34, part 685.​

(e) "Public service loan forgiveness program" means the loan forgiveness program under Code of Federal​
Regulations, title 34, part 685, section 219.​

(f) "Public service organization" means a public service organization under Code of Federal Regulations,​
title 34, part 685, section 219.​

Subd. 2. Promotion of federal public service loan forgiveness programs. (a) The commissioner must​
develop and distribute informational materials designed to increase awareness of federal public service loan​
forgiveness programs among Minnesota residents who are eligible for those programs. At a minimum, the​
commissioner must develop and distribute informational materials that public service organizations may​
use to promote awareness of the federal public service loan forgiveness program, including:​

(1) a one-page letter addressed to individuals who may be eligible for the public service loan forgiveness​
program that briefly summarizes the program, provides information on what an eligible individual must do​
in order to participate, and recommends that they contact their student loan servicer or servicers for additional​
information;​

(2) a detailed fact sheet describing the public service loan forgiveness program; and​

(3) a document containing answers to frequently asked questions about the public service loan forgiveness​
program.​

(b) In place of developing and publishing an informational document required under paragraph (a), the​
commissioner may distribute a document published by a federal agency that meets the requirements of​
paragraph (a).​

Subd. 3. Publication of informational materials. The commissioner must make the informational​
materials required under subdivision 2 available on the office's website and must verify each biennium that​
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the informational materials contain current information. The commissioner must update and correct any​
informational materials that the commissioner finds inaccurate or outdated.​

Subd. 4. Employer information. (a) An employer must provide an employee with information about​
the employee's potential eligibility for the federal public service loan forgiveness program. An employer​
must annually provide to each employee in written or electronic form the one-page letter, fact sheet, and​
frequently asked questions required under subdivision 2. In addition, an employer must provide a newly​
hired employee with that information within two weeks of the employee's first day of employment.​

(b) At an employee's request, an employer must provide the employee with a copy of the employment​
certification form.​

History: 2016 c 189 art 1 s 16​

136A.1793 PROMOTION OF TEACHER LOAN FORGIVENESS PROGRAMS.​

The commissioner shall provide information to public and private teacher education programs concerning​
public and private student loan programs that provide for full or partial repayment forgiveness. Teacher​
education programs must provide the information furnished by the commissioner to their teacher education​
students.​

History: 2016 c 189 art 1 s 17​

136A.1794 AGRICULTURAL EDUCATION LOAN FORGIVENESS PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For purposes of this section, the terms in this subdivision have the​
meanings given.​

(b) "Qualified education loan" means a government, commercial, or foundation loan for actual costs​
paid for tuition, reasonable education expenses, and reasonable living expenses related to the graduate or​
undergraduate education of a qualified teacher.​

(c) "Qualified teacher" means a teacher licensed under chapter 122A who:​

(1) is employed in a nonadministrative position teaching agricultural education in any grade from grades​
5 through 12 at a Minnesota school during the current year; and​

(2) has completed an undergraduate or graduate program in agricultural education at a college or university​
approved by the state of Minnesota to prepare persons for teacher licensure.​

(d) "School" means the following:​

(1) a school or program operated by a school district or a group of school districts;​

(2) a tribal contract school eligible to receive aid according to section 124D.83;​

(3) a charter school; or​

(4) a private school.​

Subd. 2. Account; appropriation. An agricultural education loan forgiveness account is established in​
the special revenue fund to provide qualified teachers with financial assistance to repay qualified education​
loans. Money in the account, including interest, is appropriated to the commissioner for purposes of this​
section.​
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Subd. 3. Eligibility. (a) To be eligible to participate in the loan forgiveness program under this section,​
an individual must:​

(1) be a qualified teacher;​

(2) have qualified education loans; and​

(3) submit an application to the commissioner in the form and manner prescribed by the commissioner.​

(b) An applicant selected to participate must sign a contract to agree to serve a minimum one-year​
full-time service obligation according to subdivision 4. To complete the service obligation, the applicant​
must work full time in Minnesota as a qualified teacher. A participant must complete one year of service​
under this paragraph for each year the participant receives an award under this section.​

Subd. 4. Service obligation. (a) Before receiving loan repayment disbursements and as requested, a​
participant must verify to the commissioner that the participant is employed in a position that fulfills the​
service obligation as required under subdivision 3, paragraph (b).​

(b) If a participant does not fulfill the required service obligation, the commissioner must collect from​
the participant the total amount paid to the participant under the loan forgiveness program plus interest at a​
rate established according to section 270C.40. The commissioner must deposit the money collected in the​
agricultural education loan forgiveness account. The commissioner must allow waivers of all or part of the​
money owed the commissioner as a result of a nonfulfillment penalty if emergency circumstances prevented​
fulfillment of the minimum service commitment.​

Subd. 5. Loan forgiveness. (a) The commissioner may select eligible applicants each year for participation​
in the agricultural education loan forgiveness program, within the limits of available funding. Applicants​
are responsible for securing their own qualified education loans.​

(b) The commissioner must make annual disbursements directly to the eligible participant of $3,000 or​
the balance of the participant's qualified education loans, whichever is less, for each year that the participant​
meets the eligibility requirements under subdivision 3, up to a maximum of five years.​

(c) The participant must provide the commissioner with verification that the full amount of the loan​
repayment disbursement received by the participant has been applied toward the designated qualified​
education loan. After each disbursement, verification must be received by the commissioner and approved​
before the next repayment disbursement is made.​

History: 2017 c 89 art 2 s 13​

136A.1795 LARGE ANIMAL VETERINARIAN LOAN FORGIVENESS PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For purposes of this section, the following terms have the meanings​
given.​

(b) "Veterinarian" means an individual who has been awarded a doctor of veterinary medicine degree​
from the College of Veterinary Medicine, University of Minnesota.​

(c) "Designated rural area" means an area in Minnesota outside the counties of Anoka, Carver, Dakota,​
Hennepin, Ramsey, Scott, and Washington, excluding the cities of Duluth, Mankato, Moorhead, Rochester,​
and St. Cloud.​
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(d) "Emergency circumstances" means those conditions that make it impossible for the participant to​
fulfill the service commitment, including death, total and permanent disability, or temporary disability lasting​
more than two years.​

(e) "Qualified educational loan" means a government, commercial, or foundation loan for actual costs​
paid for tuition, reasonable education expenses, and reasonable living expenses related to the education of​
a veterinarian.​

Subd. 2. Establishment; administration. (a) The commissioner shall establish and administer a loan​
forgiveness program for large animal veterinarians who:​

(1) agree to practice in designated rural areas that are considered underserved; and​

(2) work full time in a practice that is at least 50 percent involved with the care of food animals.​

(b) A large animal veterinarian loan forgiveness program account is established in the special revenue​
fund. Money in the account is appropriated to the commissioner to establish and administer the program​
under this section. Appropriations to the commissioner for the program are for transfer to the account.​
Appropriations from the account do not cancel and are available until expended.​

Subd. 3. Eligibility. (a) To be eligible to participate in the loan forgiveness program, an individual must:​

(1) be a veterinarian who has been awarded a veterinary medicine degree within three years of submitting​
an application under this section, or be enrolled in the veterinarian degree program and making satisfactory​
progress in the College of Veterinary Medicine, University of Minnesota; and​

(2) submit an application to the commissioner in the form and manner prescribed by the commissioner.​

(b) An applicant selected to participate must sign a contract agreeing to complete a five-year service​
obligation to practice as required under subdivision 2, paragraph (a).​

Subd. 4. Loan forgiveness. (a) The commissioner may select eligible applicants each year for participation​
in the loan forgiveness program, within the limits of available funding. Applicants are responsible for securing​
their own qualified educational loans.​

(b) The commissioner must select participants based on their suitability for practice serving the designated​
rural area, as indicated by experience or training. The commissioner must give preference to applicants​
closest to completing their training.​

(c) The commissioner must make annual disbursements directly to the participant of $15,000 or the​
balance of the participant's qualifying educational loans, whichever is less, for each year that a participant​
meets the service obligation required under subdivision 3, paragraph (b), up to a maximum of five years.​

(d) Before receiving loan repayment disbursements and as requested, the participant must complete and​
return to the commissioner a confirmation of practice form provided by the commissioner verifying that the​
participant is practicing as required under subdivision 2, paragraph (a). The participant must provide the​
commissioner with verification that the full amount of loan repayment disbursement received by the participant​
has been applied toward the designated loans. After each disbursement, verification must be received by the​
commissioner and approved before the next loan repayment disbursement is made.​

(e) Participants who move their practice remain eligible for loan repayment as long as they practice as​
required under subdivision 2, paragraph (a).​
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Subd. 5. Penalty for nonfulfillment. If a participant does not fulfill the required minimum commitment​
of service required under subdivision 3, paragraph (b), the commissioner must collect from the participant​
the total amount paid to the participant under the loan forgiveness program plus interest at a rate established​
according to section 270C.40. The commissioner must deposit the money collected in the state general fund.​
The commissioner must allow waivers of all or part of the money owed the commissioner as a result of a​
nonfulfillment penalty if emergency circumstances prevented fulfillment of the service obligation.​

Subd. 6. Rules. The commissioner may adopt rules to implement this section.​

History: 2009 c 95 art 2 s 23; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 29-32; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 3; 2018 c​
207 s 3; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 13​

TRIBAL COLLEGE SUPPLEMENTAL GRANT ASSISTANCE​

136A.1796 TRIBAL COLLEGE SUPPLEMENTAL GRANT ASSISTANCE.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) As used in this section, the following terms have the meanings given.​

(b) "Beneficiary student" means a resident of Minnesota who is enrolled in a certificate, diploma, or​
degree program in a Tribally controlled college and is an enrolled member of a federally recognized Indian​
Tribe.​

(c) "Nonbeneficiary student" means a resident of Minnesota who is enrolled in a certificate, diploma,​
or degree program in a Tribally controlled college but is not an enrolled member of a federally recognized​
Indian Tribe.​

(d) "Tribally controlled college" means an accredited institution of higher education located in this state​
that is formally controlled by or has been formally sanctioned or chartered by the governing body of a​
federally recognized Indian Tribe, or a combination of federally recognized Indian Tribes. Tribally controlled​
college does not include any institution or campus subject to the jurisdiction of the Board of Trustees of the​
Minnesota State Colleges and Universities or the Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota.​

Subd. 2. Eligibility; grant assistance. (a) A Tribally controlled college is eligible to receive supplemental​
grant assistance from the office, as provided in this section, for total beneficiary and nonbeneficiary students​
enrolled in the fall, spring, and summer terms.​

(b) The office shall make grants to Tribally controlled colleges to defray the costs of education associated​
with the enrollment of beneficiary and nonbeneficiary students. Grants made pursuant to this section must​
be provided directly to the recipient college.​

Subd. 3. Grant application. To receive a grant under this section, a Tribally controlled college must​
submit an application in the manner required by the office. Upon submission of a completed application​
indicating that the Tribally controlled college is eligible, the office shall distribute to the college, during​
each year of the biennium, a grant of $5,300 for each beneficiary and nonbeneficiary student on a full-time​
equivalent basis. If the amount appropriated for grants under this section is insufficient to cover the total​
amount of grant eligibility, the office shall distribute a prorated amount per beneficiary and nonbeneficiary​
student on a full-time equivalent basis.​

Subd. 4. Reporting by recipient institutions. Each Tribally controlled college receiving a grant under​
this section shall provide to the office, on an annual basis, an accurate and detailed account of the expenditures​
of the grant funds received by the college, and a copy of the college's most recent audit report and​
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documentation of the enrollment status and ethnic status of each beneficiary and nonbeneficiary student for​
which grant assistance is sought under this section.​

History: 2013 c 99 art 2 s 11; 2014 c 149 s 33-35; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 26​

PRIVATE COLLEGES​

136A.18 LEGISLATIVE FINDING, DECLARATION, AND DIRECTIVE.​

The legislature has found and hereby declares that private colleges in Minnesota have the capacity for​
educating significant numbers of Minnesota residents and that providing for the education of Minnesota​
residents in private colleges, rather than in state institutions of higher education, results in a savings of tax​
money. The Minnesota private colleges are encouraged to facilitate the education of significant numbers of​
Minnesota residents in private colleges located in Minnesota.​

History: 1971 c 850 s 1; 1983 c 258 s 51​

136A.19 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.20 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.21 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.22 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.225 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

COLLEGE POWERS​

136A.23 TRUSTEES OF INCORPORATED COLLEGES MAY PRESCRIBE COURSE OF STUDY;​
ANNUAL REPORT.​

The trustees of any incorporated college or seminary, in addition to their other powers, may prescribe​
its course of study and discipline, grant such literary honors and degrees as are usually granted by similar​
institutions, and give suitable diplomas in evidence thereof. They may make all rules, ordinances, and bylaws​
necessary and proper to carry into effect its powers. They may require the treasurer and other officers and​
agents to give bonds. Every such college shall be subject to visitation and examination by the office, and​
shall annually report such information as the office deems necessary.​

History: 1975 c 90 s 1; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59​

WORK-STUDY PROGRAMS​

136A.231 EDUCATION; POSTSECONDARY STUDENTS; WORK-STUDY PROGRAMS.​

The legislature has found and hereby declares that a state work-study program is in the best interests of​
the state in that such a program can (1) assist in meeting the financial needs of students (2) provide the​
opportunity for students to obtain valuable learning service experiences and (3) assist governmental and​
nonprofit service agencies by providing student assistance at low cost.​

History: 1973 c 682 s 1; 1975 c 430 s 1​
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136A.232 ADMINISTRATION; AGREEMENTS WITH EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES.​

The office shall develop and administer a work-study program. The office shall enter into agreements​
with institutions of postsecondary education.​

History: 1973 c 682 s 2; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1975 c 430 s 2; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60;​
2014 c 149 s 36​

136A.233 WORK-STUDY GRANTS.​

Subdivision 1. Allocation to institutions. The office shall allocate work-study money to eligible​
postsecondary institutions according to the resident full-time equivalent enrollment of all eligible​
postsecondary institutions that apply to participate in the program, and the amount of the allocation that an​
institution spent during the previous academic year. Each institution wishing to participate in the work-study​
program must submit, in accordance with policies and procedures established by the office, an estimate of​
the amount of funds needed by the institution. Any funds allocated to an institution that exceed the actual​
need of the institution shall be reallocated by the office to other institutions. An institution may carry forward​
or backward the same percentage of its initial allocation that is authorized under federal work-study provisions.​

Subd. 2. Definitions. For purposes of sections 136A.231 to 136A.233, the words defined in this​
subdivision have the meanings ascribed to them.​

(a) "Eligible student" means a Minnesota resident enrolled or intending to enroll at least half time in a​
degree, diploma, or certificate program in a Minnesota postsecondary institution.​

(b) "Minnesota resident" means a student who meets the conditions in section 136A.101, subdivision​
8.​

(c) "Financial need" means the need for financial assistance in order to attend a postsecondary institution​
as determined by a postsecondary institution according to guidelines established by the office.​

(d) "Eligible employer" means any eligible postsecondary institution, any nonprofit, nonsectarian agency​
or state institution located in the state of Minnesota, a disabled person or a person over 65 who employs a​
student to provide personal services in or about the person's residence, or a private, for-profit employer​
employing a student as an intern in a position directly related to the student's field of study that will enhance​
the student's knowledge and skills in that field.​

(e) "Eligible postsecondary institution" means any postsecondary institution eligible for participation​
in the Minnesota state grant program as specified in section 136A.101, subdivision 4.​

(f) "Independent student" has the meaning given under title IV of the Higher Education Act of 1965, as​
amended, and applicable regulations.​

(g) "Half time" for undergraduates has the meaning given in section 136A.101, subdivision 7b, and for​
graduate students is defined by the institution.​

Subd. 3. Payments. Work-study payments shall be made to eligible students by postsecondary institutions​
as provided in this subdivision.​

(a) Students shall be selected for participation in the program by the postsecondary institution on the​
basis of student financial need.​
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(b) In selecting students for participation, priority must be given to students enrolled for at least 12​
credits. In each academic year, a student may be awarded work-study payments for one period of​
nonenrollment or less than half-time enrollment if the student will enroll on at least a half-time basis during​
the following academic term.​

(c) Students will be paid for hours actually worked and the maximum hourly rate of pay shall not exceed​
the maximum hourly rate of pay permitted under the federal college work-study program.​

(d) Minimum pay rates will be determined by an applicable federal or state law.​

(e) The office shall annually establish a minimum percentage rate of student compensation to be paid​
by an eligible employer.​

(f) Each postsecondary institution receiving money for state work-study grants shall make a reasonable​
effort to place work-study students in employment with eligible employers outside the institution. However,​
a public employer other than the institution may not terminate, lay off, or reduce the working hours of a​
permanent employee for the purpose of hiring a work-study student, or replace a permanent employee who​
is on layoff from the same or substantially the same job by hiring a work-study student.​

(g) The percent of the institution's work-study allocation provided to graduate students shall not exceed​
the percent of graduate student enrollment at the participating institution.​

(h) An institution may use up to 30 percent of its allocation for student internships with private, for-profit​
employers.​

Subd. 4. Cooperation with local schools. Each campus using the state work study program is encouraged​
to cooperate with its local public elementary and secondary schools to place college work study students in​
activities in the schools, such as tutoring. Students must be placed in meaningful activities that directly assist​
students in kindergarten through grade 12 in meeting graduation standards. College students shall work​
under direct supervision; therefore, school hiring authorities are not required to request criminal background​
checks on these students under section 123B.03.​

History: 1973 c 682 s 3; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1975 c 430 s 3; 1976 c 239 s 50; 1977 c 384 s 16; 1981 c 65​
s 1; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 49; 1986 c 444; 1987 c 384 art 2 s 1; 1987 c 401 s 22,23; 1989 c 293 s 55; 1991 c 356​
art 8 s 21; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 17; 1994 c 532 art 2 s 11,12; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 35,59; 1997 c 183 art 2 s​
9-11; 1998 c 397 art 11 s 3; 2005 c 56 s 1; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 30; 2013 c 99 art 2 s​
10; 2014 c 149 s 37-39​

136A.234 [Repealed, 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 26]​

136A.235 [Repealed, 1983 c 15 s 33]​

136A.236 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.237 [Repealed, 1983 c 258 s 72]​

136A.241 [Renumbered 136G.01]​

136A.242 Subdivision 1. [Renumbered 136G.03, subdivision 1]​

Subd. 2. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 4]​

Subd. 3. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 5]​
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Subd. 4. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 6]​

Subd. 5. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 9]​

Subd. 6. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 15]​

Subd. 7. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 16]​

Subd. 8. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 23]​

Subd. 9. [Renumbered 136G.03, subd 27]​

136A.243 [Renumbered 136G.05]​

136A.244 [Renumbered 136G.07]​

136A.245 Subdivision 1. [Renumbered 136G.11, subdivision 1]​

Subd. 2. [Renumbered 136G.11, subd 2]​

Subd. 3. [Renumbered 136G.11, subd 5]​

Subd. 4. [Renumbered 136G.11, subd 6]​

Subd. 5. [Renumbered 136G.11, subd 7]​

Subd. 6. [Renumbered 136G.11, subd 8]​

136A.246 DUAL TRAINING COMPETENCY GRANTS.​

Subdivision 1. Program created. The commissioner shall make grants for the training of employees to​
achieve the competency standard for an occupation identified by the commissioner of labor and industry​
under section 175.45 and Laws 2014, chapter 312, article 3, section 21. An individual must, no later than​
the commencement of the training, be an employee of the employer seeking a grant to train that individual.​

Subd. 1a. Definitions. (a) The terms defined in this subdivision apply to this section.​

(b) "Competency standard" has the meaning given in section 175.45, subdivision 2.​

(c) "Eligible training" means training provided by an eligible training provider that:​

(1) includes training to meet one or more identified competency standards;​

(2) is instructor-led for a majority of the training; and​

(3) results in the employee receiving an industry-recognized degree, certificate, or credential.​

(d) "Eligible training provider" means an institution:​

(1) operated by the Board of Trustees of the Minnesota State Colleges and Universities or the Board of​
Regents of the University of Minnesota;​

(2) licensed or registered as a postsecondary institution by the office; or​

(3) exempt from the provisions of section 136A.822 to 136A.834 or 136A.61 to 136A.71 as approved​
by the office.​
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(e) "Industry-recognized degrees, certificates, or credentials" means:​

(1) accredited certificates, diplomas, or degrees issued by a postsecondary institution;​

(2) registered apprenticeship certifications or certificates;​

(3) occupational licenses or registrations;​

(4) certifications issued by, or recognized by, industry or professional associations; and​

(5) other certifications as approved by the commissioner.​

Subd. 2. Eligible grantees. An employer or an organization representing the employer is eligible to​
apply for a grant to train employees if the employer has an employee who is in or is to be trained to be in​
an occupation for which a competency standard has been identified and the employee has not attained the​
competency standard prior to the commencement of the planned training. A grantee must have an agreement​
with an eligible training provider to provide eligible training prior to payment of the grant.​

Subd. 3. Eligible training provider. The Office of Higher Education and the Department of Labor and​
Industry must cooperate in maintaining an inventory of degree, certificate, and credential programs that​
provide training to meet competency standards. The inventory must be posted on each agency's website with​
contact information for each program. The postings must be updated periodically.​

Subd. 4. Application. Applications must be made to the commissioner on a form provided by the​
commissioner. The commissioner must, to the extent possible, make the application form as short and simple​
to complete as is reasonably possible. The commissioner shall establish a schedule for applications and​
grants. The application must include, without limitation:​

(1) the projected number of employee trainees;​

(2) the competency standard for which training will be provided;​

(3) the credential the employee will receive upon completion of training;​

(4) the name and address of the eligible training provider;​

(5) the period of the training; and​

(6) the cost of the training charged by the eligible training provider. The cost of training includes tuition,​
fees, and required and recommended books and materials.​

An application may be made for training of employees of multiple employers either by the employers​
or by an organization on their behalf.​

Subd. 5. Grant criteria. (a) The commissioner shall make at least an approximately equal dollar amount​
of grants for training for employees whose work site is projected to be outside the metropolitan area as​
defined in section 473.121, subdivision 2, as for employees whose work site is projected to be within the​
metropolitan area.​

(b) In determining the award of grants, the commissioner must consider, among other factors:​

(1) the aggregate state and regional need for employees with the competency to be trained;​

(2) the competency standards developed by the commissioner of labor and industry as part of the​
Minnesota dual-training pipeline program;​
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(3) the per employee cost of training;​

(4) the additional employment opportunities for employees because of the training;​

(5) the on-the-job training the employee receives;​

(6) the employer's demonstrated ability to recruit, train, and retain employees who are recent high school​
graduates or who recently passed high school equivalency tests;​

(7) projected increases in compensation for employees receiving the training;​

(8) the amount of employer training cost match, if required, on both a per employee and aggregate basis;​
and​

(9) the employer's demonstrated ability to recruit, train, and retain employees who are employees of​
color, American Indian employees, and employees with disabilities.​

Subd. 6. Employer match. A large employer must pay for at least 25 percent of the cost of training.​
For the purpose of this subdivision, a "large employer" means a business with more than $25,000,000 in​
annual gross revenue in the previous calendar year.​

Subd. 7. Payment of grant. (a) The commissioner shall pay the grant to the employer after the employer​
presents satisfactory evidence to the commissioner that the employer has paid the eligible training provider.​

(b) If an employer demonstrates that it is not able to pay for the training in advance, the commissioner​
shall make grant payments directly to the eligible training provider.​

Subd. 8. Grant amounts. (a) The maximum grant for an application for the cost of training is $150,000.​
The maximum grant for an application for trainee support is ten percent of the grant amount for the cost of​
training. The maximum total grant per application is $165,000. A grant may not exceed $6,000 per year for​
a maximum of $24,000 per employee.​

(b) An employee who is attending an eligible training provider that is an institution under section​
136A.103 must apply for Pell and state grants as a condition of payment for training that employee under​
this section.​

Subd. 9. Reporting. Commencing in 2017, the commissioner shall annually by February 1 report on​
the activity of the grant program for the preceding fiscal year to the chairs of the legislative committees with​
jurisdiction over workforce policy and finance. At a minimum, the report must include:​

(1) research and analysis on the costs and benefits of the grants for employees and employers;​

(2) the number of employees who commenced training and the number who completed training; and​

(3) recommendations, if any, for changes to the program.​

Subd. 10. Dual training account. A dual training account is created in the special revenue fund in the​
state treasury. The commissioner shall deposit into the account appropriations made for the purposes of this​
section. Money in the account is appropriated to the commissioner for the purposes for which it was​
appropriated.​
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Subd. 11. Administration expenses. The commissioner may expend up to five percent of the​
appropriation made for the purposes of this section for administration of this section.​

History: 2015 c 69 art 3 s 11; 2016 c 86 s 1; 2016 c 189 art 1 s 18,19; 1Sp2017 c 5 art 10 s 7; 1Sp2021​
c 2 art 2 s 16-24; 2023 c 41 art 2 s 21-24; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 27​

FACILITIES AUTHORITY​

136A.25 [Renumbered 15D.01]​

136A.26 [Renumbered 15D.02]​

136A.27 [Renumbered 15D.03]​

136A.28 [Renumbered 15D.04]​

136A.29 [Renumbered 15D.05]​

136A.30 [Renumbered 15D.06]​

136A.31 [Renumbered 15D.07]​

136A.32 [Renumbered 15D.08]​

136A.33 [Renumbered 15D.09]​

136A.34 [Renumbered 15D.10]​

136A.35 [Renumbered 15D.11]​

136A.36 [Renumbered 15D.12]​

136A.37 [Renumbered 15D.13]​

136A.38 [Renumbered 15D.14]​

136A.39 [Renumbered 15D.15]​

136A.40 [Renumbered 15D.16]​

136A.41 [Renumbered 15D.17]​

136A.42 [Renumbered 15D.18]​

136A.51 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.52 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.53 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​

136A.55 [Repealed, 1989 c 293 s 85]​
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MINNESOTA PRIVATE AND OUT-OF-STATE PUBLIC​
POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION ACT​

136A.61 POLICY.​

The legislature has found and hereby declares that the availability of legitimate courses and programs​
leading to academic degrees offered by responsible private nonprofit and for-profit institutions of​
postsecondary education and the existence of legitimate private colleges and universities are in the best​
interests of the people of this state. The legislature has found and declares that the state can provide assistance​
and protection for persons choosing private institutions and programs, by establishing policies and procedures​
to assure the authenticity and legitimacy of private postsecondary education institutions and programs. The​
legislature has also found and declares that this same policy applies to any private and public postsecondary​
educational institution located in another state or country which offers or makes available to a Minnesota​
resident any course, program or educational activity which does not require the leaving of the state for its​
completion.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 1; 1978 c 603 s 1; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 1; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 11​

136A.615 CITATION.​

Sections 136A.61 to 136A.71 may be cited as the "Minnesota Private and Out-of-State Public​
Postsecondary Education Act."​

History: 2007 c 144 art 3 s 2​

136A.62 DEFINITIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Words, terms, and phrases. The following words, terms, and phrases shall have the​
meanings ascribed to them in this section for the purposes of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71.​

Subd. 2. [Repealed, 2014 c 149 s 75]​

Subd. 3. School. "School" means:​

(1) a Tribal college that has a physical presence in Minnesota;​

(2) any partnership, company, firm, society, trust, association, corporation, or any combination thereof,​
with a physical presence in Minnesota, which: (i) is, owns, or operates a private, nonprofit postsecondary​
education institution; (ii) is, owns, or operates a private, for-profit postsecondary education institution; or​
(iii) provides a postsecondary instructional program or course leading to a degree whether or not for profit;​
or​

(3) any public or private postsecondary educational institution located in another state or country with​
a physical presence in Minnesota.​

Subd. 3a. Tribal college. "Tribal college" means an institution of higher education located in this state​
that is formally controlled by or has been formally sanctioned or chartered by the governing body of a​
federally recognized Indian Tribe, or a combination of federally recognized Indian Tribes. Tribal college​
does not include any institution or campus subject to the jurisdiction of the Board of Trustees of the Minnesota​
State Colleges and Universities or the Board of Regents of the University of Minnesota.​
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Subd. 4. Degree. "Degree" means any award given by a school for completion of a program or course​
which is designated by the term degree, associate, bachelor, baccalaureate, masters, or doctorate, or any​
other award which the office shall include by rule.​

Subd. 5. Records. "Records" means those school documents and files containing student data relating​
to academic credits, grades, degrees awarded, periods of attendance, and such other matters as the office​
shall determine by rule.​

Subd. 6. Online platform service. An online platform service is a nondegree granting entity that provides​
online access to schools as defined in subdivision 3, to enable the schools to offer online training, courses,​
or programs.​

Subd. 7. Entity. "Entity" means a specific school or campus location.​

Subd. 8. Postsecondary education. "Postsecondary education" means the range of formal learning​
opportunities beyond high school, including those aimed at learning an occupation or earning an academic​
credential.​

Subd. 9. Physical presence. "Physical presence" means a presence within the state of Minnesota for​
the purpose of conducting activity related to any program at the degree level or courses that may be applied​
to a degree program. Physical presence includes:​

(1) operating a location within the state;​

(2) offering instruction within or originating from Minnesota designed to impart knowledge with response​
utilizing teachers, trainers, counselors or computer resources, computer linking, or any form of electronic​
means; and​

(3) granting an educational credential from a location within the state or to a student within the state.​

Physical presence does not include field trips, sanctioned sports recruiting activities, or college fairs or other​
assemblies of schools in Minnesota. No school may enroll an individual, allow an individual to sign any​
agreement obligating the person to the school, accept any moneys from the individual, or follow up with an​
individual by means of an in-person meeting in Minnesota at a college fair or assembly.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 2; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 603 s 2; 1985 c 248 s 70; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 39,59;​
2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 3; 2010 c 364 s 15; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 12; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 4; 2023​
c 44 s 6,7; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 24-26; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 24-26​

136A.63 REGISTRATION.​

Subdivision 1. Annual registration. All schools with a physical presence in Minnesota which offer​
degree programs or courses within Minnesota shall register annually with the office.​

Subd. 2. Sale of an institution. Within 30 days of a change of its ownership a school must submit a​
registration renewal application, all usual and ordinary information and materials for an initial registration,​
and applicable registration fees for a new institution. For purposes of this subdivision, "change of ownership"​
means a merger or consolidation with a corporation; a sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition of all or​
substantially all of the assets of a school; the transfer of a controlling interest of at least 51 percent of the​
school's stock; the school enters receivership; or a change in the nonprofit or for-profit status of a school.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 3; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 603 s 3; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 4;​
2015 c 69 art 2 s 12; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 25; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 27; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 27​
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136A.64 INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR REGISTRATION.​

Subdivision 1. Schools to provide information. As a basis for registration, schools shall provide the​
office with such information as the office needs to determine the nature and activities of the school, including​
but not limited to the following which shall be accompanied by an affidavit attesting to its accuracy and​
truthfulness:​

(1) articles of incorporation, constitution, bylaws, or other operating documents;​

(2) a duly adopted statement of the school's mission and goals;​

(3) evidence of current school or program licenses granted by departments or agencies of any state;​

(4) compliance audits and audited financial statements that meet the requirements of Code of Federal​
Regulations, title 34, section 668.23; United States Code, title 20, chapter 28, section 1094; Code of Federal​
Regulations, title 2, subpart A, part 200, subpart F, under 200.501 and 200.503; and United States Code,​
title 31, chapter 75;​

(5) all current promotional and recruitment materials and advertisements; and​

(6) the current school catalog and, if not contained in the catalog:​

(i) the members of the board of trustees or directors, if any;​

(ii) the current institutional officers;​

(iii) current full-time and part-time faculty with degrees held or applicable experience;​

(iv) a description of all school facilities;​

(v) a description of all current course offerings;​

(vi) all requirements for satisfactory completion of courses, programs, and degrees;​

(vii) the school's policy about freedom or limitation of expression and inquiry;​

(viii) a current schedule of fees, charges for tuition, required supplies, student activities, housing, and​
all other standard charges;​

(ix) the school's policy about refunds and adjustments;​

(x) the school's policy about granting credit for prior education, training, and experience;​

(xi) the school's policies about student admission, evaluation, suspension, and dismissal; and​

(xii) the school's disclosure to students on the student complaint process under section 136A.672.​

Subd. 2. Financial records. The office shall not disclose financial records or accreditation reports​
provided to it by a school pursuant to this section except for the purpose of defending, at hearings pursuant​
to chapter 14, or other appeal proceedings, its decision to approve or not to approve the granting of degrees​
or the use of a name by the school. Section 15.17, subdivision 4, shall not apply to such records.​

Subd. 3. Additional information. If the office is unable to determine the nature and activities of a school​
on the basis of the information in subdivision 1, the office shall notify the school of additional information​
needed.​
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Subd. 4. Verification of information. The office may verify the accuracy of submitted information by​
inspection, visitation, or any other means it considers necessary.​

Subd. 5. Public information. All information submitted to the office is public information except​
financial records, student complaint data, and accreditation records and reports. Except for accreditation​
reports, the office may disclose any records or information submitted to the office:​

(1) to law enforcement officials; or​

(2) in connection with a legal or administrative proceeding to:​

(i) defend its decision to approve or disapprove granting of degrees or the use of a name;​

(ii) defend its decision to revoke the institution's approval; or​

(iii) enforce a requirement of law.​

Subd. 6. Late registration penalty. Applications for renewal for any registration received after the​
deadline date specified in the renewal materials provided by the office are subject to a late fee equal to 20​
percent of the annual registration renewal fee.​

Subd. 7. Out-of-state expenses. A school shall reimburse the office for actual costs associated with a​
site evaluation visit outside Minnesota if the visit is necessary under subdivision 1 or 3.​

Subd. 8. Disclosure. Schools must disclose on their website, student handbook, and student catalog the​
student complaint process under section 136A.672 to students.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 4; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 603 s 4; 1982 c 424 s 130; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007​
c 144 art 3 s 5; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 22-24; 2020 c 109 art 3 s 2​

136A.645 SCHOOL CLOSURE.​

(a) When a school intends to cease postsecondary education operations, announces its closure, or is​
informed by the office that the office anticipates the school's closure due to its registration status or ability​
to meet criteria for approval under section 136A.65, the school must provide the office:​

(1) a notice of closure, including the name of the school, the name of the school owner, an active mailing​
address and telephone number that the school owner may be reached at after the school physically closes,​
the name of the school director, and the planned date for termination of postsecondary operations;​

(2) a report of all students currently enrolled and all students enrolled within the prior 120 days, including​
the following information for each student: name, address, school email address, alternate email address,​
program of study, number of credits completed, number of credits remaining, and enrollment status at closure;​

(3) a report of refunds due to any student and the amount due;​

(4) a written statement from the school's owner or designee affirming that all recruitment efforts, school​
marketing, advertisement, solicitation, and enrollment of new students has ceased;​

(5) a copy of any communication between the school's accreditors about the school closure;​

(6) confirmation that the requirements for student records under section 136A.68 have been satisfied,​
including:​

(i) the planned date for the transfer of the student records;​
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(ii) confirmation of the name and address of the organization to receive and hold the student records;​
and​

(iii) the official at the organization receiving the student records who is designated to provide official​
copies of records or transcripts upon request;​

(7) academic information, including the school's most recent catalog, all course syllabi, and faculty​
credential information; and​

(8) copies of any teach-out, transfer, or train-out agreement between the school and a new school for​
students to be able to complete their studies. A teach-out fulfills the original contract or agreement between​
the closing school and the student. If a teach-out is arranged for another approved school to do the remaining​
occupational training, that other school must (i) provide comparable education and training and (ii) agree​
that students transferring from the closing school pay only what the cost of tuition and fees remain unpaid​
according to the terms and conditions in the enrollment agreement entered into between the student and the​
closing school.​

(b) Without limitation as to other circumstance, a school shall be deemed to have ceased operations​
when the school:​

(1) has an unscheduled nonemergency closure or cancellation of classes for more than 24 hours without​
prior notice to the office;​

(2) announces it is closed or closing;​

(3) files for bankruptcy; or​

(4) fails to complete a renewal application when required under section 136A.63, subdivision 2.​

(c) When a school is deemed to have ceased operations, the office shall provide the school a reasonable​
time to correct student records and grant credentials. After that time, the office must revoke the school's​
registration. This revocation is not appealable under section 136A.65, subdivision 8.​

History: 2007 c 144 art 3 s 6; 2010 c 364 s 16; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 25; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 26​

136A.646 ADDITIONAL SECURITY.​

(a) New institutions that have been granted conditional approval for degrees or names to allow them the​
opportunity to apply for and receive accreditation under section 136A.65, subdivision 7, shall provide a​
surety bond in a sum equal to ten percent of the net revenue from tuition and fees in the registered institution's​
prior fiscal year, but in no case shall the bond be less than $10,000.​

(b) Any registered institution that is notified by the United States Department of Education that it has​
fallen below minimum financial standards and that its continued participation in Title IV will be conditioned​
upon its satisfying an alternative standard set forth in Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section 668.175,​
shall provide a surety bond in a sum equal to the "letter of credit" required by the United States Department​
of Education in the Letter of Credit Alternative, but in no event shall such bond be less than $10,000 nor​
more than $250,000. If the letter of credit required by the United States Department of Education is higher​
than ten percent of the Title IV, Higher Education Act program funds received by the institution during its​
most recently completed fiscal year, the office shall reduce the office's surety requirement to represent ten​
percent of the Title IV, Higher Education Act program funds received by the institution during its most​
recently completed fiscal year, subject to the minimum and maximum in this paragraph.​
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(c) In lieu of a bond, the applicant may deposit with the commissioner of management and budget:​

(1) a sum equal to the amount of the required surety bond in cash;​

(2) securities, as may be legally purchased by savings banks or for trust funds, in an aggregate market​
value equal to the amount of the required surety bond; or​

(3) an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a financial institution to the amount of the required surety​
bond.​

(d) The surety of any bond may cancel it upon giving 60 days' notice in writing to the office and shall​
be relieved of liability for any breach of condition occurring after the effective date of cancellation.​

(e) In the event of a school closure, the additional security must first be used to destroy any private​
educational data under section 13.32 left at a physical campus in Minnesota after all other governmental​
agencies have recovered or retrieved records under their record retention policies. Any remaining funds​
must then be used to reimburse tuition and fee costs to students that were enrolled at the time of the closure​
or had withdrawn in the previous 180 calendar days but did not graduate. Priority for refunds will be given​
to students in the following order:​

(1) cash payments made by the student or on behalf of a student;​

(2) private student loans; and​

(3) Veteran Administration education benefits that are not restored by the Veteran Administration. If​
there are additional security funds remaining, the additional security funds may be used to cover any​
administrative costs incurred by the office related to the closure of the school.​

History: 2007 c 144 art 3 s 7; 2010 c 364 s 17; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 13; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 5; 2019 c 64 art​
2 s 26; 2020 c 109 art 3 s 3; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 28; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 28​

136A.65 APPROVAL OF DEGREES AND NAME.​

Subdivision 1. Prohibition. No school subject to registration shall grant a degree unless such degree​
and its underlying curriculum are approved by the office, nor shall any school subject to registration use the​
name "college" or "university" in its name without approval by the office.​

Subd. 1a. Accreditation; requirement. (a) A school must not be registered unless the school has​
institutional accreditation by an agency recognized by the United States Department of Education for purposes​
of eligibility to participate in Title IV federal financial aid programs. Any registered school undergoing​
institutional accreditation shall inform the office of site visits by the accrediting agency and provide office​
staff the opportunity to attend the visits, excluding any exit interviews. The institution must provide the​
office with a copy of the final report upon request of the office.​

(b) A school must not be authorized to offer any degree unless the program has programmatic accreditation​
or the school has institutional accreditation by an agency recognized by the United States Department of​
Education for purposes of eligibility to participate in Title IV federal financial aid programs. Any program​
offered by a registered school that does not have institutional accreditation and is undergoing programmatic​
accreditation shall inform the office of site visits by the accrediting agency and provide office staff the​
opportunity to attend the visits, excluding any exit interviews. The school must provide the office with a​
copy of the final report by the accreditor upon request of the office.​
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Subd. 2. Procedures. The office shall establish procedures for approval, including notice and an​
opportunity for a hearing pursuant to chapter 14 if such approval is not granted. If a hearing is requested,​
no disapproval shall take effect until after such hearing.​

Subd. 3. Application. A school subject to registration shall be granted approval to use the term "college"​
or "university" in its name if it was organized, operating, and using such term in its name on or before August​
1, 2007, and if it meets the other policies and standards for approval established by the office.​

Subd. 4. Criteria for approval. (a) A school applying to be registered and to have its degree or degrees​
and name approved must substantially meet the following criteria:​

(1) the school has an organizational framework with administrative and teaching personnel to provide​
the educational programs offered;​

(2) the school has financial resources sufficient to meet the school's financial obligations, including​
refunding tuition and other charges consistent with its stated policy if the institution is dissolved, or if claims​
for refunds are made, to provide service to the students as promised, and to provide educational programs​
leading to degrees as offered;​

(3) the school operates in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles according to the​
type of school;​

(4) the school provides an educational program leading to the degree it offers;​

(5) the school provides appropriate and accessible library, laboratory, and other physical facilities to​
support the educational program offered;​

(6) the school has a policy on freedom or limitation of expression and inquiry for faculty and students​
which is published or available on request;​

(7) the school uses only publications and advertisements which are truthful and do not give any false,​
fraudulent, deceptive, inaccurate, or misleading impressions about the school, its personnel, programs,​
services, or occupational opportunities for its graduates for promotion and student recruitment;​

(8) the school's compensated recruiting agents who are operating in Minnesota identify themselves as​
agents of the school when talking to or corresponding with students and prospective students;​

(9) the school provides information to students and prospective students concerning:​

(i) comprehensive and accurate policies relating to student admission, evaluation, suspension, and​
dismissal;​

(ii) clear and accurate policies relating to granting credit for prior education, training, and experience​
and for courses offered by the school;​

(iii) current schedules of fees, charges for tuition, required supplies, student activities, housing, and all​
other standard charges;​

(iv) policies regarding refunds and adjustments for withdrawal or modification of enrollment status; and​

(v) procedures and standards used for selection of recipients and the terms of payment and repayment​
for any financial aid program;​
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(10) the school must not withhold a student's official transcript because the student is in arrears or in​
default on any loan issued by the school to the student if the loan qualifies as an institutional loan under​
United States Code, title 11, section 523(a)(8)(b);​

(11) the school has a process to receive and act on student complaints;​

(12) if the school is unaccredited, the school includes a joint and several liability provision for torts and​
compliance with the requirements of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71 in any contract effective after July 1,​
2026, with any individual, entity, or postsecondary school located in another state for the purpose of providing​
educational or training programs or awarding postsecondary credits or continuing education credits to​
Minnesota residents that may be applied to a degree program; and​

(13) the school must not use nondisclosure agreements or other contracts restricting a student's ability​
to disclose information in connection with school actions or conduct that would be covered under section​
136A.672.​

(b) An application for degree approval must also include:​

(i) title of degree and formal recognition awarded;​

(ii) location where such degree will be offered;​

(iii) proposed implementation date of the degree;​

(iv) admissions requirements for the degree;​

(v) length of the degree;​

(vi) projected enrollment for a period of five years;​

(vii) the curriculum required for the degree, including course syllabi or outlines;​

(viii) statement of academic and administrative mechanisms planned for monitoring the quality of the​
proposed degree;​

(ix) statement of satisfaction of professional licensure criteria, if applicable;​

(x) documentation of the availability of clinical, internship, externship, or practicum sites, if applicable;​
and​

(xi) statement of how the degree fulfills the institution's mission and goals, complements existing degrees,​
and contributes to the school's viability.​

Subd. 5. Requirements for degree and nondegree program approval. For each degree and nondegree​
program a school offers to a student, where the student does not leave Minnesota for the major portion of​
the program or course leading to the degree or nondegree award, the school must have:​

(1) for degree programs:​

(i) qualified teaching personnel to provide the educational programs for each degree for which approval​
is sought;​

(ii) appropriate educational programs leading to each degree for which approval is sought;​
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(iii) appropriate and accessible library, laboratory, and other physical facilities to support the educational​
program for each degree for which approval is sought; and​

(iv) a rationale showing that degree programs are consistent with the school's mission and goals; and​

(2) for nondegree programs:​

(i) qualified teaching personnel to provide the educational programs for which approval is sought;​

(ii) appropriate educational programs leading to each award for which approval is sought;​

(iii) appropriate and accessible library, laboratory, and other physical facilities to support the educational​
program for which approval is sought; and​

(iv) a rationale showing that programs are consistent with the school's mission and goals.​

Nondegree programs that are a part of an approved degree shall not require additional review or approval;​
they shall be considered approved as a part of the degree approval. Any nondegree program offered by a​
degree-granting school that is not a part of an approved degree shall be subject to clause (2), items (i) to​
(iv).​

Subd. 6. Name. A degree-granting school may use the term "academy" or "institute" in its name without​
meeting any additional requirements. A school may use the term "college" in its name if it offers at least​
one program leading to an associate or higher degree. A school may use the term "university" in its name​
if it offers at least one program leading to a master's or doctorate degree.​

Subd. 7. Conditional approval. (a) The office may grant a school a one-year conditional approval for​
a degree or use of a term in its name if doing so would be in the best interests of currently enrolled students​
or prospective students. Conditional approval of a degree or use of a term under this paragraph must not​
exceed a period of three years.​

(b) The office may grant new schools with their physical location in Minnesota and programs a one-year​
conditional approval for degrees or use of a term in its name to allow the school the opportunity to apply​
for and receive accreditation as required in subdivision 1a. Conditional approval of a school or program​
under this paragraph must not exceed a period of five years. A new school or program granted conditional​
approval may be allowed to continue in order to complete an accreditation process upon terms and conditions​
the office determines.​

(c) The office may grant a registered school a one-year conditional approval for degrees or use of a term​
in its name to allow the school the opportunity to apply for and receive accreditation as required in subdivision​
1a if the school's accrediting agency is no longer recognized by the United States Department of Education​
for purposes of eligibility to participate in Title IV federal financial aid programs. The office must not grant​
conditional approvals under this paragraph to a school for a period of more than five years.​

(d) The office may grant a registered school a one-year conditional approval for degrees or use of a term​
in its name to allow the school to change to a different accrediting agency recognized by the United States​
Department of Education for purposes of eligibility to participate in Title IV federal financial aid programs.​
The office must not grant conditional approvals under this paragraph to a school for a period of more than​
five years.​

Subd. 8. Disapproval of registration; appeal. (a) By giving written notice and reasons to the school,​
the office may:​
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(1) revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew registration;​

(2) refuse approval of a school's degree; and​

(3) refuse approval of the use of a regulated term in its name.​

(b) Reasons for revocation or suspension of registration or approval may be for one or more of the​
following reasons:​

(1) violating the provisions of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71;​

(2) providing false, misleading, or incomplete information to the office;​

(3) presenting information about the school which is false, fraudulent, misleading, deceptive, or inaccurate​
in a material respect to students or prospective students;​

(4) refusing to allow reasonable inspection or to supply reasonable information after a written request​
by the office has been received;​

(5) failing to have enrollment within the last two years at the school;​

(6) failing to have any enrollment within two years of a program's approval, except for programs that​
require extensive approval processes by the United States Department of Education, or the program's​
institutional or programmatic accreditor; or​

(7) having been administratively determined by the commissioner or judicially determined to have​
committed fraud or any other material violation of law involving federal, state, or local government funds.​

(c) Any order refusing, revoking, or suspending a school's registration, approval of a school's degree,​
or use of a regulated term in the school's name is appealable in accordance with chapter 14. The request​
must be in writing and made to the office within 30 days of the date the school is notified of the action of​
the office. If a school has been operating and its registration has been revoked, suspended, or refused by the​
office, the order is not effective until the final determination of the appeal, unless immediate effect is ordered​
by the court.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 5; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1978 c 603 s 5; 1982 c 424 s 130; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007​
c 144 art 3 s 8; 2008 c 298 s 8-12; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 14; 2014 c 149 s 40; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 13,14; 2017 c​
89 art 3 s 6-8; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 14; art 3 s 4-6; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 29; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 29; 1Sp2025 c​
5 art 2 s 28​

136A.653 EXEMPTIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Application. A school that seeks an exemption under this section from the provisions​
of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71 must apply to the office to establish that the school meets the requirements​
of an exemption. An exemption expires two years from the date of approval or when a school adds a new​
program or makes a modification equal to or greater than 25 percent to an existing educational program. If​
a school is reapplying for an exemption, the application must be submitted to the office 90 days before the​
current exemption expires. This exemption shall not extend to any school that uses any publication or​
advertisement that is not truthful and gives any false, fraudulent, deceptive, inaccurate, or misleading​
impressions about the school or its personnel, programs, services, or occupational opportunities for graduates​
for promotion and student recruitment. Exemptions denied under this section are subject to appeal under​
section 136A.65, subdivision 8, paragraph (c). If an appeal is initiated, the denial of the exemption is not​
effective until the final determination of the appeal, unless immediate effect is ordered by the court.​
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Subd. 1a. Private career schools. A school that is subject to licensing by the office under sections​
136A.82 to 136A.834 is exempt from the provisions of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71. The determination of​
the office as to whether a particular school is subject to regulation under sections 136A.82 to 136A.834 is​
final for the purposes of this exemption.​

Subd. 1b. Tribal colleges. A Tribal college is exempted from the provisions of sections 136A.61 to​
136A.71. A Tribal college that is exempt may voluntarily waive its exception by registering under section​
136A.63. Upon registration, the Tribal college is subject to all applicable requirements of sections 136A.61​
to 136A.71.​

Subd. 2. Educational program; nonprofit organizations. Educational programs which are sponsored​
by a bona fide and nonprofit trade, labor, business, professional or fraternal organization, which programs​
are conducted solely for that organization's membership or for the members of the particular industries or​
professions served by that organization, and which are not available to the public on a fee basis, are exempted​
from the provisions of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71.​

Subd. 3. Educational program; business firms. Educational programs which are sponsored by a​
business firm for the training of its employees or the employees of other business firms with which it has​
contracted to provide educational services at no cost to the employees are exempted from the provisions of​
sections 136A.61 to 136A.71.​

Subd. 3a. Tuition-free educational courses. A school, including a school using an online platform​
service, offering training, courses, or programs is exempt from sections 136A.61 to 136A.71, to the extent​
tuition, fees, and any other charges for a student to participate do not exceed two percent of the most recent​
average undergraduate tuition and required fees as of January 1 of the current year charged for full-time​
students at all degree-granting institutions as published annually by the United States Department of Education​
as of January 1 of each year. To qualify for an exemption, a school or online platform service must prominently​
display a notice comparable to the following: "IMPORTANT: Each educational institution makes its own​
decision regarding whether to accept completed coursework for credit. Check with your university or college."​

Subd. 4. Voluntary submission. Any school or program exempted from the provisions of sections​
136A.61 to 136A.71 by the provisions of this section may voluntarily submit to the provisions of those​
sections.​

Subd. 5. Higher Learning Commission accredited institutions in Minnesota. (a) A postsecondary​
institution accredited by the Higher Learning Commission or its successor with its primary physical location​
in Minnesota is exempt from the provisions of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71, including related fees, when​
it creates new or modifies existing:​

(1) program degree levels, program degree types, majors, minors, concentrations, specializations, and​
areas of emphasis within approved degrees;​

(2) nondegree programs;​

(3) underlying curriculum or courses;​

(4) modes of delivery;​

(5) locations; and​

(6) course or term changes that do not impact the number of instructional hours.​
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(b) The institution must annually notify the commissioner of the exempt actions listed in paragraph (a)​
and, upon the commissioner's request, must provide additional information about the action.​

(c) The institution must notify the commissioner within 60 days of a program closing.​

(d) Nothing in this subdivision exempts an institution from the annual registration and degree approval​
requirements of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71.​

(e) An institution exempt under this subdivision may advertise, recruit, and enroll students while the​
program is evaluated for an exemption. In the event the program is determined not to be exempt, the institution​
must submit the full review application to the office within 60 days of notification or cease advertisement,​
recruitment, and enrollment of students and may be subject to the provisions of sections 136A.65, subdivision​
8, 136A.705, and 136A.71.​

History: 1978 c 603 s 6; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 18; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 15; 2015 c 69​
art 2 s 46; 2017 c 89 art 2 s 14; art 3 s 9; 2018 c 182 art 1 s 37; 2020 c 109 art 3 s 7; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s​
27; 2023 c 44 s 8; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 29​

136A.657 EXEMPTION; RELIGIOUS SCHOOLS.​

Subdivision 1. Exemption. (a) A program is exempt from the provisions of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71​
if it is:​

(1) offered by a school or any department or branch of a school that is substantially owned, operated,​
or supported by a bona fide church or religious organization;​

(2) primarily designed for, aimed at and attended by persons who sincerely hold or seek to learn the​
particular religious faith or beliefs of that church or religious organization; and​

(3) primarily intended to prepare its students to become ministers of, to enter into some other vocation​
closely related to, or to conduct their lives in consonance with, the particular faith of that church or religious​
organization.​

(b) A school or a department or branch of a school is exempt from the provisions of sections 136A.61​
to 136A.71 if all of its programs are exempt under paragraph (a).​

Subd. 2. Limitation. (a) This exemption shall not extend to any program or school or to any department​
or branch of a school that through advertisements or solicitations represents to any students or prospective​
students that the school, its aims, goals, missions or purposes or its programs are different from those​
described in subdivision 1.​

(b) This exemption shall not extend to any school that represents to any student or prospective student​
that the major purpose of its programs is to:​

(1) prepare the student for a vocation not closely related to that particular religious faith; or​

(2) provide the student with a general educational program recognized by other schools or the broader​
educational, business or social community as being substantially equivalent to the educational programs​
offered by schools or departments or branches of schools that are not exempt from sections 136A.61 to​
136A.71, and rules adopted pursuant thereto.​

(c) This exemption shall not extend to any school that uses any publication or advertisement that is not​
truthful and gives any false, fraudulent, deceptive, inaccurate, or misleading impressions about the school;​
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its personnel, programs, or services; or occupational opportunities for its graduates for promotion and student​
recruitment. Exemptions denied under this section are subject to appeal under section 136A.65, subdivision​
8, paragraph (c). If an appeal is initiated, the denial of the exemption is not effective until the final​
determination of the appeal, unless immediate effect is ordered by the court.​

Subd. 3. Scope. Nothing in sections 136A.61 to 136A.71, or the rules adopted pursuant thereto, shall​
be interpreted as permitting the office to determine the truth or falsity of any particular set of religious beliefs.​

Subd. 4. Statement required; religious nature. Any degree awarded upon completion of a religiously​
exempt program shall include descriptive language to make the religious nature of the award clear.​

Subd. 5. Application. A school that seeks an exemption under this section from the provisions of sections​
136A.61 to 136A.71 must apply to the office to establish that the school meets the requirements of an​
exemption. An exemption expires two years from the date of approval or when a school adds a new program​
or makes a modification equal to or greater than 25 percent to an existing educational program. If a school​
is reapplying for an exemption, the application must be submitted to the office 90 days before the current​
exemption expires.​

History: 1978 c 603 s 7; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 9; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 15,16; 2017 c​
89 art 3 s 10; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 15-17; art 3 s 8​

136A.658 EXEMPTION; STATE AUTHORIZATION RECIPROCITY AGREEMENT SCHOOLS.​

(a) The office may participate in an interstate reciprocity agreement regarding postsecondary distance​
education if it determines that participation is in the best interest of Minnesota postsecondary students.​

(b) If the office decides to participate in an interstate reciprocity agreement, an institution that meets​
the following requirements is exempt from the provisions of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71:​

(1) the institution is situated in a state which is also participating in the interstate reciprocity agreement;​

(2) the institution has been approved to participate in the interstate reciprocity agreement by the​
institution's home state and other entities with oversight of the interstate reciprocity agreement; and​

(3) the institution has elected to participate in and operate in compliance with the terms of the interstate​
reciprocity agreement.​

(c) If the office participates in an interstate reciprocity agreement and the office is responsible for the​
administration of that interstate reciprocity agreement, which may include the approval of applications for​
membership of in-state institutions to participate in the interstate reciprocity agreement, the office shall​
collect reasonable fees sufficient to recover, but not exceed, its costs to administer the interstate reciprocity​
agreement. The office processing fees for approving an in-state institution application shall be as follows:​

(1) $1,500 for institutions with 2,500 or fewer full-time equivalent enrollment;​

(2) $5,000 for institutions with 2,501 to 12,500 full-time equivalent enrollment; and​

(3) $7,500 for institutions with greater than 12,500 full-time equivalent enrollment.​

Full-time equivalent enrollment is established using the previous year's full-time equivalent enrollment as​
established in the United States Department of Education Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System.​

History: 2014 c 312 art 1 s 11; 2020 c 109 art 3 s 9; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 30​
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136A.66 LIST OF REGISTERED INSTITUTIONS.​

The office shall maintain a list of registered institutions authorized to grant degrees and schools authorized​
to use the name "college" or "university" and shall make such list available to the public.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 6; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 10; 2008 c 298 s 13​

136A.67 REGISTRATION REPRESENTATIONS.​

No school and none of its officials or employees shall advertise or represent in any manner that such​
school is approved or accredited by the office or the state of Minnesota, except a school which is duly​
registered with the office, or any of its officials or employees, may represent in advertising and shall disclose​
in catalogues, applications, and enrollment materials that the school is registered with the office by prominently​
displaying the following statement: "(Name of school) is registered with the Minnesota Office of Higher​
Education pursuant to sections 136A.61 to 136A.71. Registration is not an endorsement of the institution.​
Credits earned at the institution may not transfer to all other institutions." In addition, all registered schools​
shall publish in the school catalog or student handbook the name, street address, telephone number, and​
website address of the office.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 7; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 11; 2008 c 298 s 14;​
2014 c 149 s 74; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 17; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 11​

136A.672 STUDENT COMPLAINTS.​

Subdivision 1. Authority. The office has the authority to review and take appropriate action on student​
complaints from schools covered under the provisions of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71.​

Subd. 2. Complaint. A complaint must be in writing, be signed by a student, and state how the school's​
policies and procedures or sections 136A.61 to 136A.71 were violated. Student complaints shall be limited​
to complaints that occurred within six years from the date the concern should have been discovered with​
reasonable effort and after the student has utilized the school's internal complaint process. Students do not​
have to utilize a school's internal complaint process before the office has authority when the student is​
alleging fraud or misrepresentation. The office shall not investigate grade disputes, student conduct​
proceedings, disability accommodation requests, and discrimination claims, including Title IX complaints.​

Subd. 3. Investigation. The office shall initiate an investigation upon receipt of a complaint within the​
authority of subdivision 2. A school involved in an investigation shall be informed of the alleged violations​
and the processes of the investigation. A school involved in an investigation shall respond to the alleged​
violations and provide requested documentation to the office. Upon completing an investigation, the office​
shall inform the school and the student of the investigation outcome.​

Subd. 4. Penalties. If violations are found, the office may require remedial action by the school or assign​
a penalty under section 136A.705. Remedial action may include student notification of violations, adjustments​
to the school's policies and procedures, and tuition or fee refunds to impacted students.​

Subd. 5. Appeals. Any order requiring remedial action by the school or assigning a penalty under section​
136A.705 is appealable in accordance with chapter 14. The request for an appeal must be made in writing​
to the office within 30 days of the date the school is notified of the action of the office. The court shall award​
costs and reasonable attorney fees in a contested chapter 14 hearing to the office if: (1) the office substantially​
prevails on the merits in an action brought under this section; and (2) the school has a net income from​
student tuition, fees, and other required institutional charges collected from the last fiscal year of $1,000,000​
or greater.​
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Subd. 6. Private information. Student complaint data are private data on individuals, as defined in​
section 13.02, subdivision 12. The office may disclose student complaint data as provided in section 136A.64,​
subdivision 5.​

History: 2017 c 89 art 3 s 12; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 27​

136A.675 RISK ANALYSIS.​

Subdivision 1. Standard development and usage. (a) To screen and detect whether an institution may​
not be financially or administratively responsible, the office shall develop financial and nonfinancial indicators.​
The development of financial and nonfinancial indicators shall use industry standards as guidance.​

(b) Annually, the office must provide a copy of the financial and nonfinancial indicators to each registered​
institution and post a list of reviewed indicators on the office website.​

(c) The office shall use regularly reported data submitted to the federal government or other regulatory​
or accreditation agencies wherever possible.​

(d) The office must use the indicators in this subdivision to identify institutions at potential risk of being​
unable to meet the standards established under sections 136A.646; 136A.64, subdivision 3; 136A.65,​
subdivisions 1a and 4, paragraph (a), clauses (1), (2), (3), and (7); and 136A.685 and thus unlikely to meet​
its financial obligations or complete its academic terms for the next 18 months.​

Subd. 2. Additional reporting. (a) In addition to the information required for the indicators in subdivision​
1, an institution must notify the office within ten business days if any of the events in paragraphs (b) to (e)​
occur.​

(b) Related to revenue, debt, and cash flow, notice is required if:​

(1) the institution defaulted on a debt payment or covenant and has not received a waiver of the violation​
from the financial institution within 60 days;​

(2) for institutions with a federal composite score of less than 1.5, the institution's owner withdraws​
equity that directly results in a composite score of less than 1.0, unless the withdrawal is a transfer between​
affiliated entities included in a common composite score;​

(3) the United States Department of Education requires a 25 percent or greater Letter of Credit, except​
when the Letter of Credit is imposed due to a change of ownership;​

(4) the United States Department of Education requires Heightened Cash Monitoring 2;​

(5) the institution receives written notification that it violated the United States Department of Education's​
revenue requirement under United States Code, title 20, section 1094(a)(24), as amended; or​

(6) the institution receives written notification by the United States Department of Education that it has​
fallen below minimum financial standards and that its continued participation in Title IV is conditioned​
upon satisfying an alternative standard set forth in Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section 668.175.​

(c) Related to accreditation and licensing, notice is required if:​

(1) the institution receives written notification of probation, warning, show-cause, or loss of institutional​
accreditation;​
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(2) the institution receives written notification that its institutional accreditor lost federal recognition;​
or​

(3) the institution receives written notification that it has materially violated state authorization or​
institution licensing requirements in a different state that may lead to or has led to the termination of the​
institution's ability to continue to provide educational programs or otherwise continue to operate in that state.​

(d) Related to securities, notice is required if:​

(1) the Securities and Exchange Commission (i) issues an order suspending or revoking the registration​
of the institution's securities, or (ii) suspends trading of the institution's securities on any national securities​
exchange;​

(2) the national securities exchange on which the institution's securities are traded notifies the institution​
that it is not in compliance with the exchange's listing requirements and the institution's securities are delisted;​
or​

(3) the Securities and Exchange Commission is not in timely receipt of a required report and did not​
issue an extension to file the report.​

(e) Related to criminal and civil investigations, notice is required if:​

(1) the institution receives written notification of a felony criminal indictment or charges of the institution's​
owner;​

(2) the institution receives written notification of criminal indictment or charges of the institution's​
officers related to operations of the institution; or​

(3) there has been a criminal, civil, or administrative adjudication of fraud or misrepresentation in​
Minnesota or in another state or jurisdiction against the institution or its owner, officers, agents, or sponsoring​
organization.​

Subd. 3. Determination procedures. (a) The office shall conduct a systematic evaluation under this​
paragraph and make a preliminary determination as to whether action under paragraph (e) is necessary, if​
the office: (1) identifies a potential risk under subdivision 1, paragraph (d); (2) receives notification from​
an institution under subdivision 2; or (3) identifies other exigent circumstances impacting the institution that​
may deny students a reasonable opportunity to complete their education program at the institution or through​
an alternate institution with minimal disruption. The systematic evaluation must, to the extent practicable,​
be a collaboration between the office and the institution. The office must request additional context and​
information from the institution that demonstrates the administrative and financial responsibility of the​
institution. If the institution is not financially or administratively responsible, a contingency plan must be​
implemented either collaboratively or as part of a final determination under paragraph (e), clause (4).​

(b) The office shall provide notice in writing to the institution of the preliminary determination. The​
notice shall provide the analysis used by the office to make the determination, a request for the institution​
to provide additional context and information that demonstrates the administrative and financial responsibility​
of the institution not provided under paragraph (a), any potential action the office may take under paragraph​
(e), and a deadline for responding to the notice. The institution shall have no fewer than ten business days​
to respond to the preliminary determination.​

(c) The response from the institution to provide additional context and information must be written and​
may include a collaborative consultation with the office. In its response, the institution shall provide additional​
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context, financial data, and other information, including but not limited to evidence of sound business​
practices, institutional financial health, compliance with the requirements of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71,​
or sufficient and timely plans to cure any noncompliance or to manage financial health and risk.​

(d) If the institution does not respond to the office's notice and request for additional context and​
information within the time required, the office's preliminary determination shall become final and the office​
may take any of the actions specified in the notice required by paragraph (e). If the institution responds to​
the office's notice, the office must reevaluate the preliminary determination. The office shall use the additional​
context and information provided by the institution to make a final determination and determine which​
actions under paragraph (e), if any, are necessary to mitigate risk to students and state financial aid under​
this chapter.​

(e) The office may use a final determination to:​

(1) revoke, suspend, or refuse to renew registration, approval of an institution's degree, or use of a​
regulated term in its name under section 136A.65, subdivision 8;​

(2) require periodic monitoring and submission of reports on the institution's administrative and financial​
responsibility to ascertain whether compliance and financial risk improves;​

(3) require periodic collaborative consultations with the institution on noncompliance with sections​
136A.61 to 136A.71, or how the institution is managing financial health and risk;​

(4) require the institution to submit contingency plans such as teach-out plans or transfer pathways for​
students;​

(5) prohibit the institution from accepting tuition and fee payments made through cash, alternative loans,​
or the equivalent, prior to the add/drop period of the current period of instruction;​

(6) prohibit the institution from enrolling new students;​

(7) initiate alternative processes and communications with students enrolled at the institution;​

(8) require a surety bond under section 136A.646; or​

(9) submit institution closure information under section 136A.645.​

(f) The office shall provide to the institution written notice of the final determination and the actions​
taken under paragraph (e).​

Subd. 4. Data classification. Data under this section shall be classified as financial records under section​
136A.64, subdivision 2, except for the following data, which shall be public:​

(1) a final determination that is subject to action under subdivision 3, paragraph (e), clauses (1), (5), (6),​
and (7), and a summary of the reasons for the determination; and​

(2) data received by the office under subdivision 2, paragraph (b), clauses (2), (4), and (6); paragraph​
(c), clauses (1) and (2); and paragraphs (d) and (e).​

History: 2007 c 144 art 3 s 12; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 28; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 30; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 30​

136A.68 RECORDS.​

(a) A registered school shall maintain a permanent record for each student for 50 years from the last​
date of the student's attendance. A registered school offering distance instruction to a student located in​
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Minnesota shall maintain a permanent record for each Minnesota student for 50 years from the last date of​
the student's attendance. Records include a student's academic transcript, documents, and files containing​
student data about academic credits earned, courses completed, grades awarded, degrees awarded, and​
periods of attendance.​

(b) A registered school shall maintain records required for professional licensure in Minnesota that are​
not included in paragraph (a) for ten years from the last date of the student's attendance or the number of​
years required by an institutional or programmatic accreditor, whichever is greater.​

(c) To preserve permanent records, a school shall submit a plan that meets the following requirements:​

(1) at least one copy of the records must be held in a secure, fireproof depository or duplicate records​
must be maintained off site in a secure location and in a manner approved by the office;​

(2) an appropriate official must be designated to provide a student with copies of records or a transcript​
upon request;​

(3) an alternative method approved by the office of complying with clauses (1) and (2) must be established​
if the school ceases to exist; and​

(4) if the school has no binding agreement approved by the office for preserving student records, a​
continuous surety bond or an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a financial institution must be filed with​
the office in an amount not to exceed $20,000. The bond or irrevocable letter of credit shall run to the state​
of Minnesota. In the event of a school closure, the surety bond or irrevocable letter of credit must be used​
by the office to retrieve, recover, maintain, digitize, and destroy academic records.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 8; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 13; 2017 c 89 art 3​
s 13; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 29​

136A.685 PRIVATE INSTITUTIONS; ADJUDICATION OF FRAUD OR MISREPRESENTATION.​

(a) The office may revoke, or deny an application for, registration or degree or name approval to a school​
if there has been a criminal, civil, or administrative adjudication of fraud or misrepresentation in Minnesota​
or in another state or jurisdiction against the school or its owner, officers, agents, or sponsoring organization.​
If the adjudication was related to a particular academic program, the office may revoke or deny an application​
for:​

(1) degree approval for the program only;​

(2) registration for the school; or​

(3) name approval for the school.​

(b) The adjudication of fraud or misrepresentation is sufficient cause for the office to determine that a​
school:​

(1) does not qualify for exemption under section 136A.657; or​

(2) is not approved to grant degrees or to use the term "academy," "college," "institute," or "university"​
in its name.​

History: 1995 c 212 art 3 s 40; 1996 c 366 s 1; 2014 c 149 s 41; 2017 c 89 art 2 s 15​

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota​
Revisor of Statutes​

84​MINNESOTA STATUTES 2025​136A.68​



136A.69 FEES.​

Subdivision 1. Registration fees. (a) The office shall collect reasonable registration fees that are sufficient​
to recover, but do not exceed, its costs of administering the registration program. The office shall charge​
the fees listed in paragraphs (b) to (d) for new registrations.​

(b) A new school must pay registration fees based on the institution's total full-time equivalent enrollment​
in the following amounts:​

(1) $5,000 for institutions with 2,500 or fewer full-time equivalent enrollment;​

(2) $7,500 for institutions with 2,501 to 5,000 full-time equivalent enrollment;​

(3) $10,000 for institutions with 5,001 to 7,500 full-time equivalent enrollment;​

(4) $15,000 for institutions with 7,501 to 10,000 full-time equivalent enrollment; and​

(5) $20,000 for institutions with 10,001 or greater full-time equivalent enrollment, and for institutions​
with no data on the previous year's full-time equivalent enrollment.​

Full-time equivalent enrollment is established using the previous year's full-time equivalent enrollment as​
established in the United States Department of Education Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System.​

(c) A new school must pay registration fees in an amount equal to the fee under paragraph (b), plus fees​
for each nondegree program or degree as follows:​

$250​nondegree program​

$750​degree program​

(d) In addition to the fees under paragraphs (b) and (c), a fee of $600 must be paid for an initial application​
that: (1) has had four revisions, corrections, amendment requests, or application reminders for the same​
application or registration requirement; or (2) cumulatively has had six revisions, corrections, amendment​
requests, or application reminders for the same license application and the school seeks to continue with the​
application process with additional application submissions. If this fee is paid, the school may submit two​
final application submissions for review prior to application denial under section 136A.65, subdivision 8.​
This provision excludes from its scope nonrepetitive questions or clarifications initiated by the school before​
the submission of the application, initial interpretation questions or inquiries from the office regarding a​
completed application, and initial requests from the office for verification or validation of a completed​
application.​

(e) The annual renewal registration fee is based on an institution's total full-time equivalent enrollment​
in the following amounts:​

(1) $1,500 for institutions with 2,500 or fewer full-time equivalent enrollment;​

(2) $3,000 for institutions with 2,501 to 5,000 full-time equivalent enrollment;​

(3) $5,000 for institutions with 5,001 to 10,000 full-time equivalent enrollment; and​

(4) $7,500 for institutions with 10,001 or greater full-time equivalent enrollment, and for institutions​
with no data on the previous year's full-time equivalent enrollment.​
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Full-time equivalent enrollment is established using the previous year's full-time equivalent enrollment as​
established in the United States Department of Education Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System.​

(f) In addition to the fee under paragraph (e), a fee of $600 must be paid for a renewal application that:​
(1) has had four revisions, corrections, amendment requests, or application reminders for the same application​
or registration requirement; or (2) cumulatively has had six revisions, corrections, amendment requests, or​
application reminders for the same license application and the school seeks to continue with the application​
process with additional application submissions. If this fee is paid, the school may submit two final application​
submissions for review prior to application denial under section 136A.65, subdivision 8. This provision​
excludes from its scope nonrepetitive questions or clarifications initiated by the school before the submission​
of the application, initial interpretation questions or inquiries from the office regarding a completed application,​
and initial requests from the office for verification or validation of a completed application.​

Subd. 2. [Repealed, 2010 c 215 art 2 s 21]​

Subd. 3. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 4. Visit or consulting fee. If the office determines that a fact-finding visit or outside consultant​
is necessary to review, investigate, or evaluate any degree or nondegree program or the institution for statutory​
compliance with the Minnesota Private and Out-of-State Public Postsecondary Education Act, the office​
shall be reimbursed for the expenses incurred related to the review as follows:​

(1) $400 for the team base fee or for a paper review conducted by a consultant if the office determines​
that a fact-finding visit is not required;​

(2) $300 for each day or part thereof on site per team member; and​

(3) the actual cost of customary meals, lodging, and related travel expenses incurred by team members.​

Subd. 5. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

History: 1975 c 201 s 9; 1975 c 271 s 6; 1989 c 293 s 58; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 19; 1995 c 212 art 3 s​
41; 2003 c 133 art 2 s 17; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 14; 2008 c 298 s 15; 2010 c 215 art 2 s 10-12; 2020 c 109 art​
3 s 10,11; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 31; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 31; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 31​

136A.70 [Repealed, 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 26]​

136A.705 PENALTY.​

The commissioner may assess fines for violations of a provision of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71. Each​
day's failure to comply with a provision of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71 shall be a separate violation and​
fines shall not exceed $500 per day per violation. Amounts received under this section must be deposited​
in the special revenue fund and are appropriated to the office for the purposes in sections 136A.61 to 136A.71.​

History: 2007 c 144 art 3 s 15; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 74​

136A.71 INJUNCTION.​

Upon application of the attorney general the district courts shall have jurisdiction to enjoin any violations​
of sections 136A.61 to 136A.71.​

History: 1975 c 201 s 11​

136A.80 [Renumbered 135A.51]​
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136A.81 [Renumbered 135A.52]​

PRIVATE CAREER SCHOOLS​

136A.82 POLICY; CITATION.​

Subdivision 1. Policy. The legislature has found and hereby declares that the availability of legitimate​
vocational programs offered by responsible nonprofit and for-profit private career schools are in the best​
interests of the people of this state. The legislature has found and declares that the state can provide assistance​
and protection for persons choosing vocational programs by establishing policies and procedures to ensure​
the authenticity and legitimacy of vocational programs offered by nonprofit and for-profit private career​
schools. The legislature has found and declares that this same policy applies to any nonprofit and for-profit​
private career schools located in another state or country that offers or makes available to a Minnesota​
resident any vocational program which does not require leaving the state for its completion.​

Subd. 2. Citation. Sections 136A.82 to 136A.834 may be cited as the "Private Career School Act."​

History: 1999 c 214 art 3 s 1; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 46; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 32​

136A.821 DEFINITIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Words, terms and phrases. The following words, terms and phrases shall have the​
meanings ascribed to them in this section.​

Subd. 2. Office of Higher Education or office. "Office of Higher Education" or "office" means the​
Minnesota Office of Higher Education.​

Subd. 3. Solicitor. "Solicitor" means a person who for a salary or for commission, acts as an agent,​
independent contractor, salesperson, or counselor in recruiting students for a program using any method, at​
any place except on the actual business premises of the private career school, other than only providing​
public information at the invitation or permission of a private career school or educational organization.​

Subd. 4. Person. "Person" means any individual, partnership, company, firm, society, trust, association,​
or corporation or any combination thereof. Person does not extend to:​

(1) a government body;​

(2) a public school as defined in section 120A.05, subdivisions 9, 11, 13, and 17; or​

(3) a nonpublic school, religious organization, or home school as defined in section 120A.22, subdivision​
4.​

Subd. 5. Private career school. "Private career school" means a person who maintains a physical​
presence for any program at less than an associate degree level. Private career school does not extend to:​

(1) public postsecondary institutions with a physical presence in Minnesota;​

(2) postsecondary institutions registered under sections 136A.61 to 136A.71;​

(3) postsecondary institutions exempt from registration under section 136A.653, subdivisions 1b, 2, 3,​
and 3a; 136A.657; or 136A.658 due to the nature of the institution's programs;​

(4) schools exclusively engaged in training physically or mentally disabled persons;​
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(5) courses taught to students in an apprenticeship program registered by the United States Department​
of Labor or Minnesota Department of Labor and taught by or required by a trade union in which students​
are not responsible for tuition, fees, or any other charges, regardless of payment or reimbursement method;​

(6) programs contracted by persons or government agencies for the training of their own employees for​
which no fee is charged to the employee, regardless of whether that fee is reimbursed by the employer or a​
third party after the employee successfully completes the training, except for institutions or programs required​
to obtain a limited license exclusively to receive the dual training grant;​

(7) schools with no physical presence in Minnesota engaged exclusively in offering distance programs​
that are located in and approved by other states or jurisdictions if the distance education program does not​
include internships, externships, field placements, or clinical placements for residents of Minnesota;​

(8) schools licensed or approved by other state boards or agencies authorized under Minnesota law to​
issue licenses for institutions or programs, except for institutions or programs required to be licensed​
exclusively to participate in state financial aid or be listed on the eligible training provider list, access WIOA​
funding, or receive the dual training grant;​

(9) review classes, courses, or programs intended to prepare students to sit for undergraduate, graduate,​
postgraduate, or occupational licensing, certification, or entrance examinations;​

(10) classes, courses, or programs conducted by a bona fide trade, professional, or fraternal organization,​
solely for that organization's membership and not available to the public. In making the determination that​
the organization is bona fide, the office may request the school provide three certified letters from persons​
that qualify as evaluators under section 136A.828, subdivision 3, paragraph (l), that the organization is​
recognized in Minnesota;​

(11) programs in the fine arts provided by organizations exempt from taxation under section 290.05 and​
registered with the attorney general under chapter 309. For purposes of this clause, "fine arts" means activities​
resulting in artistic creation or artistic performance of works of the imagination which are engaged in for​
the primary purpose of creative expression rather than commercial sale, vocational or career advancement,​
or employment; or​

(12) classes, courses, or programs intended to fulfill the continuing education requirements for a bona​
fide licensure or certification in a profession that have been approved by a legislatively or judicially established​
board or agency responsible for regulating the practice of the profession or by an industry-specific certification​
entity and that are offered exclusively to individuals with the professional licensure or certification.​

Subd. 6. Course. "Course" means any classroom or distance instruction; any subunit of a program; or​
any combination thereof.​

Subd. 7. Multiple location. "Multiple location" means any site where classes or administrative services​
are provided to students and that has a street address that is different than the street address found on the​
private career school's license.​

Subd. 8. Placement service. "Placement service" means a service offered or advertised by a private​
career school for the purpose of assisting the student in obtaining employment.​

Subd. 9. Program. "Program" means any course or grouping of courses that is advertised or listed in a​
private career school's catalog, brochures, electronic display, or other publications, or for which the private​
career school grants a formal recognition.​
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Subd. 10. Distance education private career school. "Distance education private career school" means​
a private career school that establishes, keeps, or maintains a facility or location where a program is offered​
through distance instruction.​

Subd. 11. Distance instruction. "Distance instruction" means any method of instruction outside the​
traditional in-classroom instruction, including, but not limited to, the use of the United States mail and other​
correspondence; Internet and other online computer-based education; or CD-ROM self-instruction.​

Subd. 12. Electronic display. "Electronic display" means text, images, or sound rendered via any​
electronic device designed to present information, whether generated by the device or transmitted from​
another source.​

Subd. 13. Compliance audit. "Compliance audit" means an audit of a school's compliance with federal​
requirements related to its participation in federal Title IV student aid programs or other federal grant​
programs performed under either Uniform Grant Guidance, including predecessor Federal Circular A-133,​
or the United States Department of Education's audit guide, Audits of Federal Student Financial Assistance​
Programs at Participating Institutions and Institution Servicers.​

Subd. 14. Entity. "Entity" means a specific school or campus location.​

Subd. 15. Higher-level entity. "Higher-level entity" means a corporate parent or ultimate parent company​
or, in the case of a public school, the larger public system of which an entity is a part.​

Subd. 16. Audited financial statements. "Audited financial statements" means the financial statements​
of an entity or higher-level entity that have been examined by a certified public accountant or an equivalent​
government agency for public entities that include (1) an auditor's report, a statement of financial position,​
an income statement, a statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements or (2) the required​
equivalents for public entities as determined by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Governmental​
Accounting Standards Board, or the Securities and Exchange Commission.​

Subd. 17. Review-level engagement. "Review-level engagement" means a service performed by a​
certified public accountant that provides limited assurance that there are no material modifications that need​
to be made to an entity's financial statements in order for them to conform to generally accepted accounting​
principles. Review-level engagement provides fewer assurances than those reported under audited financial​
statements.​

Subd. 18. Clock hour. "Clock hour" means a period of time consisting of a 50- to 60-minute class,​
lecture, or recitation in a 60-minute period; a 50- to 60-minute faculty-supervised laboratory, shop training,​
or internship in a 60-minute period; or 60 minutes of preparation in a correspondence course. If a school​
seeks to determine the number of clock hours in an educational program by aggregating the number of​
minutes in that program, it must divide those minutes by 60.​

Subd. 19. Student record. "Student record" means a transcript or record of student attendance in a​
program that includes, at a minimum, the student's name, the student's address, the school's name, the school's​
address, the title of the course or program, the total number of hours or courses completed, the dates of​
enrollment and attendance, the grade record of each course, any credential awarded, and the cumulative​
grade for the program.​

Subd. 20. Physical presence. "Physical presence" means presence within the state of Minnesota for the​
purpose of conducting activity related to any program at less than an associate degree level. Physical presence​
includes:​
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(1) operating a location within the state;​

(2) offering instruction within or originating from Minnesota designed to impart knowledge with response​
utilizing teachers, trainers, counselors or computer resources, computer linking, or any form of electronic​
means;​

(3) granting an educational credential from a location within the state or to a student within the state;​
and​

(4) using an agent, recruiter, institution, or business that solicits for enrollment or credits or for the award​
of an educational credential.​

Physical presence does not include field trips, sanctioned sports recruiting activities, or college fairs or other​
assemblies of schools in Minnesota. No school may enroll an individual, allow an individual to sign any​
agreement obligating the person to the school, accept any moneys from the individual, or follow up with an​
individual by means of an in-person meeting in Minnesota at a college fair or assembly.​

Subd. 21. Vocational. "Vocational" means education or training for skills used in the labor market.​

Subd. 22. Trade union. "Trade union" means an organization of workers in a skilled occupation who​
act together to secure all members favorable wages, hours, or other working conditions.​

Subd. 23. Eligible training provider. "Eligible training provider" has the meaning given in Code of​
Federal Regulations, title 20, section 680.410.​

Subd. 24. Eligible training provider list. "Eligible training provider list" means the list of eligible​
training providers that the state must maintain under Code of Federal Regulations, title 20, section 680.430.​

Subd. 25. State financial aid. For purposes of sections 136A.82 to 136A.834, "state financial aid"​
includes all financial aid that may be awarded under chapter 136A, with the exception of the dual training​
grant.​

Subd. 26. WIOA funding. "WIOA funding" means any funding available through the Workforce​
Innovation and Opportunity Act under Code of Federal Regulations, title 20, section 680.​

Subd. 27. Dual training grant. "Dual training grant" means any money awarded under section 136A.246.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 1; 1973 c 714 s 1,2; 1986 c 444; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 18,28; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59;​
1999 c 214 art 3 s 2-8; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; art 3 s 1; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 16,17; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 20-22,46;​
2017 c 89 art 3 s 14-18; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 28,29; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 32,33; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 32,33;​
1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 33-41​

136A.822 LICENSURE.​

Subdivision 1. Required. A private career school must not maintain a physical presence for any program​
in Minnesota without first obtaining a license from the office.​

Subd. 2. Contract unenforceable. A contract entered into with a person for a program by or on behalf​
of a person operating a private career school with a physical presence in Minnesota to which a license has​
not been issued under sections 136A.821 to 136A.833, is unenforceable in any action.​

Subd. 3. Refunds. If a contract is determined by the office to be unenforceable under subdivision 2, a​
private career school must refund tuition, fees, and other charges received from a student or on behalf of a​
student within 30 days of receiving written notification and demand for refund from the office.​
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Subd. 4. Application. Application for a license shall be on forms prepared and furnished by the office,​
and shall include the following and other information as the office may require:​

(1) the title or name of the private career school, ownership and controlling officers, members, managing​
employees, and director;​

(2) the specific programs which will be offered and the specific purposes of the instruction;​

(3) the place or places where the instruction will be given;​

(4) a listing of the equipment available for instruction in each program;​

(5) the maximum enrollment to be accommodated with equipment available in each specified program;​

(6) the qualifications of instructors and supervisors in each specified program;​

(7) financial documents related to the entity's and higher-level entity's most recently completed fiscal​
year:​

(i) annual gross revenues from all sources;​

(ii) financial statements subjected to a review-level engagement or, if requested by the office, audited​
financial statements;​

(iii) a school's most recent compliance audit, if applicable; and​

(iv) a current balance sheet, income statement, and adequate supporting documentation, prepared and​
certified by an independent public accountant or CPA;​

(8) copies of all media advertising and promotional literature and brochures or electronic display currently​
used or reasonably expected to be used by the private career school;​

(9) copies of all Minnesota enrollment agreement forms and contract forms and all enrollment agreement​
forms and contract forms used in Minnesota; and​

(10) gross income earned in the preceding year from student tuition, fees, and other required institutional​
charges.​

Subd. 5. Certification. Each application shall be signed and certified to under oath by the proprietor if​
the applicant is a proprietorship, by the managing partner if the applicant is a partnership, or by the authorized​
officers of the applicant if the applicant is a corporation, association, company, firm, society or trust.​

Subd. 6. Bond. (a) No license shall be issued to any private career school with a physical presence within​
the state of Minnesota for any program, unless the applicant files with the office a continuous corporate​
surety bond written by a company authorized to do business in Minnesota conditioned upon the faithful​
performance of all contracts and agreements with students made by the applicant.​

(b) The amount of the surety bond shall be ten percent of the preceding year's net revenue from student​
tuition, fees, and other required institutional charges collected, but in no event less than $10,000, except that​
a private career school may deposit a greater amount at its own discretion. A private career school in each​
annual application for licensure must compute the amount of the surety bond and verify that the amount of​
the surety bond complies with this subdivision. A private career school that operates at two or more locations​
may combine net revenue from student tuition, fees, and other required institutional charges collected for​
all locations for the purpose of determining the annual surety bond requirement. The net revenue from tuition​
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and fees used to determine the amount of the surety bond required for a private career school having a license​
for the sole purpose of recruiting students in Minnesota shall be only that paid to the private career school​
by the students recruited from Minnesota.​

(c) The bond shall run to the state of Minnesota and to any person who may have a cause of action​
against the applicant arising at any time after the bond is filed and before it is canceled for breach of any​
contract or agreement made by the applicant with any student. The aggregate liability of the surety for all​
breaches of the conditions of the bond shall not exceed the principal sum deposited by the private career​
school under paragraph (b). The surety of any bond may cancel it upon giving 60 days' notice in writing to​
the office and shall be relieved of liability for any breach of condition occurring after the effective date of​
cancellation.​

(d) In lieu of bond, the applicant may deposit with the commissioner of management and budget a sum​
equal to the amount of the required surety bond in cash, an irrevocable letter of credit issued by a financial​
institution equal to the amount of the required surety bond, or securities as may be legally purchased by​
savings banks or for trust funds in an aggregate market value equal to the amount of the required surety​
bond.​

(e) Failure of a private career school to post and maintain the required surety bond or deposit under​
paragraph (d) may result in denial, suspension, or revocation of the school's license.​

Subd. 7. Resident agent. Private career schools located outside the state of Minnesota that have a​
physical presence within the state of Minnesota shall first file with the secretary of state a sworn statement​
designating a resident agent authorized to receive service of process. The statement shall designate the​
secretary of state as resident agent for service of process in the absence of a designated agent. If a private​
career school fails to file the statement, the secretary of state is designated as the resident agent authorized​
to receive service of process. The authorization shall be irrevocable as to causes of action arising out of​
transactions occurring prior to the filing of written notice of withdrawal from the state of Minnesota filed​
with the secretary of state.​

Subd. 8. Minimum standards. A license shall be issued if the office first determines:​

(1) that the applicant has a sound financial condition with sufficient resources available to:​

(i) meet the private career school's financial obligations;​

(ii) refund all tuition and other charges, within 60 days, in the event of dissolution of the private career​
school or in the event of any justifiable claims for refund against the private career school by the student​
body;​

(iii) provide adequate service to its students and prospective students; and​

(iv) maintain and support the private career school;​

(2) that the applicant has satisfactory facilities with sufficient tools and equipment and the necessary​
number of work stations to prepare adequately the students currently enrolled, and those proposed to be​
enrolled;​

(3) that the applicant employs a sufficient number of qualified teaching personnel to provide the​
educational programs contemplated;​

(4) that the private career school has an organizational framework with administrative and instructional​
personnel to provide the programs and services it intends to offer;​
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(5) that the quality and content of each occupational course or program of study provides education and​
adequate preparation to enrolled students for entry level positions in the occupation for which prepared;​

(6) that the premises and conditions where the students work and study and the student living quarters​
which are owned, maintained, recommended, or approved by the applicant are sanitary, healthful, and safe,​
as evidenced by certificate of occupancy issued by the municipality or county where the private career school​
is physically situated, a fire inspection by the local or state fire marshal, or another verification deemed​
acceptable by the office;​

(7) that the contract or enrollment agreement used by the private career school complies with the​
provisions in section 136A.826;​

(8) that contracts and agreements do not contain a wage assignment provision or a confession of judgment​
clause;​

(9) that there has been no adjudication of fraud or misrepresentation in any criminal, civil, or​
administrative proceeding in any jurisdiction against the private career school or its owner, officers, agents,​
or sponsoring organization;​

(10) that the private career school or its owners, officers, agents, or sponsoring organization has not had​
a license revoked under section 136A.829 or its equivalent in other states or has closed the institution prior​
to all students, enrolled at the time of the closure, completing their program within two years of the effective​
date of the revocation; and​

(11) that the school includes a joint and several liability provision for torts and compliance with the​
requirements of sections 136A.82 to 136A.834 in any contract effective after July 1, 2026, with any individual,​
entity, or postsecondary school located in another state for the purpose of providing educational or training​
programs or awarding postsecondary credits to Minnesota residents that may be applied to a program.​

Subd. 9. Fees and terms of license. An application for an initial license under sections 136A.821 to​
136A.833 shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable application fee as provided in section 136A.824 that is​
sufficient to recover, but not exceed, the administrative costs of the office.​

All licenses shall expire one year from the date issued by the office, except as provided in section​
136A.823.​

Subd. 10. Catalog, brochure, or electronic display. Before a license is issued to a private career school,​
the private career school shall furnish to the office a catalog, brochure, or electronic display including:​

(1) identifying data, such as volume number and date of publication;​

(2) name and address of the private career school and its governing body and officials;​

(3) a calendar of the private career school showing legal holidays, beginning and ending dates of each​
course quarter, term, or semester, and other important dates;​

(4) the private career school policy and regulations on enrollment including dates and specific entrance​
requirements for each program;​

(5) the private career school policy and regulations about leave, absences, class cuts, make-up work,​
tardiness, and interruptions for unsatisfactory attendance;​
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(6) the private career school policy and regulations about standards of progress for the student including​
the grading system of the private career school, the minimum grades considered satisfactory, conditions for​
interruption for unsatisfactory grades or progress, a description of any probationary period allowed by the​
private career school, and conditions of reentrance for those dismissed for unsatisfactory progress;​

(7) the private career school policy and regulations about student conduct and conditions for dismissal​
for unsatisfactory conduct;​

(8) a detailed schedule of fees, charges for tuition, books, supplies, tools, student activities, laboratory​
fees, service charges, rentals, deposits, and all other charges;​

(9) the private career school policy and regulations, including an explanation of section 136A.827, about​
refunding tuition, fees, and other charges if the student does not enter the program, withdraws from the​
program, or the program is discontinued;​

(10) a description of the available facilities and equipment;​

(11) a course outline syllabus for each course offered showing course objectives, subjects or units in​
the course, type of work or skill to be learned, and approximate time, hours, or credits to be spent on each​
subject or unit;​

(12) the private career school policy and regulations about granting credit for previous education and​
preparation;​

(13) a notice to students relating to the transferability of any credits earned at the private career school​
to other institutions;​

(14) a procedure for investigating and resolving student complaints;​

(15) the name and address of the office; and​

(16) the student complaint process and rights under section 136A.8295.​

A private career school that is exclusively a distance education school is exempt from clauses (3) and​
(5).​

Subd. 11. Placement records. (a) Before a license is reissued to a private career school that offers,​
advertises or implies a placement service, the private career school shall file with the office for the past year​
and thereafter at reasonable intervals determined by the office, a certified copy of the private career school's​
placement record, containing a list of graduates, a description of their jobs, names of their employers, and​
other information as the office may prescribe.​

(b) Each private career school that offers a placement service shall furnish to each prospective student,​
upon request, prior to enrollment, written information concerning the percentage of the previous year's​
graduates who were placed in the occupation for which prepared or in related employment.​

Subd. 12. Permanent student records. (a) A private career school licensed under sections 136A.82 to​
136A.834 and located in Minnesota shall maintain a permanent student record for each student for 50 years​
from the last date of the student's attendance. A private career school licensed under this chapter and offering​
distance instruction to a student located in Minnesota shall maintain a permanent record for each Minnesota​
student for 50 years from the last date of the student's attendance. Records include school transcripts,​
documents, and files containing student data about academic credits earned, courses completed, grades​
awarded, degrees awarded, and periods of attendance.​
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(b) A private career school licensed under sections 136A.82 to 136A.834 and located in Minnesota shall​
maintain a permanent student record required for professional licensure in Minnesota for each student for​
ten years from the last date of the student's attendance or the number of years required by an institutional​
or programmatic accreditor, whichever is greater. A private career school licensed under this chapter and​
offering distance instruction to a student located in Minnesota shall maintain records required for professional​
licensure in Minnesota that are not included in paragraph (a) for each Minnesota student for ten years from​
the last date of the student's attendance or the number of years required by an institutional or programmatic​
accreditor, whichever is greater.​

To preserve permanent student records, a private career school shall submit a plan that meets the following​
requirements:​

(1) at least one copy of the records must be held in a secure, fireproof depository;​

(2) an appropriate official must be designated to provide a student with copies of records or a transcript​
upon request;​

(3) an alternative method, approved by the office, of complying with clauses (1) and (2) must be​
established if the private career school ceases to exist; and​

(4) a continuous surety bond or irrevocable letter of credit issued by a financial institution must be filed​
with the office in an amount not to exceed $20,000 if the private career school has no binding agreement​
approved by the office, for preserving student records. The bond or irrevocable letter of credit shall run to​
the state of Minnesota. In the event of a school closure, the surety bond or irrevocable letter of credit must​
be used by the office to retrieve, recover, maintain, digitize, and destroy academic records.​

Subd. 13. Limited license. (a) Unless otherwise exempt under sections 136A.82 to 136A.834:​

(1) a private career school licensed by another state agency or board must be required to obtain a limited​
license to participate in state financial aid; and​

(2) a private career school exclusively seeking to be listed on the eligible training provider list, access​
WIOA funding, or receive the dual training grant shall be required to obtain a limited license.​

(b) A private career school seeking a limited license under this subdivision shall be required to satisfy​
only the requirements of subdivisions 4, clauses (1), (2), (3), (7), (8), (9), and (10); 5; 8, clauses (1), (4), (7),​
(8), (9), and (10); 9; 10; 11; and 12. If a school is licensed to participate in state financial aid under this​
chapter, the school must follow the refund policy in section 136A.827, even if that section conflicts with​
the refund policy of the licensing agency or board. A distance education private career school located in​
another state, or a school licensed to recruit Minnesota residents for attendance at a school outside of this​
state, or a school licensed by another state agency as its primary licensing body, may continue to use the​
school's name as permitted by its home state or its primary licensing body.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 5; 1971 c 781 s 1,2; 1973 c 714 s 3-9; 1980 c 559 s 1; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 67-70;​
1986 c 444; 1989 c 329 art 12 s 4; 1990 c 562 art 3 s 9,10; 1991 c 265 art 8 s 10; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 27;​
1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 21; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 43,59; 1996 c 366 s 2; 1999 c 214 art 3 s 9-18; 2003 c 112 art​
2 s 50; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; art 3 s 2-6; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 18-23; 2008 c 298 s 21,22; 2009 c 101 art 2 s​
109; 2010 c 364 s 19-21; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 23,46; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 19-22; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 30-32; 1Sp2021​
c 2 art 2 s 30; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 34-38; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 34-38; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 42-45​
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136A.8225 SCHOOL CLOSURE.​

(a) When a school intends to cease postsecondary education operations, announces its closure, or is​
informed by the office that the office anticipates the school's closure due to its licensure status or ability to​
meet criteria for approval under section 136A.822, subdivision 8, the school must provide the office:​

(1) a notice of closure, including the name of the school, the name of the school owner, an active mailing​
address and telephone number that the school owner may be reached at after the school physically closes,​
the name of the school director, and the planned date for termination of postsecondary operations;​

(2) a report of all students currently enrolled and all students enrolled within the prior 120 days, including​
the following information for each student: name, address, school email address, alternate email address,​
program of study, number of credits completed, number of credits remaining, and enrollment status at closure;​

(3) a report of refunds due to any student and the amount due;​

(4) a written statement from the school's owner or designee affirming that all recruitment efforts, school​
marketing, advertisement, solicitation, and enrollment of new students has ceased;​

(5) a copy of any communication between the school's accreditors about the school closure;​

(6) confirmation that the requirements for student records under section 136A.822, subdivision 12, have​
been satisfied, including:​

(i) the planned date for the transfer of the student records;​

(ii) confirmation of the name and address of the organization to receive and hold the student records;​
and​

(iii) the official at the organization receiving the student records who is designated to provide official​
copies of records or transcripts upon request;​

(7) academic information, including the school's most recent catalog, all course syllabi, and faculty​
credential information; and​

(8) copies of any teach-out, transfer, or train-out agreement between the school and a new school for​
students to be able to complete their studies. A teach-out fulfills the original contract or agreement between​
the closing school and the student. If a teach-out is arranged for another approved school to do the remaining​
occupational training, that other school must (i) provide comparable education and training and (ii) agree​
that students transferring from the closing school pay only what the cost of tuition and fees remain unpaid​
according to the terms and conditions in the enrollment agreement entered into between the student and the​
closing school.​

(b) Without limitation as to other circumstance, a school shall be deemed to have ceased operations​
when the school:​

(1) has an unscheduled nonemergency closure or cancellation of classes for more than 24 hours without​
prior notice to the office;​

(2) announces it is closed or closing;​

(3) files for bankruptcy; or​

(4) fails to complete a renewal application when required under section 136A.823, subdivision 3.​
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(c) When a school is deemed to have ceased operations, the office shall provide the school a reasonable​
time to correct student records and grant credentials. After that time, the office must revoke the school's​
license. This revocation is not appealable under section 136A.829, subdivision 2.​

History: 2019 c 64 art 2 s 33; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 31​

136A.823 LICENSE RENEWAL.​

Subdivision 1. Application. Application for renewal of a license must be made at least 60 days before​
expiration of the current license on a form provided by the office. A renewal application shall be accompanied​
by a nonrefundable fee as provided in section 136A.824 that is sufficient to recover, but does not exceed,​
the administrative costs of the office.​

Subd. 2. MS 2020 [Repealed, 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 47]​

Subd. 3. Change of ownership. Within 30 days of a change of ownership, a school must submit a​
registration renewal application, the information and materials for an initial registration under section​
136A.822, subdivision 4, and the applicable registration fees for a new institution under section 136A.824,​
subdivision 1. For purposes of this subdivision, "change of ownership" means: a merger or consolidation​
with a corporation; a sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of a​
school; the transfer of a controlling interest of at least 51 percent of the school's stock; entering into​
receivership; or a change in the nonprofit or for-profit status of a school.​

History: 1999 c 214 art 3 s 19; 2005 c 107 art 3 s 7; 2010 c 364 s 22; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 24,46; 1Sp2021​
c 2 art 2 s 32​

136A.824 FEES.​

Subdivision 1. Initial licensure fee. (a) The office processing fee for an initial licensure application is:​

(1) $3,730 for a private career school that will offer no more than one program during its first year of​
operation;​

(2) $1,500 for a private career school licensed by another state agency and seeking a limited license​
exclusively in order to participate in state financial aid; and​

(3) $3,730, plus $500 for each additional program offered by the private career school, for a private​
career school during its first year of licensed operation.​

(b) In addition to the fee under paragraph (a), a fee of $600 must be paid for an initial application that:​
(1) has had four revisions, corrections, amendment requests, or application reminders for the same application​
or licensure requirement; or (2) cumulatively has had six revisions, corrections, amendment requests, or​
application reminders for the same license application and the private career school seeks to continue with​
the application process with additional application submissions. If this fee is paid, the private career school​
may submit two final application submissions for review prior to application denial under section 136A.829,​
subdivision 1, clause (2). This provision excludes from its scope nonrepetitive questions or clarifications​
initiated by the school before the submission of the application, initial interpretation questions or inquiries​
from the office regarding a completed application, and initial requests from the office for verification or​
validation of a completed application.​

Subd. 2. Renewal licensure fee; late fee. (a) The office processing fee for a renewal licensure application​
is:​
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(1) for a private career school, the license renewal fee is $3,160; and​

(2) for a private career school licensed by another state agency and that also has a limited license with​
the office exclusively in order to participate in state financial aid, the license renewal fee is $1,500.​

(b) If a license renewal application is not received by the office by the expiration of the current license,​
a late fee of $100 per business day, not to exceed $3,000, shall be assessed.​

(c) In addition to the fee under paragraph (a), a fee of $600 must be paid for a renewal application that:​
(1) has had four revisions, corrections, amendment requests, or application reminders for the same application​
or licensure requirement; or (2) cumulatively has had six revisions, corrections, amendment requests, or​
application reminders for the same license application and the private career school seeks to continue with​
the application process with additional application submissions. If this fee is paid, the private career school​
may submit two final application submissions for review prior to application denial under section 136A.829,​
subdivision 1, clause (2). This provision excludes from its scope nonrepetitive questions or clarifications​
initiated by the school before the submission of the application, initial interpretation questions or inquiries​
from the office regarding a completed application, and initial requests from the office for verification or​
validation of a completed application.​

Subd. 3. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 4. Visit or consulting fee. If the office determines that a fact-finding visit or outside consultant​
is necessary to review, investigate, or evaluate any new or revised program or the private career school for​
statutory compliance with the Private Career School Act, the office shall be reimbursed for the expenses​
incurred related to the review as follows:​

(1) $400 for the team base fee or for a paper review conducted by a consultant if the office determines​
that a fact-finding visit is not required;​

(2) $300 for each day or part thereof on site per team member; and​

(3) the actual cost of customary meals, lodging, and related travel expenses incurred by team members.​

Subd. 5. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

Subd. 6. Solicitor permit fee. The solicitor permit fee is $500 and must be paid annually.​

Subd. 7. Multiple location fee. Private career schools wishing to operate at multiple locations must pay​
the greater of:​

(1) $500 per location; or​

(2) the actual cost of travel expenses, lodging, and customary meals incurred for an in-person site visit,​
should the office determine one is necessary.​

Subd. 8. Student transcript fee. The fee for a student transcript requested from a closed private career​
school whose records are held by the office is $15, with a maximum of five transcripts per request.​

Subd. 9. Public office documents; copies. The rate for copies of any public office document shall be​
50 cents per page.​

History: 2005 c 107 art 3 s 8; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 24; 2010 c 215 art 2 s 14; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 25,46;​
2020 c 109 art 3 s 12; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 39,40; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 39,40; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 46-49​
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136A.825 PERMITS FOR SOLICITORS.​

Subdivision 1. Required. A solicitor representing a private career school must obtain a solicitor's permit​
from the office before soliciting students to enroll in the private career school. Such permit shall expire one​
year following the date of issuance. Application for renewal of permit shall be made annually.​

Subd. 2. Application for permit. (a) The application for the permit shall state the full name, address,​
previous employment, and such other information concerning the solicitor applicant as the office may require.​

(b) The application shall have attached to it a certified affidavit signed by a private career school official​
and the solicitor attesting to the fact that the applicant has been furnished a copy, has read and has knowledge​
of the provisions of this chapter and Minnesota Rules.​

Subd. 3. Refusal of permit. No permit shall be issued to any solicitor unless such solicitor files with​
the office a continuous corporate surety bond in the sum of $2,000 conditioned upon the faithful performance​
of all contracts and agreements with the students made by the solicitor. Such bonds shall run to the state of​
Minnesota and to any person who may have cause of action against the applicant arising at any time after​
the bond is filed and before it is canceled for breach of any contract or agreement made by the solicitor with​
any student. The aggregate liability of the surety for all breaches of the conditions of the bond shall not​
exceed the principal sum of $2,000. The surety of any such bond may cancel it upon giving 60 days' notice​
in writing to the office and shall be relieved of liability for any breach of condition occurring after the​
effective date of cancellation. In lieu of bond, the solicitor may deposit with the commissioner of management​
and budget the sum of $2,000.​

Subd. 4. Additional permits. A solicitor representing more than one private career school must obtain​
a separate permit for each private career school represented; however when a solicitor represents private​
career schools having a common ownership, only one permit shall be required.​

Subd. 5. Fee. The initial and renewal application for each permit shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable​
fee under section 136A.824.​

Subd. 6. Contract; validity. Any contract entered into by a solicitor for a licensed private career school​
shall be unenforceable in any action brought thereon if the solicitor does not hold a valid permit as required​
by this section.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 6; 1971 c 781 s 3; 1973 c 714 s 10,11; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 71,72; 1989 c 329 art 12​
s 5; 1991 c 265 art 8 s 11; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 27; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 22,23; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 1996 c​
366 s 3; 1999 c 214 art 3 s 20; 2003 c 112 art 2 s 50; 2005 c 107 art 3 s 9; 2009 c 101 art 2 s 109; 2015 c​
69 art 2 s 26,46​

136A.826 INFORMATION TO STUDENTS.​

Subdivision 1. Catalog, brochure, or electronic display. A private career school or its agent must​
provide the catalog, brochure, or electronic display required in section 136A.822, subdivision 10, to a​
prospective student in a time or manner that gives the prospective student at least five days to read the​
catalog, brochure, or electronic display before signing a contract or enrollment agreement or before being​
accepted by a private career school that does not use a written contract or enrollment agreement.​

Subd. 2. Contract information. A contract or enrollment agreement used by a private career school​
must include at least the following:​

(1) the name and address of the private career school, clearly stated;​
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(2) a clear and conspicuous disclosure that the agreement is a legally binding instrument upon written​
acceptance of the student by the private career school unless canceled under section 136A.827;​

(3) the private career school's cancellation and refund policy that shall be clearly and conspicuously​
entitled "Buyer's Right to Cancel";​

(4) a clear statement of total cost of the program including tuition and all other charges;​

(5) the name and description of the program, including the number of hours or credits of classroom​
instruction, or distance instruction, that shall be included; and​

(6) a clear and conspicuous explanation of the form and means of notice the student should use in the​
event the student elects to cancel the contract or sale, the effective date of cancellation, and the name and​
address, email address, or phone number of the seller to which the notice should be sent or delivered.​

The contract or enrollment agreement must not include a wage assignment provision or a confession of​
judgment clause.​

Subd. 3. Contract copies. Immediately upon signing of the enrollment agreement or the contract by a​
prospective student, the private career school or agent shall furnish to the prospective student an exact​
duplicate copy of the enrollment agreement or contract.​

History: 1999 c 214 art 3 s 21; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 25; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 27,46; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 23​

136A.827 REFUNDS.​

Subdivision 1. Student. For the purposes of this section, "student" means the party to the contract,​
whether the party is the student, the student's parent or guardian, or other person on behalf of the student.​

Subd. 1a. Notice; right to refund. Every private career school shall notify each student, in writing, of​
acceptance or rejection. In the event that the student is rejected by the private career school, all tuition, fees​
and other charges shall be refunded.​

Subd. 1b. Short-term programs. Licensed private career schools conducting programs not exceeding​
40 hours in length shall not be required to make a full refund once a program has commenced and shall be​
allowed to prorate any refund based on the actual length of the program as stated in the private career school​
catalog or advertisements and the number of hours attended by the student.​

Subd. 2. Private career schools using written contracts. (a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary,​
a private career school that uses a written contract or enrollment agreement shall refund all tuition, fees and​
other charges paid by a student, if the student gives notice of cancellation within five business days after​
the day on which the contract was executed regardless of whether the program has started.​

(b) When a student has been accepted by the private career school and has entered into a contractual​
agreement with the private career school and gives notice of cancellation following the fifth business day​
after the date of execution of contract, but before the start of the program in the case of resident private​
career schools, or before the first lesson has been serviced by the private career school in the case of distance​
education private career schools, all tuition, fees and other charges, except 15 percent of the total cost of the​
program but not to exceed $50, shall be refunded to the student.​

Subd. 3. Notice; amount. (a) A private career school shall refund all tuition, fees and other charges paid​
by a student if the student gives notice of cancellation within five business days after the day on which the​
student is accepted by the private career school regardless of whether the program has started.​
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(b) When a student has been accepted by the private career school and gives notice of cancellation​
following the fifth business day after the day of acceptance by the private career school, but before the start​
of the program, in the case of resident private career schools, or before the first lesson has been serviced by​
the private career school, in the case of distance education private career schools, all tuition, fees and other​
charges, except 15 percent of the total cost of the program but not to exceed $50, shall be refunded to the​
student.​

Subd. 4. Proration. (a) When a student has been accepted by a private career school and gives notice​
of cancellation after the program of instruction has begun, the student is entitled to a refund if, at the last​
documented date of attendance, the student has not completed at least 75 percent of the entire program of​
instruction. For purposes of this subdivision, program of instruction is calculated under paragraph (c) or (d).​
Program of instruction does not mean one term, a payment period, a module, or any other portion of the​
entire instructional program.​

(b) A notice of cancellation from a student under this subdivision must be confirmed in writing by the​
private career school and mailed to the student's last known address. The confirmation from the school must​
state that the school has withdrawn the student from enrollment, and if this action was not the student's​
intent, the student must contact the school.​

(c) The length of a program of instruction for a program that has a defined calendar start and end date​
that does not change after the program has begun equals the number of days from the first scheduled date​
of the program through the last scheduled date of the program. To calculate the completion percentage,​
divide the number of calendar days from the first date of the program through the student's last documented​
date of attendance by the length of the program of instruction, and truncate the result after the second digit​
following the decimal point. If the completion percentage is less than 75 percent, the private career school​
may retain:​

(1) tuition, fees, and charges equal to the total of tuition, fees, and charges multiplied by the completion​
percentage; plus​

(2) the initial program application fees, not to exceed $50; plus​

(3) the lesser of (i) 25 percent of the total tuition, or (ii) $100.​

(d) The length of a program of instruction for a program that is measured in clock hours equals the​
number of clock hours the student was scheduled to attend. To calculate the completion percentage, divide​
the number of clock hours that the student actually attended by the length of the program of instruction, and​
truncate the result after the second digit following the decimal point. If the completion percentage is less​
than 75 percent, the private career school may retain:​

(1) tuition, fees, and charges equal to the total of tuition, fees, and charges multiplied by the completion​
percentage; plus​

(2) the initial program application fees, not to exceed $50; plus​

(3) the lesser of (i) 25 percent of the total tuition, or (ii) $100.​

Subd. 5. Equipment and supplies. The fair market retail price, if separately stated in the catalog and​
contract or enrollment agreement, of equipment or supplies furnished to the student, which the student fails​
to return in condition suitable for resale, and which may reasonably be resold, within ten business days​
following cancellation may be retained by the private career school and may be deducted from the total cost​
for tuition, fees and all other charges when computing refunds.​

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota​
Revisor of Statutes​

136A.827​MINNESOTA STATUTES 2025​101​



An overstatement of the fair market retail price of any equipment or supplies furnished the student shall​
be considered inconsistent with this provision.​

Subd. 6. Time of refund. Each private career school shall acknowledge in writing any valid notice of​
cancellation within ten business days after the receipt of such notice and within 30 business days shall refund​
to the student any amounts due and arrange for termination of the student's obligation to pay any sum in​
excess of that due under the cancellation and refund policy.​

Subd. 7. Limitation. A private career school cannot make its refund policy conditional upon compliance​
with the school's regulations or rules of conduct.​

Subd. 8. Cancellation occurrence. Notice of cancellation shall be the date a student notifies a private​
career school of the student's intention to withdraw or otherwise leave the program of study. The student is​
not required to provide a written notice. The private career school may require a student to provide the​
student's notification only to specific offices or personnel at the school as long as this requirement is​
documented as part of the "Student's Right to Cancel" in all places that the information appears, including​
on the private career school's website. The date of the notice of cancellation may or may not be the same​
date as the student's last documented date of attendance. If a student has not attended class for a period of​
14 consecutive days without contacting the private career school to provide notice of cancellation or otherwise​
make arrangements concerning the absence, the student is considered to have withdrawn from the private​
career school for all purposes as of the student's last documented date of attendance.​

Subd. 9. Date of execution. The date of execution of the contract or enrollment agreement shall be​
presumed to be the date of delivery of the notice of acceptance; and if delivered by mail, the postmark date​
of the letter of acceptance.​

Subd. 10. Instrument not to be negotiated. A private career school shall not negotiate any promissory​
instrument received as payment of tuition or other charge prior to completion of 50 percent of the program,​
except that prior to that time, instruments may be transferred by assignment to purchasers who shall be​
subject to all defenses available against the private career school named as payee.​

Subd. 11. Cancellation of enrollment. If a student's enrollment in a private career school is canceled​
for any reason, the private career school shall notify any agency known to the private career school to be​
providing financial aid to the student of the cancellation within 30 days.​

Subd. 12. Closed private career school. In the event a private career school closes for any reason during​
a term and interrupts and terminates classes during that term, all tuition for the term shall be refunded to the​
students or the appropriate state or federal agency or private lender that provided any funding for the term​
and any outstanding obligation of the student for the term is canceled.​

History: 1973 c 714 s 12; 1980 c 559 s 2,3; 1986 c 444; 1996 c 366 s 4; 1999 c 214 art 3 s 22-28; 2005​
c 107 art 3 s 10-14; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 26,27; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 28-38,46; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 24,25; 2020 c​
109 art 1 s 18; 1Sp2021 c 2 art 2 s 33,34​

136A.828 PROHIBITIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Disclosure required; advertisement restricted. Private career schools, agents of private​
career schools, and solicitors may not advertise or represent in writing or orally that the private career school​
is approved or accredited by the state of Minnesota, except that any private career school, agent, or solicitor​
may represent in advertisements and shall disclose in catalogues, applications, and enrollment materials that​
the private career school is duly licensed by the state by prominently displaying the following statement:​
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"(Name of private career school) is licensed as a private career school with the Minnesota Office of Higher​
Education pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, sections 136A.821 to 136A.832. Licensure is not an endorsement​
of the institution. Credits earned at the institution may not transfer to all other institutions."​

Subd. 2. Unlawful designation. No private career school organized after November 15, 1969, shall​
apply to itself either as a part of its name or in any other manner the designation of "college" or "university."​
Operating private career schools now using such designation may continue use thereof.​

Subd. 3. False statements. (a) A private career school, agent, or solicitor shall not make, or cause to be​
made, any statement or representation, oral, written or visual, in connection with the offering or publicizing​
of a program, if the private career school, agent, or solicitor knows or reasonably should have known the​
statement or representation to be false, fraudulent, deceptive, substantially inaccurate, or misleading.​

(b) Other than opinion-based statements or puffery, a school shall only make claims that are​
evidence-based, can be validated, and are based on current conditions and not on conditions that are no​
longer relevant.​

(c) A school shall not guarantee or imply the guarantee of employment.​

(d) A school shall not guarantee or advertise any certain wage or imply earnings greater than the prevailing​
wage for entry-level wages in the field of study for the geographic area unless advertised wages are based​
on verifiable wage information from graduates.​

(e) If placement statistics are used in advertising or other promotional materials, the school must be able​
to substantiate the statistics with school records. These records must be made available to the office upon​
request. A school is prohibited from reporting the following in placement statistics:​

(1) a student required to receive a job offer or start a job to be classified as a graduate;​

(2) a graduate if the graduate held a position before enrolling in the program, unless graduating enabled​
the graduate to maintain the position or the graduate received a promotion or raise upon graduation;​

(3) a graduate who works less than 20 hours per week; and​

(4) a graduate who is not expected to maintain the position for at least 180 days.​

(f) A school shall not use endorsements, commendations, or recommendations by a student in favor of​
a school except with the consent of the student and without any offer of financial or other material​
compensation. Endorsements may be used only when they portray current conditions.​

(g) A school may advertise that the school or its programs have been accredited by an accrediting agency​
recognized by the United States Department of Education or the Council for Higher Education Accreditation,​
but shall not advertise any other accreditation unless approved by the office. The office may approve an​
institution's advertising of accreditation that is not recognized by the United States Department of Education​
or the Council for Higher Education if that accreditation is industry specific. Clear distinction must be made​
when the school is in candidacy or application status versus full accreditation.​

(h) A school may advertise that financial aid is available, including a listing of the financial aid programs​
in which the school participates, but federal or state financial aid shall not be used as a primary incentive in​
advertisement, promotion, or recruitment.​

(i) A school may advertise placement or career assistance, if offered, but shall not use the words "wanted,"​
"help wanted," or "trainee," either in the headline or the body of the advertisement.​
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(j) A school shall not be advertised under any "help wanted," "employment," or similar classification.​

(k) A school shall not falsely claim that it is conducting a talent hunt, contest, or similar test.​

(l) A school shall not make a claim that its program qualifies for a national certification if that national​
certification entity is not accepted or recognized by Minnesota employers. A school may validate that a​
national certification is accepted or recognized by Minnesota employers by providing three certified letters​
from employers that the national certification entity is recognized in Minnesota by employers.​

(m) The commissioner, at any time, may require a retraction of a false, misleading, or deceptive claim.​
To the extent reasonable, the retraction must be published in the same manner as the original claim.​

Subd. 4. Acceptance of contracts. No private career school shall accept contracts, enrollment agreements​
or enrollment applications from an agent or solicitor who does not have a current permit.​

Subd. 5. Improbable program completion or employment. A private career school, agent, or solicitor​
shall not enroll a prospective student when it is obvious that the prospective student is unlikely to successfully​
complete a program or is unlikely to qualify for employment in the vocation or field for which the preparation​
is designed unless this fact is affirmatively disclosed to the prospective student. If a prospective student​
expresses a desire to enroll after such disclosure, a disclaimer may be obtained by the private career school.​
The disclaimer shall be signed by the student and shall state substantially one or both of the following: "I​
am fully aware that it is unlikely I will be able to successfully complete the program" and "I am fully aware​
of the improbability or impossibility that I will qualify for employment in the vocation or field for which​
the program was designed."​

Subd. 6. Financial aid payments. (a) All private career schools must collect, assess, and distribute​
funds received from loans or other financial aid as provided in this subdivision.​

(b) Student loans or other financial aid funds received from federal, state, or local governments or​
administered in accordance with federal student financial assistance programs under title IV of the Higher​
Education Act of 1965, as amended, United States Code, title 20, chapter 28, must be collected and applied​
as provided by applicable federal, state, or local law or regulation.​

(c) Student loans or other financial aid assistance received from a bank, finance or credit card company,​
or other private lender must be collected or disbursed as provided in paragraphs (d) and (e).​

(d) Loans or other financial aid payments for amounts greater than $3,000 must be disbursed:​

(1) in two equal disbursements, if the term length is more than four months. The loan or payment amounts​
may be disbursed no earlier than the first day the student attends class with the remainder to be disbursed​
halfway through the term; or​

(2) in three equal disbursements, if the term length is more than six months. The loan or payment amounts​
may be disbursed no earlier than the first day the student attends class, one-third of the way through the​
term, and two-thirds of the way through the term.​

(e) Loans or other financial aid payments for amounts less than $3,000 may be disbursed as a single​
disbursement on the first day a student attends class, regardless of term length.​

(f) No private career school may enter into a contract or agreement with, or receive any money from, a​
bank, finance or credit card company, or other private lender, unless the private lender follows the​
requirements for disbursements provided in paragraphs (d) and (e).​

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota​
Revisor of Statutes​

104​MINNESOTA STATUTES 2025​136A.828​



(g) No private career school may withhold an official transcript for arrears or default on any loan made​
by the private career school to a student if the loan qualifies as an institutional loan under United States​
Code, title 11, section 523(a)(8)(b).​

Subd. 7. Nondisclosure agreements. No private career school shall use nondisclosure agreements or​
other contracts restricting a student's ability to disclose information in connection with school actions or​
conduct that would be covered under section 136A.8295.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 8; 1973 c 714 s 13-15; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 73; 1986 c 444; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 27;​
1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 1999 c 214 art 3 s 29,30; 2005 c 107 art 2 s 60; art 3 s 15,16; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 28;​
2008 c 298 s 23; 2010 c 364 s 23; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 39,46; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 26; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 41,42;​
2024 c 127 art 35 s 41,42​

136A.829 REVOCATION OF LICENSE OR PERMIT.​

Subdivision 1. Grounds. The office may, after notice and upon providing an opportunity for a hearing,​
under chapter 14 if requested by the parties adversely affected, refuse to issue, refuse to renew, revoke, or​
suspend a license or solicitor's permit for any of the following grounds:​

(1) violation of any provisions of sections 136A.821 to 136A.833 or any rule adopted by the office;​

(2) furnishing to the office false, misleading, or incomplete information;​

(3) presenting to prospective students information relating to the private career school that is false,​
fraudulent, deceptive, substantially inaccurate, or misleading;​

(4) refusal to allow reasonable inspection or supply reasonable information after written request by the​
office;​

(5) having been administratively determined by the commissioner or judicially determined to have​
committed fraud or any other material violation of law involving federal, state, or local government funds;​

(6) the existence of any circumstance that would be grounds for the refusal of an initial or renewal license​
under section 136A.822; or​

(7) using fraudulent or coercive practices, whether in the course of business in this state or elsewhere.​

Subd. 2. Appeal. Any order refusing, revoking, or suspending a private career school's license or a​
solicitor's permit is appealable in accordance with chapter 14. Where a private career school has been​
operating and its license has been revoked, suspended, or refused by the office, the order is not effective​
until the final determination of the appeal unless immediate effect is ordered by the court.​

Subd. 3. Powers and duties. The office shall have (in addition to the powers and duties now vested​
therein by law) the following powers and duties:​

(a) To negotiate and enter into interstate reciprocity agreements with similar agencies in other states, if​
in the judgment of the office such agreements are or will be helpful in effectuating the purposes of Laws​
1973, chapter 714;​

(b) To grant conditional private career school license for periods of less than one year if in the judgment​
of the office correctable deficiencies exist at the time of application and when refusal to issue private career​
school license would adversely affect currently enrolled students;​
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(c) The office may upon its own motion, and shall upon the verified complaint in writing of any person​
setting forth fact which, if proved, would constitute grounds for refusal or revocation under Laws 1973,​
chapter 714, investigate the actions of any applicant or any person or persons holding or claiming to hold a​
license or permit. However, before proceeding to a hearing on the question of whether a license or permit​
shall be refused, revoked or suspended for any cause enumerated in subdivision 1, the office shall grant a​
reasonable time to the holder of or applicant for a license or permit to correct the situation. If within such​
time the situation is corrected and the private career school is in compliance with the provisions of sections​
136A.82 to 136A.834, no further action leading to refusal, revocation, or suspension shall be taken.​

(d) To grant a private career school a probationary license for periods of less than three years if, in the​
judgment of the office, correctable deficiencies exist at the time of application that need more than one year​
to correct and when the risk of harm to students can be minimized through the use of restrictions and​
requirements as conditions of the license. Probationary licenses may include requirements and restrictions​
for:​

(1) periodic monitoring and submission of reports on the school's deficiencies to ascertain whether​
compliance improves;​

(2) periodic collaborative consultations with the school on noncompliance with sections 136A.82 to​
136A.834 or how the institution is managing compliance;​

(3) the submission of contingency plans such as teach-out plans or transfer pathways for students;​

(4) a prohibition from accepting tuition and fee payments prior to the add/drop period of the current​
period of instruction or before the funds have been earned by the school according to the refund requirements​
of section 136A.827;​

(5) a prohibition from enrolling new students;​

(6) enrollment caps;​

(7) the initiation of alternative processes and communications with students enrolled at the school to​
notify students of deficiencies or probation status;​

(8) the submission of a surety under section 136A.822, subdivision 6, paragraph (b), clause (1), that​
exceeds ten percent of the preceding year's net revenue from student tuition, fees, and other required​
institutional charges collected; or​

(9) submission of closure information under section 136A.8225.​

Subd. 4. Effect. A private career school or its owners, officers, or sponsoring organization is prohibited​
from applying for licensure under section 136A.822 within two years of the effective date of a revocation​
or within two years from the last date of instruction if the school closed prior to all students completing their​
courses and programs. A school applying for licensure must:​

(1) meet the requirements for licensure under section 136A.822;​

(2) pay the licensure fees as a new school under section 136A.824, subdivision 1;​

(3) correct any deficiencies that were identified in the revocation order or closed school requests under​
section 136A.8225;​

(4) pay any outstanding fines or penalties under section 136A.832; and​
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(5) pay any outstanding student refunds under section 136A.827.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 9; 1973 c 714 s 16,17; 1982 c 424 s 130; 1983 c 247 s 61; 1985 c 248 s 70; 1986​
c 444; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 27; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 1996 c 366 s 5; 1999 c 214 art 3 s 31; 2005 c 107 art​
3 s 17; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 40,46; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 19; art 3 s 13; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 43,44; 2024 c 127 art​
35 s 43,44​

136A.8295 STUDENT COMPLAINTS.​

Subdivision 1. Authority. The office has the authority to review and take appropriate action on student​
complaints from schools covered under the provisions of sections 136A.822 to 136A.834.​

Subd. 2. Complaint. A complaint must be in writing, be signed by a student, and state how the school's​
policies and procedures or sections 136A.822 to 136A.834 were violated. Student complaints shall be limited​
to complaints that occurred within six years from the date the concern should have been discovered with​
reasonable effort and after the student has utilized the school's internal complaint process. Students do not​
have to utilize a school's internal complaint process before the office has authority when the student is​
alleging fraud or misrepresentation. The office shall not investigate grade disputes, student conduct​
proceedings, disability accommodation requests, and discrimination claims, including Title IX complaints.​

Subd. 3. Investigation. The office shall initiate an investigation upon receipt of a complaint within the​
authority of subdivision 2. A school involved in an investigation shall be informed of the alleged violations​
and the processes of the investigation. A school involved in an investigation shall respond to the alleged​
violations and provide requested documentation to the office. Upon completion of an investigation, the​
office shall inform the school and the student of the investigation outcome.​

Subd. 4. Penalties. If violations are found, the office may require remedial action by the school or assign​
a penalty under section 136A.832. Remedial action may include student notification of violations, adjustments​
to the school's policies and procedures, and tuition or fee refunds to impacted students.​

Subd. 5. Appeals. Any order requiring remedial action by the school or assigning a penalty under section​
136A.832 is appealable in accordance with chapter 14. The request for an appeal must be made in writing​
to the office within 30 days of the date the school is notified of the action of the office. The court shall award​
costs and reasonable attorney fees in a contested chapter 14 hearing to the office if: (1) the office substantially​
prevails on the merits in an action brought under this section; and (2) the school has a net income from​
student tuition, fees, and other required institutional charges collected from the last fiscal year of $1,000,000​
or greater.​

Subd. 6. Disclosure. Schools must disclose on their website, student handbook, and student catalog the​
student complaint process under this section to students.​

Subd. 7. Private information. Student complaint data are private data on individuals, as defined in​
section 13.02, subdivision 12. The office may disclose student complaint data to law enforcement officials​
or in connection with a legal or administrative proceeding commenced to enforce a requirement of law.​

History: 2017 c 89 art 3 s 27; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 34,35​

136A.83 INSPECTION.​

(a) The office or a delegate may inspect the instructional books and records, classrooms, dormitories,​
tools, equipment and classes of any private career school or applicant for license at any reasonable time.​
The office may require the submission of audited financial statements. The office or a delegate may inspect​
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the financial books and records of the private career school. In no event shall such financial information be​
used by the office to regulate or set the tuition or fees charged by the private career school.​

(b) Data obtained from an inspection of the financial records of a private career school or submitted to​
the office as part of a license application or renewal are nonpublic data as defined in section 13.02, subdivision​
9. Data obtained from inspections may be disclosed to other members of the office, to law enforcement​
officials, or in connection with a legal or administrative proceeding commenced to enforce a requirement​
of law.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 10; 1973 c 714 s 18; 1986 c 444; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 27; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59;​
1999 c 227 s 13; 2005 c 107 art 3 s 18; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 41,46; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 28​

136A.831 INJUNCTION.​

Upon application of the attorney general the district courts shall have jurisdiction to enjoin any violation​
of sections 136A.821 to 136A.833.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 11; 1999 c 214 art 3 s 32; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 46​

136A.832 PENALTY.​

The commissioner may assess fines for violations of sections 136A.821 to 136A.834. Each day's failure​
to comply with sections 136A.821 to 136A.834 shall be a separate violation and fines shall not exceed $500​
per day per violation. Amounts received under this section must be deposited in the special revenue fund​
and are appropriated to the office for the purposes of sections 136A.821 to 136A.834.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 12; 1971 c 23 s 13; 1973 c 714 s 19; 1Sp1985 c 11 s 74; 1999 c 214 art 3 s 33;​
2007 c 144 art 3 s 29; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 42,46​

136A.833 EXEMPTIONS.​

Subdivision 1. Application for exemptions. (a) A school that seeks an exemption from the provisions​
of sections 136A.822 to 136A.834 for the school and all of its programs or some of its programs must apply​
to the office to establish that the school or program meets the requirements of an exemption. An exemption​
for the school or program expires two years from the date of approval or when a school adds a new program​
or makes a modification equal to or greater than 25 percent to an existing educational program. If a school​
is reapplying for an exemption, the application must be submitted to the office 90 days before the current​
exemption expires. If a school fails to apply within 90 days of expiration, the school is subject to fees and​
penalties under sections 136A.831 and 136A.832. This exemption shall not extend to any school that uses​
any publication or advertisement that is not truthful and gives any false, fraudulent, deceptive, inaccurate,​
or misleading impressions about the school or its personnel, programs, services, or occupational opportunities​
for its graduates for promotion and student recruitment. Exemptions denied under this section are subject​
to appeal under section 136A.829. If an appeal is initiated, the denial of the exemption is not effective until​
the final determination of the appeal, unless immediate effect is ordered by the court.​

(b) A school that meets any of the exemptions in this section and exclusively seeks to be listed on the​
eligible training provider list, access WIOA funding, or receive the dual training grant, is exempt from​
sections 136A.822 to 136A.834, except the school must satisfy the requirements of section 136A.822,​
subdivisions 4, clauses (1), (2), and (3); 8, clauses (9) and (10); 10, clause (8); and 12.​

Subd. 2. Exemption reasons. Sections 136A.821 to 136A.832 shall not apply to the following:​
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(1) private career schools engaged exclusively in the teaching of avocational programs that are engaged​
primarily for personal development, recreation, or remedial education, and are not generally intended for​
vocational or career advancement, including adult basic education, exercise or fitness teacher programs,​
modeling, or acting, as determined by the office;​

(2) classes, courses, or programs providing 40 or fewer clock hours of instruction; and​

(3) private career schools providing training, instructional programs, or courses where tuition, fees, and​
any other charges for a student to participate do not exceed $500.​

History: 1969 c 866 s 15; 1973 c 714 s 20; 1977 c 59 s 1; 1980 c 559 s 4; 1989 c 209 art 1 s 13; art 2​
s 1; 1990 c 562 art 3 s 11; 1992 c 513 art 1 s 27; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 1998 c 397 art 11 s 3; 1999 c 214​
art 3 s 34; 2005 c 56 s 1; 2005 c 107 art 3 s 19; 2007 c 144 art 3 s 30; 2008 c 298 s 24; 2012 c 270 s 11;​
2013 c 99 art 2 s 20; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 43,46; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 29; 2020 c 109 art 3 s 14; 2023 c 44 s 9;​
2024 c 124 art 2 s 45; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 45; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 50​

136A.834 EXEMPTION; RELIGIOUS SCHOOLS.​

Subdivision 1. Exemption. (a) A program is exempt from the provisions of sections 136A.821 to​
136A.832 if it is:​

(1) offered by a school or any department or branch of a school that is substantially owned, operated,​
or supported by a bona fide church or religious organization;​

(2) primarily designed for, aimed at, and attended by persons who sincerely hold or seek to learn the​
particular religious faith or beliefs of that church or religious organization; and​

(3) primarily intended to prepare its students to become ministers of, to enter into some other vocation​
closely related to, or to conduct their lives in consonance with the particular faith of that church or religious​
organization.​

(b) Any school or any department or branch of a school is exempt from the provisions of sections​
136A.821 to 136A.832 if all of its programs are exempt under paragraph (a).​

Subd. 2. Limitations. (a) An exemption shall not extend to any private career school, department or​
branch of a private career school, or program of a private career school that through advertisements or​
solicitations represents to any students or prospective students that the school, its aims, goals, missions,​
purposes, or programs are different from those described in subdivision 1.​

(b) An exemption shall not extend to any private career school or program that represents to any student​
or prospective student that the major purpose of its programs is to:​

(1) prepare the student for a vocation not closely related to that particular religious faith; or​

(2) provide the student with a general educational program recognized by other private career schools​
or the broader educational, business, or social community as being substantially equivalent to the educational​
programs offered by private career schools or departments or branches of private career schools which are​
not religious in nature and are not exempt from sections 136A.82 to 136A.834 and from rules adopted under​
sections 136A.82 to 136A.834.​

(c) This exemption shall not extend to any school that uses any publication or advertisement that is not​
truthful and gives any false, fraudulent, deceptive, inaccurate, or misleading impressions about the school​
or its personnel, programs, services, or occupational opportunities for graduates for promotion and student​
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recruitment. Exemptions denied under this section are subject to appeal under section 136A.65, subdivision​
8, paragraph (c). If an appeal is initiated, the denial of the exemption is not effective until the final​
determination of the appeal, unless immediate effect is ordered by the court.​

Subd. 3. Scope. Nothing in sections 136A.82 to 136A.834 or the rules adopted under them shall be​
interpreted as permitting the office to determine the truth or falsity of any particular set of religious beliefs.​

Subd. 4. Descriptive language required. Any certificate, diploma, degree, or other formal recognition​
awarded upon completion of any religiously exempt program shall include such descriptive language as to​
make the religious nature of the award clear.​

Subd. 5. Application. A school that seeks an exemption from the provisions of sections 136A.82 to​
136A.834 must apply to the office to establish that the school meets the requirements of an exemption. An​
exemption expires two years from the date of approval or when a school adds a new program or makes a​
modification equal to or greater than 25 percent to an existing educational program. If a school is reapplying​
for an exemption, the application must be submitted to the office 90 days before the current exemption​
expires. If a school fails to apply within 90 days of expiration, the school is subject to the fees and penalties​
under sections 136A.831 and 136A.832.​

History: 2007 c 144 art 3 s 31; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 46; 2017 c 89 art 3 s 30; 2020 c 109 art 1 s 20; art 3​
s 15; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 51,52​

POST-HIGH SCHOOL PLANNING PROGRAM​

136A.84 DIRECT ADMISSIONS PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. Authorization. The commissioner shall administer the direct admissions program in​
consultation with stakeholders, including Minnesota State Colleges and Universities, the University of​
Minnesota, the Student Advisory Council under section 136A.031, the Minnesota Department of Education,​
the Minnesota Association of Secondary School Principals, and the Minnesota School Board Association,​
to automatically offer conditional admission into an eligible public or nonprofit institution as defined under​
section 136A.103, paragraph (a), located in Minnesota, to Minnesota high school seniors based on a student's​
high school grade point average, high school and college transcript information, standardized tests, statewide​
assessments, and other measures as determined by stakeholders.​

Subd. 2. Implementation. The program shall establish and, to the extent feasible, implement a process​
for leveraging existing kindergarten through grade 12 and higher education student information systems to​
automate the admissions process for students. The program must specifically evaluate the impact this process​
has on outcomes for students with lower levels of college knowledge, low-income students, and students​
from populations underserved in higher education. The office shall attempt to achieve statewide representation​
and may prioritize program participants to include high schools with a significant number of students of​
color, low-income students, or both.​

Subd. 3. Information. The commissioner shall provide information about the Minnesota state grant​
program and the North Star Promise and encourage students to determine their eligibility for financial aid​
based on FAFSA and state financial aid application completion.​

Subd. 4. Report. Annually, by February 1, the Office of Higher Education shall report to the legislative​
committees with jurisdiction over kindergarten through grade 12 education finance and policy and higher​
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education on activities occurring under this section. The report must include but is not limited to information​
about implementation, recommendations, and outcomes.​

History: 2023 c 41 art 2 s 25​

136A.85 [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 3 s 60]​

136A.86 [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 3 s 60]​

136A.861 INTERVENTION FOR COLLEGE ATTENDANCE PROGRAM GRANTS.​

Subdivision 1. Grants. (a) The commissioner shall award grants to foster postsecondary attendance and​
retention by providing outreach services to historically underserved students in grades six through 12 and​
historically underrepresented college students. Grants must be awarded to programs that provide precollege​
services, including, but not limited to:​

(1) academic counseling;​

(2) mentoring;​

(3) fostering and improving parental involvement in planning for and facilitating a college education;​

(4) services for students with English as a second language;​

(5) academic enrichment activities;​

(6) tutoring;​

(7) career awareness and exploration;​

(8) orientation to college life;​

(9) assistance with high school course selection and information about college admission requirements;​
and​

(10) financial aid counseling.​

(b) To the extent there are sufficient applications, the commissioner shall award an approximate equal​
amount of grants for program-eligible students who are from communities located outside the metropolitan​
area, as defined in section 473.121, subdivision 2, as for students from communities within the metropolitan​
area. If necessary to achieve the approximately equal metropolitan area and nonmetropolitan area allocation,​
the commissioner may award a preference to a nonmetropolitan area application in the form of five points​
on a one hundred point application review scale.​

(c) Grants shall be awarded to postsecondary institutions, professional organizations, community-based​
organizations, or others deemed appropriate by the commissioner.​

(d) Grants shall be awarded for one year and may be renewed for a second year with documentation to​
the office of successful program outcomes.​

Subd. 2. Eligible students. (a) Eligible students include students in grades six through 12 who meet​
one or more of the following criteria:​

(1) are counted under section 1124(c) of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (Title​
I);​
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(2) are eligible for free or reduced-price meals under the National School Lunch Act;​

(3) receive assistance under the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families Law (Title I of the Personal​
Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act of 1996); or​

(4) are a member of a group traditionally underrepresented in higher education.​

(b) Eligible undergraduate students include those who met the student eligibility criteria as 6th through​
12th graders.​

Subd. 3. Application process. (a) The commissioner shall develop a grant application process. The​
commissioner shall attempt to support projects in a manner that ensures that eligible students throughout​
the state have access to program services.​

(b) The grant application must include, at a minimum, the following information:​

(1) a description of the characteristics of the students to be served reflective of the need for services​
listed in subdivision 1;​

(2) a description of the services to be provided and a timeline for implementation of the activities;​

(3) a description of how the services provided will foster postsecondary attendance and support​
postsecondary retention;​

(4) a description of how the services will be evaluated to determine whether the program goals were​
met; and​

(5) other information as identified by the commissioner.​

Grant recipients must specify both program and student outcome goals, and performance measures for each​
goal.​

Subd. 4. Match required. Applicants are required to match the grant amount dollar-for-dollar. The​
match may be in cash or an in-kind contribution.​

Subd. 5. Review committee. The commissioner must establish and convene a grant selection committee​
to review applications and award grants. The members of the committee may include representatives of​
postsecondary institutions, school districts, organizations providing precollege outreach services, and others​
deemed appropriate by the commissioner.​

Subd. 6. Program evaluation. Each grant recipient must annually submit a report to the office delineating​
its program and student outcome goals, and activities implemented to achieve the stated outcomes. The goals​
must be clearly stated and measurable. Grant recipients are required to collect, analyze, and report on​
participation and outcome data that enable the office to verify that the program goals were met. The office​
shall maintain:​

(1) information about successful precollege program and undergraduate student retention program​
activities for dissemination to individuals throughout the state interested in adopting or replicating successful​
program practices; and​

(2) data on the success of the funded projects in increasing the high school graduation, college​
participation, and college graduation rates of students served by the grant recipients. The office may convene​
meetings of the grant recipients, as needed, to discuss issues pertaining to the implementation of precollege​
services and undergraduate retention programs.​
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Subd. 7. MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

History: 2005 c 107 art 2 s 29,60; 2007 c 144 art 2 s 32-35; 2013 c 99 art 2 s 29; 2014 c 149 s 42-44;​
2015 c 69 art 3 s 12; 2023 c 55 art 9 s 19​

136A.862 [Repealed, 2015 c 69 art 2 s 47]​

136A.87 PLANNING INFORMATION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION.​

(a) The office shall make available to all residents beginning in 7th grade through adulthood information​
about planning and preparing for postsecondary opportunities. Information must be provided to all 7th grade​
students and their parents annually by September 30 about planning for their postsecondary education. The​
office may also provide information to high school students and their parents, to adults, and to out-of-school​
youth.​

(b) The information provided under paragraph (a) may include the following:​

(1) the need to start planning early;​

(2) the availability of assistance in educational planning from educational institutions and other​
organizations;​

(3) suggestions for studying effectively during high school;​

(4) high school courses necessary to be adequately prepared for postsecondary education;​

(5) encouragement to involve parents actively in planning for all phases of education;​

(6) information about postsecondary education and training opportunities existing in the state, their​
respective missions and expectations for students, their preparation requirements, admission requirements,​
and student placement;​

(7) ways to evaluate and select postsecondary institutions;​

(8) the process of transferring credits among Minnesota postsecondary institutions and systems;​

(9) the costs of postsecondary education and the availability of financial assistance in meeting these​
costs, including specific information about the Minnesota Promise;​

(10) the interrelationship of assistance from student financial aid, public assistance, and job training​
programs;​

(11) financial planning for postsecondary education; and​

(12) postsecondary education options for students with intellectual and developmental disabilities.​

History: 1978 c 782 s 3; 1987 c 401 s 27; 1Sp1993 c 2 art 2 s 20; 1995 c 212 art 3 s 59; 2009 c 95 art​
2 s 24; 2015 c 69 art 2 s 18; 2016 c 189 art 1 s 20; 2019 c 64 art 2 s 36; 1Sp2019 c 11 art 2 s 23; 1Sp2025​
c 5 art 2 s 53​

136A.88 [Repealed, 1995 c 212 art 3 s 60]​
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INSTITUTIONAL GRANTS​

136A.901 SPINAL CORD INJURY AND TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURY RESEARCH GRANT​
PROGRAM.​

Subdivision 1. Grant program. (a) The commissioner shall establish a grant program to award grants​
to institutions in Minnesota for research into spinal cord injuries and traumatic brain injuries. Grants shall​
be awarded to conduct research into new and innovative treatments and rehabilitative efforts for the functional​
improvement of people with spinal cord and traumatic brain injuries. Research topics may include, but are​
not limited to, pharmaceutical, medical device, brain stimulus, and rehabilitative approaches and techniques.​
The commissioner, in consultation with the advisory council established under section 136A.902, shall​
award 50 percent of the grant funds for research involving spinal cord injuries and 50 percent to research​
involving traumatic brain injuries. In addition to the amounts appropriated by law, the commissioner may​
accept additional funds from private and public sources. Amounts received from these sources are appropriated​
to the commissioner for the purposes of issuing grants under this section.​

(b) Institutions that are eligible to apply for a grant under this section include postsecondary institutions​
and nonprofit organizations.​

(c) A spinal cord and traumatic brain injury grant account is established in the special revenue fund.​
Money in the account is appropriated to the commissioner to make grants and to administer the grant program​
under this section. Appropriations to the commissioner for the program are for transfer to the account.​
Appropriations from the account do not cancel and are available until expended.​

Subd. 2. Report. By January 15, 2016, and each January 15 thereafter, the commissioner shall submit​
a report to the chairs and ranking minority members of the senate and house of representatives committees​
having jurisdiction over the Office of Higher Education, specifying the institutions receiving grants under​
this section and the purposes for which the grant funds were used.​

History: 2015 c 69 art 3 s 13; 2018 c 207 s 4; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 54​

136A.902 SPINAL CORD AND TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURY ADVISORY COUNCIL.​

Subdivision 1. Membership. The commissioner shall appoint a 14-member advisory council consisting​
of:​

(1) one member representing the University of Minnesota Medical School;​

(2) one member representing the Mayo Medical School;​

(3) one member representing the Courage Kenny Rehabilitation Center;​

(4) one member representing Hennepin County Medical Center;​

(5) one member who is a neurosurgeon;​

(6) one member who has a spinal cord injury;​

(7) one member who is a family member of a person with a spinal cord injury;​

(8) one member who has a traumatic brain injury;​

(9) one member who is a veteran who has a spinal cord injury;​
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(10) one member who is a veteran who has a traumatic brain injury;​

(11) one member who is a family member of a person with a traumatic brain injury;​

(12) one member who is a physician specializing in the treatment of spinal cord injury;​

(13) one member who is a physician specializing in the treatment of traumatic brain injury; and​

(14) one member representing Gillette Children's Specialty Healthcare.​

Subd. 2. Organization. The advisory council shall be organized and administered under section 15.059,​
except that subdivision 2 shall not apply. Except as provided in subdivision 4, the commissioner shall appoint​
council members to two-year terms and appoint one member as chair. The advisory council does not expire.​

Subd. 3. First appointments and first meeting. The commissioner shall appoint the first members of​
the council by September 1, 2015. The chair shall convene the first meeting by November 1, 2015.​

Subd. 4. Terms of initial council members. The commissioner shall designate six of the initial council​
members to serve one-year terms and six to serve two-year terms.​

Subd. 5. Conflict of interest. Council members must disclose in a written statement any financial interest​
in any organization that the council recommends to receive a grant. The written statement must accompany​
the grant recommendations and must explain the nature of the conflict. The council is not subject to policies​
developed by the commissioner of administration under section 16B.98.​

Subd. 6. Duties. The advisory council shall:​

(1) develop criteria for evaluating and awarding the research grants under section 136A.901;​

(2) review research proposals and make recommendations by January 15 of each year to the commissioner​
for purposes of awarding grants under section 136A.901; and​

(3) perform other duties as authorized by the commissioner.​

History: 2015 c 69 art 3 s 14; 2017 c 89 art 2 s 16​

136A.91 MS 2024 [Repealed, 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 63]​

136A.915 STUDENT-PARENT SUPPORT INITIATIVE.​

Subdivision 1. Grants. (a) To address the needs and support the educational goals of expectant and​
parenting college students across Minnesota, the commissioner shall award grants and provide support​
services to institutions and partnering entities that assist expectant parents and parents or legal guardians of​
young children. Grants shall be awarded to postsecondary institutions, professional organizations,​
community-based organizations, or other applicants deemed appropriate by the commissioner. Grants must​
be used to offer services to support the academic goals, health, and well-being of student parents. Services​
and costs eligible for grant funding include but are not limited to:​

(1) program development costs;​

(2) costs related to the start-up of on-campus child care;​

(3) evaluation and data collection; and​

(4) direct assistance to student parents including:​
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(i) scholarships;​

(ii) basic needs support; and​

(iii) expenses related to child care.​

(b) Postsecondary institutions may act as the fiscal agents in partnership with a local nongovernmental​
agency, child care center, or other organization that serves student parents.​

Subd. 2. Application process. The commissioner shall develop a grant application process. The​
commissioner shall support projects in a manner that attempts to ensure eligible students throughout the​
state have access to program services.​

Subd. 3. Postsecondary institution reporting. Each postsecondary institution shall allow students to​
identify whether the student is a parent, a legal guardian, acting as a parent, or an expectant parent on an​
annual basis on a form used to collect demographic data from students. The postsecondary institution shall​
provide the information to the commissioner annually on a date and in a manner prescribed by the​
commissioner.​

Subd. 4. Health-related supports. The commissioner, in partnership with the Department of Health,​
shall provide health-related supports. Activities for health-related supports include:​

(1) ensuring programs, services, and materials are medically accurate, age appropriate, culturally and​
linguistically appropriate, and inclusive of all populations;​

(2) working with community health care providers and other service support organizations that serve​
the target population for this program; and​

(3) providing technical assistance and training for institutional parent support center staff on how to​
conduct screenings and referrals for the health concerns of student parents, including alcohol misuse,​
substance use disorders, depression, anxiety, intimate partner violence, tobacco and nicotine, and other​
health concerns.​

History: 2023 c 41 art 2 s 16; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 62​

136A.921 INCLUSIVE HIGHER EDUCATION TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE CENTER.​

Subdivision 1. Definitions. (a) For purposes of this section and section 136A.922, the following terms​
have the meanings given.​

(b) "Center" means the Inclusive Higher Education Technical Assistance Center.​

(c) "Commissioner" means the commissioner of the Office of Higher Education.​

(d) "Comprehensive transition and postsecondary program for students with intellectual disabilities"​
means a degree, certificate, or nondegree program that is offered by an institution of higher education for​
students with intellectual disabilities and approved by the United States Department of Education.​

(e) "Director" means the director of the Inclusive Higher Education Technical Assistance Center.​

(f) "Inclusive higher education" means institution-approved access to higher education for students with​
an intellectual disability that allows for the same rights, privileges, experiences, benefits, and outcomes that​
result from a college experience the same as a matriculating student, resulting in a meaningful credential​
conferred by the institution of higher education. Inclusive higher education includes:​
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(1) academic access and inclusive instruction;​

(2) person-centered planning;​

(3) career development;​

(4) campus engagement;​

(5) self-determination;​

(6) paid internships and employment;​

(7) on- or off-campus living, when available to other students;​

(8) campus community clubs, events, and activity participation;​

(9) peer mentors and support; and​

(10) a degree, certificate, or nondegree credential.​

(g) "National Coordinating Center" means the federally funded National Coordinating Center, as identified​
in United States Code, title 20, section 1140q, that provides training and technical assistance supporting​
evidence-based and student-centered research and practice for inclusive higher education initiatives for​
students with intellectual disabilities.​

(h) "Office" means the Office of Higher Education.​

(i) "Student with an intellectual disability" means a student with an intellectual disability as defined in​
Code of Federal Regulations, title 34, section 668.231.​

Subd. 2. Establishment. The commissioner must contract with the Institute on Community Integration​
at the University of Minnesota to establish the Inclusive Higher Education Technical Assistance Center.​
The purpose of the center is to increase access to self-sustaining postsecondary education options across​
Minnesota for students with an intellectual disability to earn meaningful credentials through degree, certificate,​
and nondegree initiatives leading to competitive integrated employment, genuine community membership,​
and more independent living. The center must:​

(1) coordinate and facilitate the statewide initiative to expand and enhance inclusive higher education​
opportunities;​

(2) provide expertise in inclusive higher education for students with an intellectual disability;​

(3) provide technical assistance:​

(i) to Minnesota institutions of higher education;​

(ii) to local education agencies; and​

(iii) as requested by the commissioner; and​

(4) provide information to students with intellectual disabilities and their families.​

Subd. 3. Director; advisory committee. (a) The center must name a director.​

(b) The center must make hiring decisions based on the Institute on Community Integration's values of​
diversity and inclusion of staff with disabilities.​
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(c) The director must appoint an advisory committee and seek the committee's review and​
recommendations on broad programmatic direction. The advisory committee must be composed of 50 percent​
students with an intellectual disability. The remaining positions must be filled by family members, key​
stakeholders, and allies. The director must convene the advisory committee at least quarterly. The advisory​
committee shall:​

(1) review and recommend inclusive higher education offerings;​

(2) review and recommend updates to state policy and practice;​

(3) document existing and potential funding sources; and​

(4) identify obstacles and barriers to students with an intellectual disability to access inclusive higher​
education opportunities.​

Subd. 4. Responsibilities. (a) The center must advise and offer technical assistance to all Minnesota​
institutions of higher education planning or offering an inclusive higher education initiative to operate in​
accordance with federal requirements, the model Program Accreditation Standards for Postsecondary​
Education Programs for Students with Intellectual Disabilities, and guiding principles for inclusive higher​
education as developed by the National Coordinating Center.​

(b) The center must monitor federal and state law related to inclusive higher education and notify the​
governor, the legislature, and the Office of Higher Education of any change in law which may impact​
inclusive higher education.​

(c) The center must provide technical assistance to institutions of higher education, administrators,​
faculty, and staff by:​

(1) offering institution faculty and staff training and professional development to start, operate, or​
enhance their inclusive higher education initiative;​

(2) providing faculty and staff with information, training, and consultation on the comprehensive transition​
and postsecondary program requirements, model Program Accreditation Standards for Postsecondary​
Education Programs for Students with Intellectual Disabilities, and guiding principles;​

(3) organizing and offering learning community events, an annual inclusive higher education conference​
and community of practice events to share best practices, provide access to national experts, and address​
challenges and concerns;​

(4) assisting institutions of higher education with identifying existing or potential funding sources for​
the institution of higher education, student financial aid, and funding for students with an intellectual disability;​
and​

(5) advising faculty and staff with an inclusive higher education option of specific grant applications​
and funding opportunities.​

(d) The center must disseminate information to students with an intellectual disability, their parents, and​
local education agencies, including but not limited to information about:​

(1) postsecondary education options, services, and resources that are available at inclusive institutions​
of higher education;​
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(2) technical assistance and training provided by the center, the National Coordinating Center, and key​
stakeholder organizations and agencies; and​

(3) mentoring, networking, and employment opportunities.​

Subd. 5. Reporting. The director must evaluate the development and implementation of the Minnesota​
inclusive higher education initiatives receiving a grant under section 136A.922. The director must submit​
an annual report by October 1 on the progress to expand Minnesota inclusive higher education options for​
students with intellectual disabilities to the commissioner and chairs and ranking minority members of the​
legislative committees with jurisdiction over higher education policy and finance. The report must include​
statutory and budget recommendations.​

History: 2023 c 41 art 2 s 5; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 7; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 7; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 62​

136A.922 INCLUSIVE HIGHER EDUCATION GRANTS.​

Subdivision 1. Establishment. (a) The commissioner of the Office of Higher Education in collaboration​
with the director of the Inclusive Higher Education Technical Assistance Center must establish a competitive​
grant program for Minnesota institutions of higher education to develop new or enhance existing inclusive​
higher education initiatives to enroll or increase enrollment of students with an intellectual disability. The​
commissioner and director must collaborate to establish the grant program framework, including:​

(1) minimum grant requirements;​

(2) application format;​

(3) criteria for evaluating applications;​

(4) grant selection process;​

(5) milestones and accountability; and​

(6) reporting.​

(b) The commissioner must send a description of the competitive grants, including materials describing​
the grant purpose and goals, an application, compliance requirements, and available funding to each institution​
of higher education that meets the requirements of subdivision 2, clauses (1) and (2).​

Subd. 2. Eligible grantees. A Tribal college or public or nonprofit postsecondary two-year or four-year​
institution is eligible to apply for a grant under this section if the institution:​

(1) is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission; and​

(2) meets the eligibility requirements under section 136A.103.​

Subd. 3. Application. (a) Applications must be made to the commissioner on a form developed and​
provided by the commissioner. The commissioner must, to the greatest extent possible, make the application​
form as short and simple to complete as is reasonably possible. The commissioner must establish a schedule​
for applications and grants. The application must include without limitation a written plan to develop or​
enhance a sustainable inclusive higher education initiative that:​

(1) offers the necessary supports to students with an intellectual disability to access the same rights,​
privileges, experiences, benefits, and outcomes of a typically matriculating student;​
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(2) includes the development of a meaningful credential for students with an intellectual disability to​
attain upon successful completion of the student's postsecondary education;​

(3) adopts admission standards that do not require a student with an intellectual disability to complete​
a curriculum-based, achievement college entrance exam that is administered nationwide;​

(4) ensures that students with an intellectual disability:​

(i) have access and choice in a wide array of academic courses to enroll in for credit or audit that align​
with the student's interest areas and are attended by students without disabilities;​

(ii) have the option to live on or off campus in housing that is available to typically matriculating students;​

(iii) have access and support for genuine membership in campus life, including events, social activities​
and organizations, institution facilities, and technology; and​

(iv) are able to access and utilize campus resources available to typical matriculating students;​

(5) provides students with an intellectual disability with the supports and experiences necessary to seek​
and sustain competitive integrated employment;​

(6) develops and promotes the self-determination skills of students with an intellectual disability;​

(7) utilizes peer mentors who support enrolled students with an intellectual disability in academic,​
campus engagement, residence life, employment, and campus clubs and organizations;​

(8) provides professional development and resources for university professors and instructors to utilize​
universal design for learning and differentiated instruction that supports and benefits all students; and​

(9) presents a ten-year plan including student enrollment projections for sustainability of an initiative​
that is financially accessible and equitable for all interested students with an intellectual disability.​

(b) Eligible institutions of higher education may apply for funding in subsequent years for up to a total​
of ten years of funding.​

(c) Receipt of grant funds does not preclude nor replace the provision of accommodation for enrolled​
students with disabilities.​

Subd. 4. Grant account. An inclusive higher education grant account is created in the special revenue​
fund for depositing money appropriated to or received by the commissioner for the program. Money deposited​
in the account is appropriated to the commissioner, does not cancel, and is continuously available for grants​
under this section. The commissioner may use up to five percent of the amount deposited into the account​
for the administration of this section.​

Subd. 5. Grant awards. (a) The commissioner must award grants to eligible institutions of higher​
education on a competitive basis using criteria established in collaboration with the center. The commissioner​
must consider and prioritize applicants that have submitted for or received a comprehensive transition and​
postsecondary program designation, or applicants with documented progress or intent toward submitting​
for federal approval. An eligible institution of higher education may apply annually for and receive up to​
$200,000 per year for four years and $100,000 in subsequent years pending performance and the funding​
limitation in subdivision 3, paragraph (b).​

(b) A grant recipient must:​
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(1) adopt the model Program Accreditation Standards for Postsecondary Education Programs for Students​
with Intellectual Disabilities and the inclusive higher education guiding principles as developed by the​
National Coordinating Center;​

(2) provide a 25 percent match for the grant funds, either monetary or in-kind; and​

(3) collaborate with the Office of Higher Education, the center, and key stakeholders in the development​
of the inclusive higher education initiative.​

Subd. 6. Grantee reporting. By August 1 and January 1 following a fiscal year in which a grant was​
received and for five years thereafter, the grantee must submit a report to the director that includes the status​
and outcomes of the initiative funded. The report must include performance indicators and information​
deemed relevant by the director and commissioner. The report must include the following performance​
indicators:​

(1) student recruitment and number of students enrolled;​

(2) student retainment effort and retention rate;​

(3) initiative goals and outcomes;​

(4) student attainment rate;​

(5) graduated student employment rates and salary levels at year one and year five after completion;​
and​

(6) additional performance indicators or information established under subdivision 1, paragraph (a),​
clauses (5) and (6).​

History: 2023 c 41 art 2 s 6; 2024 c 124 art 2 s 8; 2024 c 127 art 35 s 8; 1Sp2025 c 5 art 2 s 62​
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